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Himalayan Everest

imalayan Everest Insurance Is a reputad (nsurance provider Insurance nhas
with a rich history of 30 years In the industry. throughout o - 3
olif Journey, we have specialized In offering General Insurance been a ploneer
products; encompassing a wide range of coverage oplians 1o : o
meet the diverse needs of our clients, In [h € G ene rr'_'-ll
Insurance sector
In addition to owr years of experience, we have recently :
completed the first ever merger In the insurance industry in Nepal for a
of the country. This strategic move has bestowed us with

a competitive advantage in terins of risk appetite, market D@I"IOd of
presence, expanded product and service offerings. talent
pooling, and enhanced distribution channels. By joining
forces, we have further strengthensd our position as a
lgading Insurance provider, enabling vs to affer even mare
comprehensive solutions to our valued clients,

&Ly OUR CORE VALUES
AR Gustomer first | Trustworthy
"’ Partnership | Ownership

Empathy | Growth mindset

+ VISION

(o)‘h The most innovative and Trusted Partner

I MISSION
Emnpowering Lives through
Comprahensive Insurance Solutions
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Why
Himalayan
Everest
Insurance ?

124

Bigger Geographical
Presence

Himalayan Everest Insurance's wide branch
natwork enables it to provide coverage
across all the  regions of Nepal. This
autensive presence ensures convenience and
accessibilty for customers and businesses
throughout the country, Having local branches
alsn means that customers can easily reach out
for pssistance, make inquiries, or fils claims,
anhancing the pverall customer experianca.

Customer-Centric
Approach

Himalayan Everest |nsurance: priofitizes. its
customers and adeopts a cusiomer-centric
approach. The company focuses on dalivering
prompt and efficient customer service,
addressing queries and concerns prompily, and
ensuring a smooth claims process. By putting
customers first, Himalayan Everest Insurance
alms to bulid long-term refationships based on
frust and satisfaction.

th
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We endeavor to offer you an exceptional &
unparalleled experience, ensuring that no
need to make concessions ar compromise for
anything less than the best.

e
00

Variety of Insurance
Products

Himalayan Fverest Insurance offers a diverse
porifolio of insurance products in the general
insurance sector. By covening varous aspects
of risk, such as Mator insurance, Properiy
insurance, Travel insurance, Health insurance,
Aviation, Enginearing. -and specialized risk
Insurance. The company caters to the diverss
needs of customers and businesses. This
comprehansive range ansures that individuals
and organizations can find suitable coverage
tor their specific requirameants,

Longstanding
Heputation & Experience

With a journey of 30 years, Himatayan Everest
Insurance nas established a strona reputation
in the insurance industry in Mepal. The
company's extensive experience and expertise
contribute to Its reflabiiity and trustworthiness.
Choasing an insurance provider with a proven
track record like Himalavan Everest Insurance
can Instll confidence in customers and
businesses regarding the company's abiiity to
handle-claims efficiently and provide excellent
Service.

First-Digital
Polices

Himalayan Everest Insurance offers the
convenience  of  purchasing  insurance
policies onling through HE| website. This
teature allows customers and businesses to
buy insuranca anytime and from anywhere,
eliminating the nead for physical visits to
branchas. Onfing policy purchase  saves
time, streamiines the process, and provides
a hassle-tree experience for busy individuals
and oroanizations.



Himalayan
Everest
Insurance

Achievement

m HEl's niimber of insurance HEl's annual coverape risk
Customers has surpassed amaounts to an impressive

the Impressive mitestone of £3B Billion Rupaes,
2 Lakh,

4.2B 71.91%

@ HEI's net worth stands. at a . Himalayan Everest [nswrance
substantial amount of 4.2 . boasts animprassive combined
Billion, while investment ratio of 71.891%.
amounts o an impressive
4 65 Billion.

s | 20"
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General Insurance
Business in Nepal

The Gross premium income amounted Mon-Life Insurance In Nepal plays a
{0 40,21 billian in 2023, substantial role by contributing 0.81

percentage to the country's Gross

Domestic Product (GDP).
Non life insurance in Nepal exhibits Insurance Companies directly generating
an insurance density of Nrs,1292. employment opportunities for over 12
theusand individuals,

HEI Market Share in Nepal's General Insurance
Gross Pramium 22/23

W HEl(8.39%) [l Others (31.61%)
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81 Branches 1 6 MNumber of
S - Agent

0 Extension 40 Number of
Counter Employees

Non- Financial Highlights

41 2, 1308 iiesed

Training

1 1 858 Number of Agriculture App
Claim Paid Launched

238474 2| B o
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Key Performace Indicator

I Financial Position

Balance Sheet Size (in Rupees}
20789-80 0.856.364,28%
2078-79 || ) 8832815783
Yoy 1.40% CAGR 218%

Total Sum Insured (in Rupees)
2079-80 T78,853.330,000
2078-79 ' 5375309866248

onze A0Sy

2076-77 537,439,180,302
Yo¥ 44.92% CAGR 7.70%
Paid-up Capital (in Rupees)
2078-80 2,301,535,000
2078-78 ) 2,428,129,764
Yoy 6.34% CAGR 1.24%
Investment (in Rupees)
2079-80 4654708234
2078-79 I 5580124748
2077-78 337858317
2076-77 4,338 718,105
Yo¥ 7.30% CAGR 142%
-’lnr""\.
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I inancial Performance

Net Profit (in Rupees)
207980 445089527
2078-75 |l | 160,320,308

Yoy 23.29% CAGR 4.2B%

Net Premium Income (in Rupees)
207580 9839233
2u78-79 || i 786,105,626
207877 631,715 564
YoY 41.43% CAGR T71B%

I Profitability Ratios

Earning per Share (in Rupees)
2073-80 1234
a07g-73 | ' 78
ey e
Yoy 15.97% CAGR 3.01%

Return on Equity (in Rupees)
2073-80 GE4%
2078-79 Il PR

Yot -7.N% CAGR -159%

Himalayan Everast
Inaurancs fsnfad
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B Stock Performance

Market Price per Share (in Rupees)
307980 600
2078-79 51081
ey oz
e —
Yov 44.31% CAGR 7.61%

Market Capitalization (in Rupees)
2079-80 13,808.210,000.00
5078-79 | 12,403,49,335 03
e rasassrerr
wore-77 (I B,998467489 73
Yov 53.46% CAGR 8.94%

Price Earning Ratio

(in Rupees)

2079-80 03
2078-79 | 20857
o i
SOTE-77 - 2498
Yo¥ 24.21% CAGR 4.43%

th il
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Trai n ing Total 45 trainings were held during the year in which 1,308

man days were invested for growth and development of our

Program organizational tear

Quarter-wise Training Program Department-wisa Training Program

. Merriceting

25 | Executive

El

20 |
Clalms

IT

=}
|—1i

Undarwriting

Legal and Complionce

Financs

HR

Logistics

Ferst Sacond Thard Faurth

% Hirnalayan Everest
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited wins

Insurance Inclusion Initiative of the Year - Nepal
New Insuram:ﬂ Product of the Year - Nepal
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In the course of our 30-year history,

we have faced many challenges; each
time, we have adapted to the changing
needs of the company, clients and the
market to keep moving forward. Despite
the:constantly changing landscape, we
have been able to achieve significant
milestones, formulate effective strategies,
and implement new ideas that help all
our stakeholders including our customers,
partners and employees.




Chairman's Message

messss Mahendra Krishna Shrestha

g, on behalf of the Board of Directors: of Himalavan Everest

Insurance  Limited ("Company”), cordizlly welcome all
sharsholdars and invitees to the 3060 Annual Genaral Meeting of the
Company.

We have successfully completed one year of operations as Himatayan
Evarest Insurance Limited (HEI).

Im the course of our 30-yvear history, we have faced many challenges;
gach time, we have adapted to the changing nesds of the company,
chients and the markat to keep moving forward. Despite the constantly
changing landscape, Wwe have beem able to achisve sigmificant
milestones, formulate effective strategies, and implament new ideas
that help all our stakehalders including our customers, partners and
employeags.

Access o insurance inour country is maoving ina positive direction.
Az a company, we recognize that this is a dynamic, chanaeable, and
opportune time to be in the inserance industry in Mepal. With that
In_mind, we have changed our approach, processes and training to
be more future-focused, innovative and efficient, This means the
experience and outcomes are better for our customers and us alike,

The company's market share i Financial Year 207880 among genaral
Insurance companies in terms-of gross premiom was 8.40%. The
comgany recorded a Gross Direct Premium of Rs. 3.37 billlon (3 Arba
37 Crore) In FY 2079/80 as compared 16:Rs.3.27 billion (3 Arba 27
Crara) In FY 2078/79,

We have always balieved that prompt and fair claim seftlemeant is a key
agpect of the service we provide: with the suppart of our fong-term
reinsurance partners, we have settled claims worth Rs. 2 52 billion in
the financial year 2022/23.

Wehaveproposed Bonus Share @ 8_63% amounting to Bs. 198,622 400
and Cash Dividend @6.37% of Rs. 146607780 (Including tax on
Bonuz Share and cash dividend) from the distributable profit of the
company. With the issuance of the bopus shares, the paid-up capital
of the company will be Rs 2,500,157,400 and will meet the statutory
minimum required paid up capital.

Weat HEI have always been committed to putting our customers first
and providing services and products that matter to tham. We see our
investmants in technology and human resources as central to HEl's
future readiness so that we mot only serve our current customers but
are equipped to meet the needs of our customers of the Tuture as weall.

Looking ahead, | foresea a constantly changing landscape for the Non
life Insurance Industry in Nepal and a lot of strategic effort has to
be made to chart our way forward. We continue to be excited and
energized by the growth and opportunities that this sector has 1o
offar. Whilst we look outwards to the market opportunities and our
customers, we are alsa looking Imwards at our systems and processes
to ensure that we are building an industry leading company for the
tuture.

In the insurance business, we have to leok at the long term and after
three decardes | feef that we ara now again at an important juncture
whers-we have to strategically look 1o the foture and define how we
will add long term value to the market, the our customers and our
sharsholders.

| would like to thank Shareholders, Valuable Customers, Nepal
Insurance Authority, Office of the Company Registrar, Security
Exchanpe Board of Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Limited, CDSE &
Clearing Limited, Share Registrar and 3l stakeholders for your support
and look forward ta growing together in the coming years.

Thank you.

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha

Chalrman

2080/10/25
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Beyond financial metrics, HEI remains
committed to making a positive impact on
society. Our corporate social responsibility
initiatives have continued to support
education, healthcare, environmental
sustainability and communities in need.
We believe in contributing to the well-
being of the communities we operate in.




CEOQO'’s Perspective

s \ijaya Bahadur Shah

Wanﬂ welcomea to the Chairman and all members of the Board
of Directors. Sharehelders, Regulators, distinguished glests,
invitees, well-wishars of the company and colleagues present in this
30th Annual General Meeting of the company.

As we gathar hare, it's essential to. reflact on the journey of the
past years. The fiscal vear 207980 has been marked by significant
challenges and uncertainties, both globally and within our industry,
[espite these challenges our commitment o excallance, prudent risk
management. client-centric approach and dightalization of some of our
werlicals have allowed us 10 navigale these turbulant effectivaly

We successiully did first merger of the Insurance Industry and | am
delighted to share commendable results of BY 2079/840. Thase results
are reflection of the synergias af post-merger, and a will to excel in-all
fronts, Our financial statements reflect steady growth and & healthy
Balange Sheet. We have tried to maintain a balance between the
financial well-being of the company as well as dedicated approach to
chents and the communities we serve.

We have enhanged our service offerings, embraced innovative
technologies, and streamlined our processes to better meet the
evalving needs of our oustomerns, Dur efforts in this regard have also
been recognized with in and out of country too and by prestiglous
Institiitions;

Beyond fingncial mefrics, HE! remains commitied to making a positive
impact on soclety, Our corporate soclal responsibility initiatives
have continued fo support education, healthcars, environmental
sustainability and communities in need. We helleve In contributing to
the weli-being of the communilies we operate in,

Looking ahead, we recognize that the Insurance landscape |s
gvolving rapidly. Technological advancements, changing consumer
gxpectations, ever increasing climate change risks and regulatary
developments will shape our Industry, HEL Is well-positioned to adapt
and thrive In this dynamic anvironment. We will continue to Invest in
Innavetion, talent. and digital capabilities to stay ahead,

Cirrently, we have been providing services throtgh 81 branches, &
Third party countars and we will continue to expand our reach through
additien of branch network and digital penetration based on aur long-
tarm strategy and competitive business advantage.

The construction of State-of-The-Art Corporate Bullding |s at final slage
and we gxpect it 1o be ready for use by the end of tha current fiscal
wear. We have also purchased land for construction of our Province
head guarier at Biral Magar and on completion of construction this
will give a better brand visibility and work emviranment o our stalf
members.

| also take this opporunity o express my gratitude on behall of
the company to Nepal Insurance Authority, Banks and Financial
Institution, Regulatory Authorities, Reinsurers, Brokers, Surveyors,
Investors, Employess and well-wishers for their mentoning, support
and guidance through which we have made 30 Years of company's
[ourmney a memaoratile one,

Thank you.

Vijaya Bahadur Shah
Chiel Executlve Officar

2080/10/25
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"HEl Insurance Products

i M )

FPropaty Insurance Home insurance Motor Insurance Maring iInsuranca

M 8 »

Accicental irsurance  Medsgl Insurance Burglary Insuranca Trovel nsurance

o 0 B v %

Moray Ing yonce ani.-rmnrmglnsumﬂrte hgrim;llumlnﬁurr:m‘n Avintion Insuraonces

Himalayan Everest
insurance Limited




Board of Directors

Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha

Chairman
Vijit Krishna Shrestha Avilasha Panth Sharma Ajaya Ratna Sthapit
Director-Promoter Director-Pramoter Director-Public

A

Hem Raj Thapa Bijay Kumar Pant Rajiv Sapkota
Diractor-Public Directar-indepandeant Advisor

T,
f ‘?%. Hirnalayan Everest
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Management Team

Vijaya Bahadur Shah
CEO

Kamal Gautam Anju Shrestha R. Naidu
ar. DCEQ DCEOD CTO

Ratan Kumar Lama Kashi Nath Burlakoti Sanjaya Aryal
DGM DGM DGM

3 Oﬂ"t j‘*u%%. Himalayan Everast
0 neurance Limitea

Ansxis Report 2073-80




Our Commitment
towards
Corporate Social v
Responsibility

Every Fiscal Year 1% of Net Profit

is set as budget in CSR Fund of the

Company which is utilized across _

the Provinces of Nation Under . Forms of Spending Contributions (NPR)

Various Headings. } Art & Literature 1,00,000
: Tourism & Culturg 88,737

Considerable Contributions of Eduation 70,009

NPR 15,16,746 have been made in . N

various CSR Heading. A summary

for the contribution made by the

company in line with the forms of

spending are presented here.

5,05,000

Cther Activities 753,000

Hirnalayan Everest
nslrance _mitad
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Corporate Governance

Corporate governanca refers to the system of rules, practices, and processes by which a company is directed and controlied, 1t involves
balancing the interests of 2 company's many stakeholders, such as shareholders, management, customers, suppliers, financiers, governmant,
and the community. The primary goal of corporate governance is to ensure the long-term success of the company while considering the
interasts of 2l stakeholders,

Board of Directors:
The board is responsible for overseaing the company’'s management and representing the interests of shareholders. The board's responsibilities
include strateqic decision-making, risk managemant. and ensuring that the company operates ethically.

Effective corporate governance is crucial for the sustainability and success of a company. [t helps build trust with investors, customars,
employees, and the broader community, contributing to long-term valug creation. Many countries have established guidelines and codes of best
practices for corporate governance to ensure that companies oparate in a responsible and ethical manner

Corporate Gevernance Framework:

A corporate governance framewsork outlines the struciure, processes, and rules that govern how a company operates and is controlled. It
provides a set of guidelines and principles to ansure that the company's managament and decision-making processes are aligned with the
interests of its stakeholdaers.

Board of Directors:
The Board of Directors (BOD) is a crucial component of 3 company's corporate governance structure. The board is responsible for oversesing
the management of the company and representing the intarests of its shareholders.

Farticular Paosifion

Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Chairman

Mr_\ijit Krishna Shrestha Director

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Director

Mr Hem Raj Thapa Director

Mr. Avilasha Panth Sharma Director
M_rB|ja:.,r Kumar Pant 'D'iré:'}tuf_
Board Meeting:

The agenda is prepared by the company secretary or another designated parscn in collaboration with the chairperson and executive team.
The agenda outlines the topics to be discussed and any supporting materials to be distributed to directors in advance.

Directors are notified of the maeting well in advance, wsually with the distribition of the agenda and relevant documents.

The BOD usually neets at least once a momnth to discuss and approve the claim above the delegated limit, review company's quarterly performance
and financial results, consider business strategies, reviews internal control, compliance related mattars.

The BOD sets annual performance objectives and strategies to monitor the actions and results of the management to ensure affective rigk
managemeant and governance practices,

Mumber of BOD Meelings:

S.No Dals Mediwm Number of Direclors Presence In Mealing

1. 2079/04/01  Physical B

2, 2079/04/04 Physical
3 2079/0413  Physical

4, 2079/04/30 Physical

5, 2079/0519  Physical
6. 207900530 Physical

7. 2079007/04  Physical

8.  2079/07/25  Physical

9.  D2079/08/28  Physical

10, 2079/09/26  Physical
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11, 2079710115 Physical
12, 20751019 Physical
13.  2079/11/16 Physical
14, 2079/11/23 Physical
15. 207911219  Physical
16. 20791229  Physical
17.  2080/01/06  Physical
18.  2080/0119  Physical
19.  2080/02110  Physical
20. 2080/02/23  Physical
21, 2080/0317  Physical
22, 2080/03/29 Physical

ool enl onlon el onl on|onjon | an | en

Maefing Allowancs to Direclors:
The Board members are provided with the meeting fees for attending mestings which is approved by the shareholdars In the annual general
meeting. The meeting fee of NRs 8,000 is being paid to the chairman whilte Bs 70,00 being paid to other directors.

Board Committees

Board of Directors (BOD) committees are formed 1o focus on specific areas of governance and oversight. These committees allow the board to
delve degper into particular issues, provide expertise, and ensure that the board's responsibilitias are effectively carried out:

Audit Commities:
Az per the provision of Insurer's Corporate Governance Directives 2075, the Board of Directors has formed the audit committee. The committas
is comprisad of 4 mambaers,

Particular Position
_Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Chairman

Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Mambar

Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Member

Mr. Kamal Gautam Mambar Secretary
Role:

Audit Committae provide assistance to the Board of Directors in fulfilling their oversight responsibility to the shareholders and others relating
to tha Company's financial statements and firancial reporting process, the system of internal accounting and fimancial controls, the imternal
avdit function. the external audit of the Company's financial statement. In discharging its oversight role, the committea is fully empowered to
investigate any matter braught to its attention.

Meeling Allowances:
The meeting allowance of the chairman and member of Audit committes is-as under,

Particular Amounl (Rs)
Chairman 7.000
Member 7,000

The above fee is inclusive of Tax Deducted at Soume

TOR of Audit Commilles

« [fonitor the financial reparting process and submit recommendations to ensure its integrity.

= [Monitor the effectiveness of the undertaking's internal quality control, sk management systems and Internal audit regarding the financial
reporting of the company, without breaching ts independence.

= [Moniter the performance of audits taking into account the findings and conclusions of the audit reviews carried out by the competent
authorities.

« Review and monitor the independence of the Statutory and Intermal Auditors.

= The Audit Committee recommends the appointment of an internal and statutory auditor.

Pl
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« Raview guartarly financial statgments

« Heview the appropriateness of management's policies and practices with raspect to the provision for unpaid claims. reserves and surplus.
« Audit Committea review and recommaends for the approval of the annual budget.

« Monitor compliance with statutory and regulatory obligations.

MNumiber of Audit Commiliae Meefings:
The following fable shows the details of audit committea meetings take nlace during the fiscal vear 2079780,

5. No Dale Madium
1. 2079/04/30 Physical
2 20790527 Physical
3 207907115 Physical
A 2079/08/24 Physical
5. 2079/08/28 Physical
B 2079/08/20 Physical
7 2079/09/26 Physical
B 20791017 Physical
8. 2079/11/23 Physical
10.  2080/01/27 Physical
11.  2080/02/28 Physical
12, 2080/03115 Physical
13.  2080/03/29 Physical

Activities of the commitiee During the Year:

« Discussed and recommended the annual budget of the company,

+ Monitors the effectiveness of internal audit including internal contral systam.

= Review and monitors the internal control ssues identified by the Internal Audit

+ Tha committea recommendad tha name and remuneration for appointment of statutory auditor

Anti Money Laundering Commitiea:
As per the provision of Insurer's Gorporate Governance Directives 2075, the Boeard of Directors has formed the Anti Money Laundering
Committee. The comimittes is comprised of 3 members.

_Partioular Pasition

Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Coordinator

Mr. Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Mamber

Head -Legal Member Secretary
Role:

Antl Money Laundering Committee assists the Board of Directors in addressing matters refated to Anti Money Laundering and compliance in the
insurance sector and to combat terrorism finance and financial crimas. AML Committee ensure that the company cannot be used as a vehicle to
legitimiza the proceeds of unjawful activities or to facilitata or finance terrorism.

TOR of AML Cammittae

= fAggist the Board of Directors in formulating rules, regulations and standards to combat meney laundering and terrorism financing.

= Monitors the effectivenass of client due diligence systems and monitoring mechanism.

= Review policies and procedures [n the company in order to bring them in line and in compliance with laws governing Money Laundering
combating terrorism financing.

= Parform other cties as per the need of the company / as directed by the Board of Directors.

Activilies During the Year:

Himatayar Everest Insurance proudly announces the successiul integration of GeAML software inte its operations. This Integration enables the
company to comply with all the criteria set by the Financial Intelilgence Unit (FIU) and the Nepal Insurance Autharity, ensuring a robust anti-
maorey laundsring (AML) and compliance framewaork,

th
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By implamenting the GoAML software, Himalayan Evarest Insurance has taken a significant step towards enhancing its ability to detect and
prevent money laundering activities within the insurance sector, The software provides advanced analytics and reporting capabilities, enabling
the company to swiitly identify suspicious transactions and promptly report them to the approprizte autharities.

The integration of GoAML software also demonstrates Himalayan Everest Insurance’s commitment to meeting the stringent requirements
imposed by the FIU and the Mepal Insurance Authority, By adhering to these griteria, the company reinforcas its dedication to maintaining a
transparant and compliant environmant for its policyholdars and the overall insurance induestry,

The successiul complation of this integration positions Himalayan Everest Insurance as a leader in adopting cutting-edge technology to bolster
AML efforts. The GoAML software empowers the company to proactively combat financial crimes, safeguard policyholders' interests, and
contribute to the overali stability of tha insuramca sector,

With the integration of GoAML, Himatayan Everest Insurance can straamiing its AML processes, reduce manual efforts, and improve tha
accuracy and efficiency of transaction monitoring. This technological advancemeant strangthens the company’s ability to identify potential risks
and fake appropriate actions in a timely mannar,

The integration of GoAML software marks a significant milestone for Himalayan Everest Insurance, undersconing its continuous efforts to
align with global best practices in AML and compliance. By meating the criteria set by the FIU and the Nepal |nsurance Authority, the company
demonstrates its commitment to upholding the highest standards of integrity and professionatism.

Meeting Allowance to Direclors:
The Committee Mambers are provided with the meeting fees for attending meetings. The meating fee of NRs 7,000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at
Source (TDS) is being paid to the coordinator and members of the committee.

Claim Settlement & Reinsurance Commitiee
As par the provision of Insurer's Corporate Governance Directives 2075, the Board of Directors has formed the claim Settlement & Reinsurance
Committee. The comimittes is comprised of 4 members.

_ Particolar Position
Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Coordinator
_ Mrs. Avitasha Panth Sharma Member
_ M. Vijaya Bahadur Shah Memiber
Head Claim Member Secratary
Role:

The Claim Ssttlement & Reinsurance Committee monitors whether the claim is settled as: per Company's claim settiement policy and the
placement for reinsurance is done as per the signed treaty or not.

TOR of Claim Settlemant & Reinsurance Commitize

= To approve the claims file 23 per limit of settiement provided by BOD.

= To review and analyze for the purpose of recommending the pursuit or settlement of any ciaim.
= Reviews Annual Treaty Program and compares the terms of contract.

= Review appropriate Reinsurance Capacity and Facultative Reinsurance

= Recommends Brokers and Aeinsurer for the Treaty as per the guidelines of the Regulator.

= Parferm other difties as per the need of the company [ a5 directed by the Board of Directors.

Maeling Allowaneta o Direclors:
The Committee Members are provided with the meeting fees for attendging meetings, The meeting fee of NRs 7,000 Inclusive of Tax Deducted at
Source (TDS) Is being paid to the coordinator and members of the committes.
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Human Resources Committea:
As par the orovision of the nserer's Corporate Governance Directives 2075, the Board of Directors has formaed the Human Resources Committas,
The committee is comprised of 4 members.

Parlicular - Fosilion

Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrestha Coardinator
_ Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Member

Mr. Vijmya Bahadur Shah Member

Head Human Resources Member Secratary
Rale:

The Human Resources Committee provides guidance on effective Human Resources management to the Board of Directors. Its primany
responsibility includes reviewing, monitoring and making recommendations to the BOD on human resources strategy and policies and
development of prudent human resource management in tha company,

TOR of Human Aezource Commitine:

» Review, monttor and make recommandations to the BOD on Company’s human resources sirategy and policies pertaining to staffing,
compensation, bensfits and retated issues of strategic importance that directly affect Company’s ability to recruit, devalop and retain highly
qualifiad staff neaded for it 1o achiave its mandate.

= To review Human Resources Developmant and organizational structure and recommend any significant changes to the Board,

+ Review and ensure that succession planning is in place for staff of the company.

« To raview the standards and practices established by the company for the safely and physical working conditions of staff to ensura that thay
are sufficient and maintainad,

« Pariodic reviews of amployea performance at least annually to ensueee-that it is operating in maximum effectiveness,

Meeling Allowance to Direclors:
The Committes Mambers are peovided with the meeting fees for attending meetings. The meeting fee of NRs 7.000 inclusive of Tax Deducted at
Source (TDS) is being paid to the coordinator membars of the committes.

Investment, Risk Management & Solvency Commitles
As per the provision of Insurer's Corporate Governance Directives 2075, the Board of Directors has formed the Investment, Risk Managemant
& Salvency Committea. The committee is comprised of 4 members.

Parlicular Position

Mrs. Avilasha Panth Sharma Coordinator

Mr. Vijit Krishna Shreshia Mamber

Mr. Vijaya Bahadur Shah Iamber

Chief Finance Officer Member Secretary
Role:

The committee shall make the investment decision considering the benefit of the company maintaining the solvency ratio defined by the

regulator and assess the internal as well as external risk to the company.

TOR of Commitiee

= Reviews the objective and policies of comprehensive risk managemant systam.

= Monitors and recommends Investment pollcy recognizing that insurance assets should be invested to produce the best possible returns
consistent with a prudent approach securing interests of stakeholders.

= Review the risk management system, including but not limited to risk management structure, functions and workilow,

= Discuss the risk managennent system with management to ensure that management has performed its duty to have an effective system.

= Review the risks from major decisions and monitors the risk prevention policies adopted by the Company's.

Maeling Allowanca o Direclors:
The Committee Members are provided with the meeting fees for attending meetings, The meeting fee of NRs 7,000 inclusive of Tax Deductad at
Source (TDS) is being paid to the coordinator and members of the commitiee.
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Value Added Statement
For The Year Ended 31 Ashad 2080

In line wilh aur commitment to transparency and accountability, Himalayan Everest Insurance, a leading non-iife insurance company, is
pleased 1o present the Value Added Statement for the financial year ended 2080, This statement oullings the valie generated by Ihe company

and how il has been distributed among vadous stakeholders.

Particolars 2079-80 2078-79
Value Creation
Net earned pramiums 578,319,235 338,715,828
Commission imcame 390 558,980 166,278,713
Investment income and loang 338,770,004 148,700,893
Met realised gains/ {losses) (1,263,914} 1,020,612
Other income 0.059 687 3,811,451
Mat claims paid (B06, 036,045 (170,531,552)
Met changes in insurance contract liabilities 140,171,723 131,975,864}
Commission expenses 159,174, 530) (28,681 699)
Other direct expeanses (3:.970,633) -
Other operating expenszes {162,148 699) {80,004 506}
Finance cost (1,719,066} (737,577}
“Grass Value Added 1,022,566.6%2 345,506,209
Value Applicaiion
To Employes
Salary and other benefit 350,331,144 115,156,619
To Regulatar
Service fees 10,885,521 5,182,852
To Government
Income Taxes 235,079,644 ES 580 380
To Shareholdar
Dividand & Bonis Share 64,840,316 77023579
To Expansion and Growth
Fecarves and aocumulated profit 342235 746 72,179.0&7
Depreciation and amaortization 18784081 10,383,752
Total Valwe Applied 1,022 .566,832 345.506.209

Market Value Added
For The Year Ended 31th Ashad 2080

Himatayan Everest [nsurance g pleased to present the Market Value Added (MVA) statement for the financial year ended 2080. The MVA
ctatement evaluates the value created for our sharehniders by measuring the difference between the market value of our equity and the book

walua of our acquity.

Particulars 2079-80 2078-78 Change
Wet EIC i
Market price per share 600 520 200 17%
Mumiber of share 23015350 1173509 12,546,207 A%
Total market capitalization  13,809,210,000 6,102,247,320 6273103500 12%
Book value per shara 182.11 177.30 13656 14%
Mumbar of shara 23,015,350 11,735,001 12 546,207 3%
Total book value 4,191,300,535 2080665369 1738402 442 10% eguiator

Markel value added

9.617,900,065

4,021,581,951

4,534,701,058
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Annual Report of FY 2079/80 presented by Board of Directors in the 30th
Annual General Meeting of
Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

Raspacted Sharaholdars,

We, on bahalf of the Board of Directors of Himalavan Evarest Insurance Limited ("Company™), cordially welcome all shareholders and Invitess
to the 30th Annual Ganeral Meeting of the company.

We have presented the 30th Annugl Report of the Company prepared pursuant to section 108 of the Companies Act 2063 for the Firancial Year
207880 Including Independant Auditor's Repart, Statemant of Financlal Position, Statemant of Profit or Loss, Cash Flow Statemant, Statemant
of Changes in Equity, Annexures-and Motes to Account forming part of Financial Statements.

Following the Directive of Nepal Insurance Authority, tha Financial Statement for the fiscal yvear 207V9/80 has been prepared based on Mepa
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Complete sets of financial statement tor the FY 2079/80 have been prepared, Audited and Approved by Mepal Insurance Suthority, Following
the principle of Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS) regarding busingss combination, corresponding previous year figures of former
Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited have been presentad.

We are pleased to place before vou the 30th Annual report of the company prepared pursuant to section (109) of the Companias Act. 2063
for the Financial Year 2079/80 including Independent Audior's Report, Statement of Financial Position, Statemant of Profit or Loss, Cash Flow
Stetemant, Statement of GChanges in Equity, Annexures and Notes to Account forming part of Financial Statements along with Gompany's current
financial year activities & future action plans, as well as the Director's Report for discussion and approval

1. Financigl Resulis;

§.Mo  Parficulars Indicators FY 2079/80 FY 2078/79 Grawth (%)
1 No of Policies Issued Nos. 238,474 188,499 26.51%
Z Gross Premium Income Rs'000" 3,376,347 3,276,669 3.04%
3 Net Pramium Income Rs'D00" 1,152 468 850,631 35.47%
4 Reinstrance Commission Income Rs'000" 345,722 379,367 -8,87%
5 o of Claims Paid Nos. 11,658 12,649 -6.25%
i} Gross Claims Paid Rs'D00" 2,520,708 1,788,518 470.94%
7 Net Claims Paid Rs'DO0" 606,036 583,763 3.82%
| Citstanding Claim Nos, 8,533 11,121 -23.27%
| Chitstanding Claim Bs'000" 270,834 447,012 =39.41%
10 Employes Expenses Rs'000" 278,98 270,279 3.22%
1 Other Expenses Rs'D00° 162,148 166,625 3.53%
12 Income from Invastment Rs'DO0" 338,770 303,128 11.78%
13 Net Profit (as par NFRS) Rs'DO0" 445,060 160,320 177.61%
14 Invastment Rs"000" 4 654,708 3,646,988 27.63%

a. Solvency Margin:

Solvency ratio is the measuremeant of the company’s ability to meet its operational obligations and short term and long-term liabilitias. As per
solvency margin directive Issued by Nepal Insurance Authority, the salvency ratio of the company should be more than 1.5, The Solvency margin
of the company stands at 3.24 fimes which stands well above the prescribed minimum as on Ashad End 2080.

£. Review of Pravious Year's Performance 2079/80 (Financial Year 2022-23):;

The company's market share in Financial Year 2079/80 among goneral insurance companies in terms of gross premium was 8.40%. The
company recorded a Gross Direct Premium of Rs. 3.37 billion (3 Arba 37 Crore) in FY 2079/80 as compared to Rs.3.27 billion (3 Arba 27 Crore)
in FY 2078/79,
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The major pramium contributor tor 207980 was the motor portfolio. This portfolio contributed 27.65% of our gross pramium ncome as
compared to 25.68% inthe pravious year, Specifically, Fire, Motor, Marine, Enginaaring. Micro, Aviation, Agriculture and Miscellansows portiolios
contributed 15:96%, 27.65%, 1.87%, 15.73%, 0.0001%, 10.50%, 2.68% and 25.50% respectively in FY 2079/80.

Gross Premium Incoma:

Gross Pramium

Portialio FY 2079/80 Weighlane FY 2078/79 Weightage
Firg 538,706,116 15,96% 446,971,773 13.64%
Motor 033,706,904 27.65% 841,425,554 25.58%
Marina 66,672,876 1.97% 89,247,534 2.728%
Enginearing 531,185,936 15.73% 402,757 480 12.28%
Micra 2,400 0.0001%% 7,516 0.00%
Aviation 354,605,187 10.50% 476 677,204 14:55%
Agriculture 90,360,564 2.68% 170,485,659 5.20%
Miscellaneous 861,096,975 25.50% 849 095,027 25.891%
Total 3,376,346,958 100.00% 3,276 668,749 100.00%

Previous Year comparaiive figures represent the consalidated figures of former HGI & EIC.

Gross Claim Sefiemant:

Gross Claim Setlement during FY 2079/80 was Rs 2 Arba 52 Crore as compared to As 1.78 billion in FY 207879, With the centinued support
from our reinsuranca partnars, we are able to consistentiy settle claims prompthy, which is at the core of our promise 1o our customers.

5.Mo Portiolio FY 2079/80 Weightage FY 2078/78 Weightage
1 Fira 139,089,942 5.52% 356,271,869 18.82%
2 Mator 481,130,629 18.09% 465,336,616 268.02%
.| Marine 40,186,253 1.58% 41,277,063 2.31%
4 Engineering 196,593,054 T.80% 266 979 536 14.93%
] Micra 53,325,000 212% 11,871,414 D67Y
& Awlation 1,169,582, 848 A46.40% 241,515,588 13.50%
iy Agriculture 143,705,134 5.70% 128,413,180 718%
8 Miscellaneous 297,094 864 11.79% 276,754,007 15.47%
Total 2,520,707 724 100.00% 1,788,519, 363 100.00%
Frevious Year comparative figures rapresent the consolidated figures of former HGI & EIC.
Re-insurance:
The company has reinsurance treaty with tha following reinsurance companies:
5. No  Namg of reinsurers Raling Anonoy
1 Ganeral Insurance Corporation of India, India B+ Good A Best
2 Zep Re (PTA Reinsurance Company) Mairobi, Kenya B+ Good A Best
3 Kenya Reinsurance Corporation Lid,, Nairobi, Kanya B (Fair} AM Best
4 East Africa Reinsurance Corporation Lid:, Nairobi, Kenya B (Fair) A Best
B Abu Dhabi Mational Insurance Company A (Excellant) A Best
B The New Indiz Assurance Company Limited B+ A0 Best
7 GIC Bhutan Reinsurance Cempany Limited AR CARE Ratings
B Asian Reinsurance Company Limited B+ (Good) A Best
b | AR XL A AN, Best
10 Hannover Reinsurance A AN, Best
11 Ciza Beinsurance, India B+ A, Best
12 IG| Reinsurance A AM. Best
13 Royal Insurante Corporation of Bhutan Ltd G A Best
14 Waica Reinsurance B/(Fair} A.M. Best
tih
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3. Impact of National and Infernational Evanis on the Company’s Business:

The impact of pational and international evants on a company's buginagss is profound and can significantly shape its oparational landscapa, These
evants encompass a wide range of factors, including economic shifts, political developmeants, social changes, technological advancemaents, and
environmantal considerations. Understanding and navigating these influences is erucial for businasses to remain resilient and adaptivae. National
and global economic conditions, Including recessions, intlation, liouidity crunch, currency fluctuations. have directly affected company’s returm
from investment. On the whole, market penstration has increased, reaching new individuals as well 55 new areas of Nepal. Inling with the new
tedaral structure of the country, the company has established provincial offices in all savan provincas which will further expand its reach and
the raach of insurance sarvices,

Special note on Climatic Risk

Climate risk has become a critical consideration for businesses worldwida as the planet experignces unprecedentad changes. This type of risk
is multifaceted, encompassing both physical risks from the changing climate and transition risks associated with the shift towards a low-carbon
economy. In the year 2079/80, claim incurrad due to Climatic risk is shown in the table below:

a.N Particulars Gross Claim Mel Claim
1 Fire Parttolio 139,089,942 36,845 425

4, Achievements Since the Last Fiscal Year till Preparation of the Annual Repor and Fulure Pians:

The comparative premium underwrittan during the Fiscal Year 2080/81 is tabulated balow:

_ 5. Hu_ Faﬂl:ula_r_ﬁ_ F_'f Z_IJ_HIQIJ_'E‘:_ .I_!-_ll_i_ Iu_FuuﬂI!l FY EI]_?!H_B_U {!u:!_tn Fuusl:h_]_l Im:raa_se
1 Gross Premium Income 1,678,450.051 1 ,EDB_LQEB,3?1 11.30%
Future Plan:

Dua to & succassiul margar, we now have a nationwide presence. The Company will continue to strangthen market presence, visibility and
paretration. Equal attention and resources are dlso baing given to investments in technelogical transformations within our company and
value chain. Additionally, the merger helped us reavaluate aur position, core competencies and markat opportunities and enabled us to equip
ourseives for a very exciting future. The transformations currently underway will create the foundation for a future with unigue advaniages and
strong market share.

We remain focused on owr Vision 2030, aspiring to be the most innovative and trusted partner and mission to empower fives through
comprahensive insurance selutions. With our dedicated afforts and the support of our stakeholders we feel confident we are moving in tha
direction of achievino this vision.

8. Industrizl and Business Relalions:
As a company that values transparency and good governance, all the information and disclosure reguired, pursuant to the guiding Acts, Rules
& Regulations, has beep submitted, disclosed and duly published.

We are committed to strangthening the relationships within and between our teams which is critical to our future growth strategy and direction.
We are also continuing our focus an Bringing In new talent who are aligned with the company's values and poals. In addition, we continue 1o
conduct training and capacity bullding exercises to help our teams do thejr best.

6. Channoes in the Board of Direclors and Senior Management:
In the review year 2079/80, The followings are the changes in BODs!

5. No Incoming Director Dale of Appointment
1. Mr. Mahendra Krishna Shrestha 207912529
i Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit 207912429
a. Mr. Vijit Krishna Shrastha 207912429
4, Mr. Hem Raj Thapa 207912429
B Mrs. Bharati Pandey 207812129
B Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant 2080/01./06
T. Mrs, Avilasha Panth Sharma 2080/02/10
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Wa would like to express our sincers thanks to the sharsholders of the company for unanimousty electing the company's BOD and continuous
support. Afso, we would like to thanks 1o outgoing director for the Successtul completion of their tenure in the company.

§.No__ Dulgoing Direclor

|l Mr, Bhuwal Ral
2. Mr, Ram Prasad Khanal
a4 Mrs, Bharati Pandey

Appointment of Mrs, Avilasha Panth Sharma & Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant has bean proposed gnder the agenda of 30th AGM for approval of the
shareholdars.

In additions to the above, Mr. Bajiv Sapkota is continuing as advisor to the Board of Directos pursuant to the terms of marger agresmeant

7. Major Factors affecting Business

a) Post Pandamic Eifect.

b) Changes in Acts & Regulatory Diractives
¢} Political Instability

d) Rapid Adwancements in Tachnology

&) Limitad Reinstrance Market

f} Inflation, Currency Fluctuations,

B, Dividend
We have proposed Bonus Skara @ 8.63% amounting to R, 188,622 400 and Cash Dividend ©6.37% of Rs. 148,607,780 {Including tax on
Bonus Share and cash dividend) from the distributable profit'of the company.

8. Appaintmart’ Re- appointment of Auditor:
The mesting of Audit committes has recommended Mis Surash Shrestha & Associates as its Statutory auditor for FY 2080/81. The total fee of
Mrs 700,000 (Excluding Vat) has been proposed to Statutory Auditor for Statutory Audit & Tax Audit

10. Share Capital
The following table shows the company's paid-up share capital As on Ashad End of FY 2079/80.

S.Nao Particuiar Paid Up Capital {Mrs)

1 Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited 2,301,535,000

Mepal Insurance Awthority kas prescribed minimum paid of capital of Rs 280 Crore for Non-Life Insurance Company and the same will be mat
after your approval to proposed bonus.

11, Canclusion:

We would |ike to express our sincere gratitude to Government of Nepal, Nepal Insurance Authority, Office of Company Registrar, Nepal Rastra
Bank, Securities Board of Mepal, Nepal Stock Exchange Limited, COS and Ciearing Limited, Inland Ravenue Department, NMB Capital Ltd,
Stockbrokers, Commercial / Develapment Banks and Financa companies, our clients, and well-wishars who have helped us directly or indirectly
in the growth of company. Also, we would ke to express our sincera gratitude to our agents and surveyors.

The efforts shown by all the employees of the company during the period is highly praisewarthy, a special mantion ta them for their commitmant
to serve and excel,

We would like to thank all the shareholders and other attendees present in tha AGM far your valuable presence and active participation.

Thank You,
Ajaya Ratna Sthapit, Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Diractor Chairman

Date: 2080/00/26
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Provisions related to section 109 (4) Companies Act, 2063 (lirst amendments, 2074):

8. Detalls of Forfaited Shares:
The company has not forfeited any shares till the raparting date

b. Disclosure of transaction with Subsidinry/ Associates:
Company has no Subsidiary/ Associates till the reporting date,

€. Informafion provided by the Principal Shareholders in the last fiscal year:
Ma such information was provided during the reporting period.

d. Disclosure on tho share transaction & ownorship by the Board Membars and Employess of the Company in the last fiscal year:
Mang

g. Disclosure of information on involvemen! of any Board Member or thair Close Relatives having parsonal interest on any agreemant
done by the company during the last fiscal year:
Mane

I. Disclosure on Shares buy back of the company:
Mane,

g. Infernal Contral Sysiem, Risk Manageman! system & ifs sffecfiveness:
The intarnal control systam of the company is designed in such a way to achieve following
organizational objectives:
a. Operational Effectivaness and Efficiency,
b. Reliable Financial Reporting and
o. Compliance with Laws, Regulations and Paolicies,

At the organizational fevel, the Company has formed the Infernal Audit Committee headed by public director Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit. The
company has appointad an indapendent Chartered Accountant firm M/s G.P Bajbahak & Co as Internal Auditor.

The internal audit report issued by the internal auditor is presented to the Audit Committee for discussion. The comments and suggestions from
the Auditor and Audit Committes has been implementad regularly, The company strangly befievas that, the implementation of suggestions of
internal audit report strengthens the overall intermal control system of the organization. Company has been following the Corporate Governance
Directive, 2075 issuad by the Insurance Board. It has helped to make tha internal control systam and good gavernance mare eftective.

The Company has also formed a Bisk Managemeant Committes for effective management of internal as well as extarnal risk,

h. Disclosure on the total Management axpenses on last fiscal year:
Thee company has spent Rs. 162,148,699 {Sixtean Crore Twenty-Ona Lakh Farty Eight Thousand Six Hundred Ninaty Nine Rupess) as total
management expenses in FY 2079/80.

i. Detalls of members of Amdil commitiee, their remuneration, allowances amd facilities, action laken, and any recommendations made
by the commiliee:
In the review period, company has constituted 3 membears audit committea under the Chairmanship
of Public Director Mr. Ajay Ratna Sthapit, and independent director Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant & Public
director, Mr. Hem Baj Thapa, as members. The maeting fee for aach audit committae meeting has been
fixed at Rs.7,000 (Seven Thousand) inchssive of Tax.

Tha actions made hy the audit committes are as follows,
1.Review of Statutory Audit Report and recommended to management for the improvements, as required.
2.Reviaw of Internal Audit Report and recommend to management for the Improvements, as requirad.
d.Recommend the appointment of Statutory Auditor to the AGM.
4.Review of Internal Controf Systam of the company and provide suggestions for improvement

th
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j. Disglosure op amount raceivables from Directors, Maraging Directors, CEQ, Company’s Principal Shareholders ar any firm. company
or any other organization asseciatod with such individuals or their close relatives:
Maoma,

k. Disclosures on Saiary, Allowances and facilities provided to the Direclors, Managing Directors, CEQ:
Datails of Meating Allowance Paid to Diractors:

Parlicufars Amount (Rs)
 Board/Commitiea Meeting Allowance 2,118,000
Detail of Satary Allowances and Facilities Provided to CEQ of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited:
CED
SN Particulars Detail Tenure Amount Other Facililies
1. Salary & Mr. Vijaya Shrawan 2079 12,009,121 Vehiola with
Allowances Bahadur Shah -hshad 2080 Driver, Fual,

Insurance, Telephong,

& Statutory Bonus

& Other as per

Tarms of Contract

The following fee has been proposed for your approval regarding revision of mesting allowance:
Existing Proposed

Particuiars - Amount [Rs) Particulars ~ Amounl (Rs)
Meating Allowance- &.000 Meeting Allowance-Chairman 12,500
Chairman
Meating Allowance- 7.000 Meeting Allowance-Diractors 10.000
Diractors
Communication/Travel/ - Communication Traval! 25.000
Newspaper Newspapar
& Perindical: Allowance & Perindical Allowance

The proposed meeting allowance {Per Meeting) and other allowances (Per Manth) is inclusive of TDS (Tax Deducted at Source).
I.  Remalning Dividend amount to be claimed by shareholders:
Relaled to Former Himalayan General Insurance Company Limited:
= The remaining dividand of Rs. 5,352 336 has been beoked as pavable and shown in Annexure 24, Other Financial Liabifities.

m. Disclosure on purchase and sale of propery as per clause 141;
Mone.

n. Disclosure on transaclion belween associaled companies as per clause 175:
Mone.

o. Any other details to be disclosed in the reporl as per lhe companies acl and existing laws:
Company is having a market share of 8.40% (Approx) in the General Insurance Industry.

p. Disclosure on the provision of the directive 86 as per Companies Direcltives. 2072:
The company has been abiding by the provision made in the Campany’s Directives 2072

n. DOiher issees:
Mg,

th
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ANNEXURE-
(PREPARED UNDER SECTION 5(1) (KA) OF FINANCIAL DIRECTIVE 2080)
REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Information Related to Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited (Herein After referred to as "Company”) is a public limited liability company incorporated as per the laws
of Nepal. The Company cbtained the ficense (License numbar 04/050) from Mepal Insurance Authority on Shrawan G, 2050 and got approval
from the Authorty to carmy on business from Shrawan 13, 2050 undar Insurance Act 2079, The Company started its commarcial operation from
Mangsir 16, 2050.

The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is HGI House, Babar Mahal, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company’s shares
are fisted in Nepal Stock Exchangs.

The Company is engaged in the business of underwriting non-life insurance through its branches and network of agents. Thare were no
significant changes in the nature of principal activities in the company during the financial year.

The company merged Everast Insurance Company Limited with it and commenced joint operation in the name of the marged entity, Himalavan
Everest Insurance Limited from Shrawan 1, 2079 (July 17, 2022),

B. Upon Discussion, Board of Direciors of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited, has approved and declared the
following:

1. Tax, service charges, fine and penalties to be pald under laws & regulation.

The company has paid the applicable direct and indirect taxes Inclugding fines and penalties (if any) lavied by the competent authanty during
periodic tax assessment. Aso, services charge has been paid within stipulated timeline.

2. Share Structure & Changes:
The share structure of the company Is as follows:

Particulars Percenlage of ownership
Pramator Share Holding 51%
Public Ehare Holding 49%

Bonus shares Issued fin FY 207980 pursuant to the approval of ragulator and Annual General Meeting al the company has besn duly recorded
in campliance with prevailing laws from affice of the company registrar.

4. Solveney Ralio:
The salvency ratio of the company as on Year Ended 31st Asar 2080 stands to 3.24, which is well above than the minimum requiremant of 1.5
prescribed vy Mepal Insurance Authority.

4. Declaration on Basls ol Measurement:

The annual financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for cerlain assets and liabilities measured as follows
as follows:

a. Investment In eguity instruments and units of mutual Tunds are measured at fair value

b. Liability for defined benefit oblipations is recognized at the present valug of the defined benefit obligation as determined by the actuary,
Insurance contrac! fabilitles are acluarially determined values, and these have been measured al higher ol such actuarial determingd valuas
under labifity adeguacy test and regulatory reguirements as per Section 2, Annexure 8 of Actuarial Valuation Directive 2076 issusd by Nepal
Insurance Authaority,

§. Declaration on Investmenl:
Investments made hy the company are in line with the Investmant directive issued by the Nepal Insurance Autharity. The detalls of the Investmeant
have been duly reporied 1o the regulator and prior approval 2s required has been tlaken on a case-to-case basis,

th
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b. Claim Ssitlemant:
The following are the details of claims settled 2nd outstanding as on year endad 315t Asar 2080.

Parlicuiars Mumber
Number of Claim Settlad (FY 2079/80) 11,858
Number of Claim Outstanding (As on 315t Asar 2080) (including 5,832 Covid Claim) 8,533

Time Frame to Sellle the ouistanding claim:
The company has the policy to setile the outstanding claim within 21 days aftar receipt of ail the required documents.

7. Declaration on Compliance:

The financial stataments have been prepared in all matarial aspects under Mepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) laid down by the
Accounting Standard Board (ASB), and comply with requirements of Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Reguiation, Company Act, 2083, Security
Exchange Act 2063 and applicable directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority along with compliance and disclosures as per other applicable
laws of Nepal,

8. Declaration on Accounting Policy:
The Accounting Policles have been consistentiy applied to all the years presented, unless othenwise specifically statad,

8. Declaration on True & Fair Presentation:
The financial statements of the company prasent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the company as on 31st Asar 2080, and
its financial parformance for the year then ended.

10. Declaration on Safeguand of Assels & identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzigment, and irregularities:
The Board of Directors of the company has implemented adequate and appropriate provisions to safeguard the asseis as well as for tha
identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement and irregularities,

11. Declaration on Going Concem:

The Board of Directors have assessed the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern-and are satisfied that it has the resources to continue
in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermaore, the Board of Diractors is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern and accordingly, the financial statements have baen prepared on the basis of
gaing concern.

12. Declaration on Internal Control:
Mecessary mechanisms, rules and procedures are iImplamented in the company for the effective internal control system. The intersal controf
system is commensurate with the size, nature & voluma of the company’s business.

13. The company has mot conducted any transactions contrary 10 Insurance Act, 2078, Insurance Ragulation, Companies Act, 2063, refated
regulations and directions with any persan, firm, company and its director or with any entity in which its director has interast.

14. Penallies Levied by Nepal Insurance Authorily:
Mo penalty kas been imposed by Nepal Insurance Authority during the FY 2079/80.

15. Diher Disclosures:

Mone

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Raina Sthapit
Chalrman Director Directar

Bijay Kumar Pant Avilasha Panth Sharma Hem Raj Thapa
Director Qirector Directar

Date: 10th Janwary 2024
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N. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITON'S REPORT
TO THE SHARTHOLDERS aF

Report an the sudit of the financial statements

Opinion
Wi have audited the financal statements of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited (1he Company),

which comprise the statsment of financial position as at Ashad 31, 2080 Uuly 16, 2023), and the
statement of profit of loss. the statement of other comprehensive Incame, the statement of changes in
ecuity. the satermnent of cash flows lor the yesr then ended, and notes 10 the financal staterments,
inchuding a summary of significant accounting polites.

in our epRign the sccompanying nancial statements prasent fardy, (0 8l matanal reepects, the financal
position of the Cormpary as at Athad 11, 2080 (hy 16 20231 and its fnancial performance and its cath
flows for the year then snded in aroomdance with Nepal Financal Reporting Standards (NFR33).

Basis for opinian

We conductid our audit in atoordance with Nepsl Stendards on Auditing [NEAs] Our mesponsibilitiee
under thase standards ans further described in the suditer’s responsitllities for the audit of the finands|
staterments seciion of ou report. We ane indepandent of the Campany in sccordance with the code of
ethies for professional acrountant ssued by Institute of Charered Accountants of Mepal (CAN) tngether
with e ethical recpuiremamts that ore relevant to our audit of the financial statements Under the
provisiors of the Companles Act, 2063 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibriities in
aczordarce with thess requirements and the ICAN's Code of Ethics for professional ascountants. We
balieve that the audil evidence obtained by s is sulficlent and appropriate 1o provide a bashs for our
audit ppinion on the financial atements.

Emphasls of maiter

We draw sttertion b nobe 1 of the Bnandal statemerts which destribe the merger of the compay with
Cverest Insurance Company Limited smd 1he merged sntity commenced joint opevationg in the nams of
Himatayin Evarest insuronce Limited from Sheswan 1, 2079 (hly 17, 2022]. Our opirion & rat meodifed
in respect of th matter

Koy oudit motters

Ky auct matters are those matters that, i our prolessional judgement, were of mast significance In
our awdit of the financal statements of the financiel yea) ended on Ashad 31, 2000 Uuly 16, 2023). Theae
matters wiere addiessed in the contest of our audit of the finencisl stetements &s @ whole, and in forring
our cplnon thereon, ana we do not provide o sepanite opnion on thide matters. We have determined
the matters deseribed below to be the key nudit matiers to be communrcated in our report.

oudit matters How our omdit addressed the key audis
Imwrstments
(Refer Note 35 WﬂfMﬁmmﬂﬁNﬂﬂNfﬂﬁﬂwwmmﬂfﬂw
financte! piofeneats)

The Company's investments represent substant sl | Cur axc procedures included the Fallawing:
poriion of the assels 8 &1 Ashad 31, 2080 which | = Tested the design mplementation and
are valued |n atcordance with the BCcOwhting Operaling sffectiveness of key (Onimols oves
polity as tramed n note 35 of the fnandl valuation process of investments.
aiteenenis and 0 accoddance with the fremewoik | *  Assessed appiopriseness of the valuaton
as per the extent of the regulatory guidelines. iechnicaes. with reference to NAS 3§ -
Financial  Instruments  Rocognition  and
Vahation of sciively traded equity shares and Memsurement read ogether with NFRS § -
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

price as on the reporting date in Nepal Stock
Exchange (NEPSE]. i such securties are not traded
on the reporting date. they are valued as per the
previous closest traded price.

Unlisted equity instruments and mutual fund units
are measured at cost,

All other securites inciuding debl nstruments
have besn measured at hestorcal cost subject 10
amonizabon of premium paid, IF any, over the
residusl  period. The walustion of these
invessmmntt i comidened to be ona of the areas
which required attention and was one of the
matters of significance in the financial statements.

Francial  instruments along  with the
Company s own valuation policy.

= We have agreed a sample of yeoar-end
Imestment holdings 1o external valuations
and custody sources to verly the valuation
and existence of these investments.

*  Understood the management’s process for
identifying the eistence of impairment
indicators In regpact of the interests in squity
inctrurrents mengured at fair value through
Orther comprehentive incoma,

* Obtasined an understanding of price
verification control which i designed 1
review the appropristeness of valuation
methodologses to derive model inputs.

*  Based on sur audit procedures perormed, we
cancluded that the vauation of lsvel 1
financial instruments is approprale,

Provision for sutstanding claim

the fingnciol statesmants)

{Refer Note 3 14 wwmm;n Inturdnce confroct labilities”; Mole 33 and Note 19 of

Insurance claim is the major area of expense for
the Company.

The Company makes the complete provisions of
the remeining amounts of the psyment against
the clalm made by the Company before year-end
anc clalms Incurred but not reponed (IBNR) is
recognised as higher of the conventional 15%
outstanding claim or that determined by the
actusarial methods.

Given the fact that the provision (s required to be
made W respect of ouistanding clam and
complexty of calculations, ™he same has been
considered as Key Audit Marter in our audit of the
firmncial statements of the Comgany,

Owr sudlt procedures included the following

*  Verified the operational mechanisms of the
Company induding the Intermal gudeines
and standard Dperating procecures relating o
claim processing, performed test of controls
over claim settlement process and recording
processes inCiuding analyticsl procedures on
outstanding dasms,

= Cotained dear understanding of the process
and guicelines ai per directives issuad by the
Insurance Authorty for claim processng ard
comparad  their implementation and
effectiveness n regard to internil cperational
guidelines relating to clakm processing

* Verified the claim pasid and provision on
sample basic along with evidents of papment,
dotumentation as well as surveyor repont and
understanding the recording process bn the
books of account,

* Inthe case of IBNR, the amount of insurance
contract lisbilities hus been estimated by the
actuary appointed by the Company. The
acuarial valwation of inswrance contract
lizbilities in respect of [BNR ard BN(EWR claims
#s of Ashad 31, 2080 Is as cenified by the
Compary's sppainted actuary.

¢ Verified the sulficiency and adequacy of
reiatec] insurance contract Nabiiity based an
report from the Company act
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How our audit oddressed the key oudit matter

with the sabilities recognised in the financial
sEatements.

Examined Ihe appropriateness and validity of
key assumptions and information provided by
the Company t© the Compiny appointed
actuary for valuation of insurance contract
liobilities.

Revenue Recognition (Premium Income)

revenue which is recorded on lssue of policy as
prescribed by the insurance Authority.

Uneamed premium income of previcus and
current fiscal yesr is recarded / adfusted as
estmated by the Company appointed actuary and
as peascribed by the directives istupd by the
Imsurance Austhority.

Unesrmed premiums are those proparton: of
premiums writion in 2 year that relste 1o periods
of rmsk afier the reporting date. Unearned
premiums are calculated on a daily pro-rat basis.
The proportion attributable to subsequent
petiods is deferred 45 8 provision for unesmned
premiums.

Since the management considers revenue as key
measure of evalustion of perdormance. there fs o
risk of revenue being recorded before control is
transferred and s not recognised in the cormect
pericd,

it ole 313 B recogmion” en Meto 25 the ranci siosoeny
Premiumn income comprises 8 major part of | Our audit procedures incksded the following:

Obtained and read the Company’s revenue
accounting policy on revénue recognition in
accordance with the requirements of relevant
standards.

Understond  and  tested the dasign
implementation and operating affectivensss
of key controls over premium coliection and
il recogrition

Obtained clpar underctanding of the process
of izsuing tha policies as per directives ilued
by the Insurance Authority and understood
the process of booking such premium as
income,

Tested con 2 sample basis unallocated
premium 1o ensure that there were no policies
where risk assumed were prior Lo recognition
of revenue and comespanding to collection of
premiums

Verified on a sample besis the policies and
cther related documents including premium
caicylations therein a5 per regulatory
requirements and Intemal polices of the
Company along with premium / cash receipt
with special attention to the timestamp
therato so 8% to ascertain the comectness of
pericd of revenue recognition.

Verfied on a sample basis, the premium
ceded 1o the reinsurers as per Reinsurance
agreament / traaty with the reinsurers.
Venfied unearmned premium income as
assessed by the Company appointed actuary
in the actuarial valuation repor.

Based on our sudit procedures performed, we
concluded that the premium income
recognition is appropriate.

Gain on disposal of FVOC! Instrument

37 in
A financial asset is measured at FYOCL if it is held
with an objective to collact contractual cash flows
and salfing such financial asset and the contractual

{ the finoncial statements)

Our audit procedures included the following:
*  Obtained and read the Company's accounting
policy on recognition of gain

| <ash flowes are solely payments of principal and |

FVCO instruments in




_Key oudit matters

Hew eur audit addressed the key audit maiter

interest on the phncipal outstanding. 1T s
subsegquently measured ot fair value with far vaiue
movemenis fecogrmised n the  Ofher
comprehentive income (OCI), except for the
recogniions of Iimpairment gains or |osses
interest revenue and foreign eechangd gain of
losses; interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and lossas are recognised in profit or oss.

The fair value gains or losses of FVOC! instruments
are not recycied 1o profil or loss. Rather the gains
or losses are reciassilied o retained earming upon
actusi disposal of the FVOC] instrument.

Since fair value are not recycied to profit and loss
upon actual disposal and is reclassified to retained
eamings through statement of changes in equity,
it poses canain chalenges in evaluating the
sppropristeness and accuracy of the Company’s
|udgement on the amount to be reclassified to
. .

Az of the current fiscal year ended on Ashadh 31,
2080, the Company have recognised loss of Rs.
222532 1o the retsined sarnings for disposal o
VOO  instruments. The same has been
considered as key audit matter in our audit of the
financial statements of the Company.

requinements Of NAS 33 -  Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Messurement
read together with NFRS 9 - Financial
Instruments.

¢ (hecked the acouracy of the amount that has
besn recognised to retained eamings by
enalyning both the histoncal fair value
adjustment 1o other comprehensive income
[OCN and the current disposal value of the
FVOCT instruments.

*  Agzerained that the ransaction costs related
to the FYOC Instruments are charged to the
same FVOC] instruments and not charged off
in profit or loss.

v Verified the withholding capital gain taxes
therein, wherever applicable, have been
deposited with the reguiatory authority.

¢ Evaluated the management's methodologles
and the Company’s imemal procedures
relating o accounting records of such VOO
Inatruments.

v Verfied from external sources and ralevant
documents incuding that from the cusiody
sources that the disposal and subsequent
trensfer of FVOCI equity instruments are
recorded in the correct reporting pericd.

s Based on our audit procedures perdormed, we
concluded that the recognition of gain on

dipasal of FVOC investments is aporopriate. |

Information other thon the financial statements ond auditer's report thereon

The maragement of the Company is responsble for the other information. The other information
comprises the information induded in the snnual report but does not include the financlal statements
snd our suditer's report thereon.

Qur gpirion on the financal statements does nol cover the other information and we do not express
ary form of assurance condusion therson

In connection with our sudit of the financial statements, our responsibility is o read the ather
infarmation and, in doing 16, tonsider whether the other information is materislly inconsistent with the
financial stateene nts, or out knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise appears 1o be
matenally misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, wa conclude that there is a material misstaternent therein we
are required 1o repan that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
The maragement of the Company is resparsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the
firancial statoments in accordance with NFRSs, and for such internel control as management detenmines

is mecessary 10 enable the preparation of finencial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whothat due to fraud of emor,

In preparing the financial statoments, management is responsible for assessing the Comp
umnlbnen.gdngmndbﬂnﬁn].uuppﬂcﬁh.mﬂmmnmm




the going concarn basis of scocounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Compary or
fo cease operatons, or has no realistic alternative but 10 do 0.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financisl reporting
prOCEess.

Auditor's responsibilitios for the audit of the finonciol stolements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are frea from rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Ressonable assurance is a hagh leve! of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an
autit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect 8 material missigtenent when Il axists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud cr error and are considered material ¥, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the hasis of these financial statemants.

As part of an sudit n accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. Wi aiso:

*  dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks. and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
&5 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of interral control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audil In order to design sudit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpote of aspressing an opinien on the
eftectivenass of the Company's internal cantrol

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting pelices used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimates and related disciosures made by maragemént.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's ute of the going concern basis of accounting
ond, based on the audit evidence obtained, whather 3 mater|s uncartainty asists refated to svents
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue a3 a going
concem I we conclude that a material uncertanty exists, we are required ta draw sttention in our
auditor's report 1o the related disclosures in the finandial statemants or, if such disclotures are
inadequate. to modily our opinion. Our conclutions are based on the sudit evidence obtained up
to the date of our sudilor's repart. However, mnMnrmMﬂthm
16 coase te continue a8 & going concem.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the finanaal statements represent the underlying transactions and events
ina manner that achieves fair prasentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among ather matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intermal control that we identify during our audit

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requlrements

‘We repon that

4. We have obtained al! the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our sudit

b In our opinion proper books of scoount as required by law have been kept byﬂt(mmmhr
a3 apmeary from our examination of those books.




¢. The enclosed staternent of financial position, statement of profit or loss. statement of other
comprehersive income and statement of cash flows have been prepared in conformity with
provision of the Company At 2063 and formit as prescribed by Nepal Insurance Authority and the
same are in agreament with the books of account maintained by the Company.

d. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us,
the board or any member thereol or any employee of the Company has not acted against the
provision of lkew relsting the accounts ror caused loss of damage to the Company or
misappropriated the funds of the Company,

€ To the best of our knowledge, the Company has maintained insurance fund and other mandatory
reserves as prescribed by the directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

. We dic not ebtain any information Indicating engagement of the Company in activities other than
insurance business as approved/licensed by Nepal Insurance Authonity.

g W did not abtan any information indicating the Company's activities which are prejudicial 1o the
int=rest of the insuresd,
R Tha Company has complied with the directive issus by Nepal Insurance Authority.

I We did rot obtain any information indicating issuance of insurance policies other than s spproved
by Nepal insurance Authority.

) It appears that all the financial and other information which is reguired to be raported/informed to
the shareholders as per the prevalent laws has been provided to the shareholders.

k. Tothe best of our knowledge, the Company is capatie of Dearing its long-term Habilites from its
assets,

| The internal control system implementad by the Company was found to be effectiva.

Placs: Kathmandu
Dute: January 10, 2024 (Poush 25, 2080)



Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

Statement Of Financial Position
As Al Ashad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023)

Amount in NRs.

As al Az al
Ashad 31, 2080 Ashad 32, 2079

=i Hotes (July 16, 2023) (July 16, 2022)
ABBETS
Goodwill and intangible assets 4 208992 187 9,080,559
Property, plant and equipmant 5 316,895,727 175,103,649
Investment propertias G 7 *
Deferrad tax assets T 90.362.723 53,241,535
Investmeant in subsidiaries G - .
Investment in assoclates 49 - -
Investments 10 4,654,708 234 1,843,736.972
Loans 11 - -
Reinsurance assets 12 3.191.111.435 2054 311,737
Current tax assets (net) 21 - 59,549,584
Insurance receivables 13 1,154,515,5?? 221,972 587
Other assats 14 48.959 553 28,635,772
Other financial assets 15 151,561,392 146,941 880
Cash and cash equivalents 16 207456354 347328744
TOTAL ASSETS 8 636,364,282 4.939.913,019
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
go?YY
Shara capital 17ie) 2.301.535,000 173,509,100
Shara application money pending allotmant 17{b) - .
Share premium 1716} z =
Spacial rserve 17{d) 1.410,503 655 07 723176
Catastraphe raserves 17(e) 57.061,187 26,049,183
Retained earnings 170 226,482 875 68,434,242
Other equity 1710} 294 796,541 a4 142177
TOTAL EQUITY 4,200,379,558 2,058,857,6768
LIABILITIES
Provisions 18 3,417,533 8,481,680
Gross insuranca contract fablities 19 4. 187,573,339 2,430,289, 758
Defarred tax labifitles 7 5 =
Insurance payables 20 858,561,613 200,305,085
Current tax liabilities {net) Al 17.927 &70 ' =
Borrowings 22 _ = L
Other fiabilties 23 249 773619 138,678,450
Other financial liabilities 24 228,730,950 102,300,158

TOTAL LIABILITIES

~ 5,545,984,724

2,880,085, 1

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

9,836.364.282

4,939,913.019

Forand on Behall of Himalayan Everesl Insurance Limited

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha
Chairmmn

Bijay Kumar Pam
Director

Place; Kathmandu
Data: 1Mh January, 2024

th
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Vijit Krishna Shrestha
[Hrector

Avilasha Pamih Sharma
[irector

*‘f‘; N‘% Himalayan Eversst

-@

nerEnce Limitea

Ajaya Ratna Sthaplt
Directar

Vijaya Bahadur Shah
Criiet Executive OHboar

Hem Raj Thapa
Director

Rajkumar Khadka
Chiet Finanaial Otfbear

A5 per our repor of even date

Mianish Amatya
Partnar

M. Amatya & Co.
Chartered Accountants




Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Statement Of Profit Or Loss
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023)

53

Amaunt in NRs.

Far tha year smijed

Ashod 31, 2000 fishad 37, T070
Natis luly 16, 2823 {hily 16, 2122)
TR Notes _____ ldaly 16, 2623). by 16, 2022}
[iroz= samed pramiaims 5 3,394,102 330 1,734 572815
Premayms caded 26 [2.415,743,005) [1.395, 856,787
Nal enmad fromtuma PIEERE R 330,715,520
Lommigsion incame 27 340,553,980 1685.2/8.713
[har direct meame 24 L -
Investment income &nd inans 9 336,770,084 48,700,893
Teet gaims! {lossesh on fa vakie changes a0 T -
Mei roalized gaing! {losses) A (1,203,914 1.020,612
Dahier meame 32 £ 059 GET 3811451
TOTAL INCOME [IERTINTH Bh7 521,447
EXPENSES : [
Giogs elims paid 13 L520,707. 724 784,811,051
Gluims codad kK (14 671,670 {594 279 450
Nt elalms paid Kk Bl 58
Gross ehange i contract labilivies 34 {264, 738,255) 325,254,064
Channge 0 Contract lihities cededl 10 reingarae 12 124 566,530 [491,322,200)
Mal chenges b insaraice comtraci lakiliies (140,171, 720) 1,975, 86
fiat claims paif #5864 352 702 507 416
Gommissiun expenges B 24530 26,681 698
Suivice foes a5 10,885,921 5,182 852
Dibar dlirect axpenses £ 3,870,633 .
Emptayee banefits expenses 3@ 50,331 144 115,156,614
Dapreniabon and amartizxikn expenses 1 16,184 061 10,383 752
liniprsrment tgssas 40 = 5
Oifier operating expenges N 162,148 6599 80,084,556
Fiance coat 42 i, 713066 TATATT
TOTAL EXPEHSES 1,072,208 370 B4z, 70,511
Pt prodia | Joss ) far thet year befars shars of net profils of assuchates A2 65, 106 714,763,966
seceantod for ixing equily molbod amd
Shars af et profit v asspomtes acoounded wsing aguity mathod 4 = .
Prafi tiefore fix___ . LPRES Z18 7L AR
Incame fix experss 43 197 086,172 04,087 553
Nal prodilf {loas} For e year 45,858,527 160,755,453
Eaming per nhnre £
Hasio EPS LR LY
Mhized EPS 1054 1285
Aestzied bagic EPS ' G55
The accompanying noles form an integral part of these financlal statements.
For and on behalfl of Himalayan Everest Insurance Limiled
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ralna Sthapit Hem Raj Thapa As per our report of aven date
Chalrman Diractor Diractor Diractor
Manish Amalya
Partner
Bijay Kumar Pant Avilasha Panth Sharma Vijaya Bahadur Shah Rajkumar Khadka N. Amalya & Co,
Diractor Diractar Chigd Exacutive Offigir Chikef Financial Offiger Chariered Acoountanis
Place: Kathmandu
Date: 10h Janeary, 2024
th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Statement Of Other Comprehensive income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Amount in MRs.

Fn_:_' ke year em_:ieu
Ashad 31, 2080 Ashad 32, 2079
{July 16, 2023) (July 16, 2022)

Net prodll/ (loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

145,059 521 150,765,453

a.ltems thal are or may be reclassified to profil or loss

Chaniges In fair value of PVOGH dabt Instruments
Cash flow hedge - effective partion of changes in fair value
Exchange differences on tranglation of lareign operation

Sharn of other comprahensive income of associates accountad
for using the equity method

Ingome tax rélating to above itams
Reclassified to profit or loss

. Items that will nol he Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes In fair value of FYOCI equity instruments
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment/ goodwill and intangible assets
Remeasurement af post-employment benefit obligations

Share of other comprehensive income of associates dncounted
for using the equity methed

Income tax relating to above tams

69,827 378 (45,128 634)

(20,948,213} 13,538 586

Tolal ofher comprehensive income lar the year, nel of tax

48,879,163 {31,590,048)

Tolal comprehensive incaome lor the year, nal ol lax

4493 938 690 119,165,405

For and on behall of Himaltayan Everesl Insurance Limited

Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ralna Sthapit
Chairman Direotor Diractor

Bifay Kumar Pant Avilasha Panth Sharma
Diractor Diraatar

Vijaya Bahadur Shah
Chief Exacutive Officer

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 108 January, 2024

th
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Hem Agj Thapa As per our raport of sven date

CHractar

Manish Amatya
Fartner
M. Amatya & Co.

Rafkomar Khadka
Charterad Accountants

Chief Fingncial Cfficer
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Statement Of Cash Flows

For The Year Enced Asnad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
Amount m NRs
For the year ended
Ashad 31,2080  Ashad 32, 2079

{July 16, 2023) [July 18, 2022)

A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES o o
Cash received

Gross premium received 3,401 846,256 2,040,396 434
Cammission received 348,722 136 197,988,535
Claim recovery receivad from relnsurers 1.235,559,370 568,937 957
Foreign exchange income other than an cash and cash eguivalents {235.961) 3,787 728
Dther income 6,261,112 2,626 495
Cash paid
Gross claims paid {2.510.215,444) (744,580,040
Rainsurance premium paid (1,576,886 T64) (1,490,512,711)
Cammissien paid (39,628,122) (32,145,232)
Service fees paid {32,766,807) (13,354,399)
Employes benefits expenses paid (326,723,227) (122,281,117)
Other expenses paid {6,136,093) (44,142 966)
Other direct expenses {3.970,633) -
[ncome tax paid (79.943.311) (73,954,304)
Tolal cash llow Irom operaling aclivities 412 682,512 292,766,397
8.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of intangible assets {7.818.362) 14,708,372)
Proceads from sale of infangible assats - -
Acquisitions af investmeant proparties
Praceeds from sale of investment properties
Rental income received - .
Acquisitions of property, plant & equipment (75.724.574) (95,872,190)
Proceads from sale of proparty, plant & equipmant 5,338,808 7,984,181
Payment for acquisition of subsidiariess investment in subsidiaries - .
Investment in associates
Receipts from sale of investments in subsidiaries
Receipts from sale of investments in associates = -
Purchase of equity instrumants (181,811,708} (139,249,170
Proceeds from sale of equity instruments 6,760,035 14,820,893
Purchase of mutual funds (10,998.307) (4,625,100)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds . -
Purchase of preference shares = -
Proceads from sale of preference shares - .
Puichase of debeniures {32,715,989) (2,000,000)
Proceeds from sale of debentures - -
Purchase of bonds
Procesds from sale of bonds = =
fnvestments in deposits (4.379.371.103) (1,165,012,000)
Maturlty of deposits 3.592, 117 050 1,270,000,000

a'% th
@ "==eze | 30
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Procesds from finance lnase
Loans paid
Proceeds from loans

Intarest incoma raceivad 334,620,218 141,037 321
Dividend recelvad 3,034 161 9,708 487
Other income -
Total cash fiow Irom (nvesting activities (746,669.771) 32,164,150
C.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inferestpaid » (737,577)
Fayment of finance lease - -
Procesds from issue of share capital - .
Proceeds from foans and borrowings - (38,244 567)
Share issuance cost pald - -
Dividend paid (374,248) {505, 766)
Dividend distribution tax paid {3,242 06) (3,851,179)
Others ——— . =
Total cash low from financing activilies {3.616,264) [44,339.0589)
Met increase/{decreass) in cash & cash squivalents [a+bec) (337.603,523) 280,591,458
Cash and cash equlvalents at beginning of the year 347,328,744 66,345 464
Cash and cash equivalents taken over from Everest Insurance Company Limited 194,416,386 -
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalants 3,314 747 391,822
Cash and cash equivalents al end of the year 207,456,354 347,328,704
Edm'p'i:rna-his ot cash and cash -ﬂ-l.].lll'-'ll-'ﬂl.ﬂ.lilus
Cash in hand 1.200,000 492907
Chegues in hand - -
Term deposit with banks (with initial matunty op to 3 months) - 268,946 840
Balance with banks 208,256,354 77,888,007
Tofal 207,456,354 347,328.7M
Far and on behalf of Himalayan Evares! Insurance Limited
Mahendra Krishna Shrestha Vijit Krishna Shrestha Ajaya Ratna Sthaplt Hem Raj Thapa As per our report of aven date
Chairman Direcior Director Director

Manich Amatys

Partnar

Bijay Kumar Pam Avilasha Panith Sharma Vijaya Bahadur Shah Rajkumar Khadka N. Amatya & Co.
Director Director Chilet Executive Ottbcar Chiet Finaneial Officar Chartered Accountants

Place; Kathmandu
Data: 1Mh January, 2024
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Statement Of Distributable Profit Or Loss
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Amount in NRs.

Far the year ended
Ashad 31, 2080 Ashad 32, 2079
(July 16, 2023) (July 16, 2022)
Opening balance in relained eamings #8,609,479 77,864,790
Retained saming brouaghl in from mearger 1,330,505 -
Transter from OCH reserve to retamed earning in cumant year (322 532
Nat profit oo {loss) as per slatemant of probil or loss 445,058 527 150,755,453
Appropriations:
i} Transfer fo insurance fund -
ii) Transler 1o special reserve (#33,679,146) {60,741.007)
iii) Transter 1o catastrophe resarve {11,683.957) -
v} Transter (fa}fom capital reser e = -
v} Tranzfer i CSR reserve (4,673,583
Wi} Transtar (fo)/Trom regulatory rasarve B0, 282 224 {19,615.240)
yil) Trasster (o fair value reserve L3081
viil) Transfer to defermed fay reserve {37 963 465) (1552847
{2} Transter to DC| reserve due o change in olassitication = -
«) Actuarial rmsarve 189,254 544
wi) Others
Capital adjustment reserve 191,053 635
Excess dafermed tax reserve revarted back {o retainad 2amings 4,569,371 -
Deductions:
i+ Accumuizated far value gain on linancial instromants measured 2t FVTPL
4} Equily Instrumesls -
1) Ml Furd
) Others - -
i#) Accumulated far value gain on investment properies = -
iy Accumiilatad tair value gaim on hedgad itams in tair valus hedges
Iv) Accumulated falt valug gain on hatiged Instrumend in Talr valug hadge
v} Accummuleted fair value gain of Ineftective portion on Gash Nlow hedge -
vi) Gondwill recopgrised [2,860,535) <
vil) Unreatised gain on Mustualion of forsign exchangs cureny (3,314,747 (391,822
vil} Acrumiizted share of net profit of associates accounted using
equily methad Included In invesiment account -
i) Owerdug foans
1} Fair value gain racognized in Elatament of profit or ioss - -
31 Investmenl in unlisted shares = B
wil) Delistad share Investmant or mutwal fund investmeant - o
#il1} Bonus share distribuled during (he year {61.586.300) (73,172,404
wiv) Cash dividend distibuted during the year (3,242 ME) (3.851,174)
wv) Deduction as par section (17) Financial directive - -
wi) Deduction as per zaction (18) Financial directive 136,378,607 -
wii) Others. -
Adjusted retained eamings
A Transder from share premium
Less: Amourdtapporfioned for assloned capital - -
Less: Deduction a5 per sec 1507) of linancial direstive
Add/Less. Others - -
Total distribulable profil 305,157,858 86,609,479
th
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HIMALAYAN EVEREST INSURANCE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ror the year ended on Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

I 1 Company overview

Himatayan Everast Insurance Limited (heretnafter raterred to as “the Company”) is a publle limited lablliity company incorporated as per the
laws of Nepal. The Company obtained the license (License number 04/050) from Nepal Insurance Suthority on Srawan 6, 2050 and finally
got approval from the Authority to carry on business from Srawan 13, 2050 under Insurance Act 2079, The Company started its commearcial
aperation from Mangsir 16, 2050,

The registered office ot the Company and the principal ptace of business is HGI House, Babar Mahal, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company's share
are listed in Mepal Stock Exchange.

The Company is engaged in the business of underwriting non-lite insurance through its branches and network of agents. There were no
significant changes in the nature of principal activities in the company during the financkzl year,

The Company does not have gy holding company and neither have any interest in subsidiary and associate companies.

The company merged with Everast Insurance Company Limited and commenced joint operation in the name of the merged entify, Himalavan
Evarest Insurance Limited from Srawan 1, 2078 (July 17, 2022,

I : Basis of preparation of financial statlements
The principal acoounting policies appliad in the preparation of these financial statemants are set out below. These policies have been consistantly
applied to all the vears presanted, unless otherwise stated

2.1 Reporting period and approval of financial statemant

8. Reporting dates
The company follows the Nepalase financial year based onthe Nepalese calendar starting from first day of Srawan of each year (mid-July) to the
last day of Ashad (mid-July) of the next year.

i, Approval of fimancial statements
This finzncial statermant was approved for Issue by the Company's board of directors on January 10, 2024,

£.¢ atatement of compliance

These financlal statements, which comprisa the statement of financial position, statament of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive
income, statemant of changes in equity, statemeant of cash flows, and notes along with the ralevant presentation requirements therato have
bean prepared in all material aspects under Mepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) laid down by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB),
and comply with requirements of Company Act, 2063 of Nepal and applicable directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and required
disclostres as par Securities Board Nepal. The Company adopted NFES from Srawan 1, 2074 {(Juby 16, 2017). The format usad in the preparation
and prasentation of the financial statements and disclosures made therain also complies with the spacifled formats prescribed in the directivas
of Nepal Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have baen preparad on a going concern basis, The term NFRS, Includes all the standards and the refated interpretations
which are consistently used,

£.3 Basis of measurement
These financlal statemeants are prapared under the historical cost convention, except for certain assets and labllities measured as follows as
follows:

a. Investmant in equity instruments and units of mutual Tunds are measurad al fair valie.

b. Liahility for defined benefit obligations is recognized al the present value of the defined benefit obligation as determinied by the actuary.,

. Insurance contract labilities are actuarially determined values, and these have been measured at higher of such actuarial determined values
under liability adequagy test and regulatory Tequirements as per Section 2, Annaxure 8 ol Actuarial Valuation Directive 2076 issuad by Nepal
Insurance Authority.
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Historical cost is ganerally the fair valeg of the consideration givan in éxchange for goods and services, Fir value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to-transter a liability in an ardarly transaction betwaen market participants at the measurament date, regandiess
of whather that price is directly obsarvable or estimated using anothar valuation echnious

[r-addition, for financial reparting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, or 2, or 3 based on the degrae to which the
inputs to tha fair value measurements are nhservable and the significance of the inputs used for fair value measuremant in its entirety, which
2re dascribod as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the antity cam access at the measuremant
dats;

Level 2 - Inputs are inputs, ofher than quoted prices Included within Level 1, that are obsarvable for the asset or liability, sither directly or
indiractly; and

Leyval 3 - Inputs are gnobservable inputs for the asset or lability,
The Company presents its statemnent of financial posttion broadly in the arder of liguidity.

2.4 Usa of estimales and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in comformity with NFRS requires management fo make judgments. estimates, and assumptions that
aftect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure 'of contingent assets and
[iabilities at the dave of the financial statements, and the reportad amounts of revenues and expenses during the yvear, Actual results could difter
from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an angoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates dre
recogmsead in the period in which the estimate is nevised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision
and future pariods i the revision affects both current and tuture pariods.

The followings are the key assumptions conceming tha future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of cawsing a matarial adjustmeant to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Critival accounting estimates ! judgements Disglosure note
Unexpirad risk reserve (URR) Note 3:11{a)

Provision for gross cutstanding claims (OCR) Nota 3:11{b})

Provision for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) Nota 3:11{c)

Employes bensfs Nole 3.12(a), (b} nd (¢
Useful lives of property, plant and equipmeant Note 3.1(d) .

Usaful lives of intangible assats Note 3:2(b)v)

¢. Insurance conlract liakilities

For insurance contracts, estimates have to be mada both for the expected ultimate cost of ciaims reported at the date of statement of financial
pocition and for the expectad ultimate cost of clzims incurred, but not yet reported (IBNR). |t can take significant period of time before the
ultimate claims cost can be established with cartainty. The main assumption undertying estimating the amounts of outsianding claims is the
past claims developmant axperience.

d. Defined benefit obligation

The defined benefit obligation liability of the Company is based on the actuarial valuations carried out by an independent actuary. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates. expectad rates of return on assets, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due
to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-tarm nature, a defined banefit obligation is very sensitive to changes
In these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at ezch reporting date.

&. [fseful fives of property, plant and eguipment and intangfble assels

Ag described In the significant actcounting policies, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets at the end of each reporting pariod.
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2.5 Funclional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presanted in Nepaiese Rupees (Bs.), which is the functional and presentation curréncy of the Company. Amounts
in the financial statements are roundad off to the nearest rupas.

2.6 Going concam

The bozrd ot directors have made assessment of the Company's ability to continue as going concern and are satisfied that it has the resources to
continie In business for the foreseeable future, Furthermaore, the managemant is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's abifity to continue as going concern and accordingly, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the basis
of going concarn.

2.7 Changes in accounting policy

Accounting pelicies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules znd practices applied by the Company in preparing and prosenting
financial fatements. The Company changes its accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or resuits in
the financial statemants providing refiable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the
company’s financial position, financial performanca, or cash flows.

2.8 Mew stapdard issued but nol yet eifective

Mew standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by ICAN with varving effective dates. Those
became applicable from the financial year beginning from Srawan 1, 2081 (July 17, 2023).

Standards issued but not yet affective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are-sat out below, The Company will adopt these
standards from thelr effactive dates.

a. MFAS 17 = Insurance Confract

MFRS 17 and will replace NFRS 4 — Insurance Contract. Undar the NFRS 17 modal, insurance contract fiabilities will be calculated as the prasent
value of futura ingurance cash fiows with a provision for risk. The discount rate will refiect current interest rates, NFRS 17 requires an entity to
recognise profit as it delivers insurance services, rather than whan it recaived premium and to provide information about insurance contract
profit that an antity expects to recognise In the future period

NFRS 17 becomes effective from financial year commencing from Srawan 1, 2081 {July 16. 2024). The management of the Campany Is
assessing the potantial impact in its financial statemaents from the application of this standard.

2.9 Difsedting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are ofiset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position, only when thers is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on 3 net basis or {o realize the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit ar Loss unless required or permitted by Nepalese
Finaneial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the Internaticnal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard
Interpretations Committes (SI1C) and as specifically disclosad in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

2.10 Presentalion of financial statlemeoents
The assets and liakilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped by the natere and listed in an order that
reflects their refative liquidity and maturity pattern.

2.11 Maleriality and aguregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial sfatements. [tems of dissimilar nature or function are presented
separately unless that are material

I . sionificant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statemants. These policies have beaen
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

3.1 Property. plant and eguipment

8. Recopnition of property, plaint and egoipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipmant {s recognised as assets if and only If:
= [Lis probable that future economic benefits associated with the Itam will flow the Company; and

= The cost of the item gan be measured reliably.

th

P,
& "% Himalayan Everest
“ nerenee Limitea

finesis! feport 2079-80



b. Imitial recognifion
Proparty, plant and eguipmant are stated at historical cost less depraciation, and impairment loss, i any, Historical cost includes axpanditure
that is directiy attribatable to the acquisition of an item of property, plant and eguipment.

&, Suhsequent recognition

Subseguent costs ara includad in the asset’s carrying amount o recognised as a separate asset, 45 appropnate, only whan it is probable that
future economic banafits associated with the ftem will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. The carrying
amaunt of any component accounted for as 2 separata asset is derecognised when raplaced. All other repairs and maintanance aro charged o
siatement of profit or less during the reporting period in which they are incurmed,

o Depreciation meliod, esfimated vseful! lives and residual value

Cepreciation is calcutated vsing the-straight-line method over their useful fives. The estimated usetul lives of property, plant and equipment is

as foliows!
Class of property. plant and eguipment Useful lite
Building 60 years

i L&&r:uld proparty 5 years
Furniture and fistures 10 yaars

_ Computes 5 yeurs
(fiice aquipment 5 years
Other assats 10 years
‘ehigles 10 years

Freahold tand is not deprociated.
Residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial vear end and adjusted i appropriate.

8. Disposals and derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment /s derecognised upon dispesal or when no future economic benefits are expectad to arise from the
continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference betwaen the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the preperty. plant and eguipmeant and is recegnised in the statement of profit
or loss.

. Impairment of properdy, plant and equipment

Proparty, plant and equipment are tesiad for impairment whenaver events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverabie amount.
The recoverabla amount is the higher of an asset's fair value lass costs of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assacsing impairmant,
assets are grouped at the lowest ievels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely Independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-panerating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

0. Capital work-in-progress

Thesa are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of bulldings, major ptant and machinery and system developmant
which are to be capitalized. Capital work-in-progress are capitalised to relavant asset when it is availzble for use. Capital work-in-progress s
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, If any,

th

e
- 3 % Hirnalayan Everest
@

Aiieaf Fupar] 2079-80



3.2 Goodwill and intangible assels
2. Goodwill on busingss comibipalion

I Indtial recagnition

Goodwill on business combination is mezsured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumad. If, after reassessmant, the nat of the acouisition-date amounts of the
idantifizble assets acquired and fiabilities assumad axceads the sum of the consideration transferred, the excess is recognisad immediately in
the statermant of profit or [08s as a bargain purchasea gain,

il Amortization and impairment

Goodwill is not amortised but is raviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairmaent testing, goodwill is allocated to
gach of the Company’s cash-gensrating units expected to banefit from the synargies of the combination. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is lass than the carmying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrving amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent pericd.

b, @ther intaegihle assefs

iil, Initigl recognition

Intangible assets ara recognisod i it is probable that futued economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the
cost of the asset can be measured raliably. Intangible asset acquired separately are measurad at cost Cost includas expenditure: that &s directly
attributable to the acquisition of an item of intangible assets. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumuolated
amartisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any

W Subseguent recoanition
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic banefits embodied in the specific assat o which it refates. All
othier expenditure is recognised in-statemeant of profit or loss as incurred.

w Amortizaion

The pseful lives of Intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An item of intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
usetul life when, basad on an analysis of all of the-relevant factors, there i5 no foreseaable imit to the pariod ovar which tha asset is expected
penerate net cash inflow for the Company,

The useful economic life of an intangible asset is considered finita whena the right to such asset is limited to a spacified period of time by contract
or by the likelihood of technolagical obsolescence. Intangible assats with finite lives are amartised using the straight-line method to write down
the cost over ifs estimated useful economic lives and is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Ciass of Intangible assols Usaful lifo
Enterprise’ Resource Planning Software 15 years
Other software B years

The amortization methed, useful lives and residual values are reviewed-at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate,

w. Derscagnition
Intangible assats are derecognised upon disposal or when no future ecenomic benefits are expected from their use. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the assat, [s recognised in staternent of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Wil impairmeant

The Company assesses ab gach reporting date whether there is any indication that intangible assets may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, If any. An Impairment loss is recognised in the
statemant of profit or loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverabls amount IS higher of an asset's
fair value l2ss cost of disposal and value in use. Value In wse s based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and risk specific to the assets,

Intangible assets with infinite usetul life swch as license are not amortized but are assessed for Impairment in each reporting period or as and
when thera is indication of Impairment. The assessment of infinite [ife is reviewed each reporting period to determine whether the infinite life
continues to be supportable.
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3.3 Investment properties

Proparty that is hald for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investmant property. Investment properties are
mieasired intially at cost, including related transaction cost. | is subsequently carried at cost less accomulated daprociation. Subsequent
expanditure is capitalised to the assaet’s carrving-amount onky when it is probable that foture ecanomic benafits associated with the axpenditure
will flow to the Company and the cost can be measured relizbly. All ather repairs and maintanance costs are expensad when incurrad

Land'is carried at historical cost however, bulldings are depraciated over their astimated useful llves as mantionad above.

[nvestment properties are derecognised sither when thoy have been disposed ot, or when the investment proparty is parmanantly withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefit is expacted from Its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirameant or disposal of an Investmant
proparty are recognised in tha statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal,

Transters are mads to {or fram) investmant property only whan there is a change In use. For a transfer from investment property, the Company
accounts-for such proparly in accordance with the policy stated under praperty. plant and equipment up to the date of change in use
As an the date of the statement of financial position, the company dees not have any investment proparties.

3.4 Cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents include eash on hand, balances with banks and financial institutions in current and short-term deposits that are
readily convertible to knewn amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valua,

3.5 Financial Instruments, linancial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilfies are recegnised when the Company becomes pariy to the contractual provisions of the refevant instrument
and ara initially measueed at fair valps, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
iabilities are added to or deductsd from the fair value on initial recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities.

8. Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measuremeant catagorias:

= those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive incoma, or throwgh profit or less), and

»those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the Company's business maodel for managing the financial assets and the contractual tarms of the cash flows.
Forassets measured at fair value, gains and losses are gither recorded in statement of profit or loss or other comprehansive income.

The Company reclassifies financial assets when-and only when its business model for managing these assets changes.

b. Financial assels

Financiai assets include loans, advances, insurance receivablesand cash and cash equivalents. Such assets ara initially recognised at transaction
price when the Company becomes party to contractual obligations. The transaction price includes transaction costs unless the assat is being
measired at fair value through statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

L Subseguen! medaurameant

Financial assats are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through othar comprehensive income or fair value through profit or
loss on the basis of both (a) the entity’s business maodel for managing the financial assets and (b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

Financial asseals are classified as those:

» Measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost, if it is held-solely for collection of cash fliows arising from payments of principal and interest.
Interest income in these financial assels is measured using the effective intarest rate method,

Fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions. advances, insurance receivables and cash and cash equivalents are classified for
measurement at amartised cost.

= Meazured at fajr valua through other comprehensive income (FYOCH)

A financial asset 5 measured at FYOCH, if it is held with an abjective to coliect contractual cash flows and sefling such financial assat and the
contractual cash flows are solely paymeants of principal and interast on the principal outstanding. |t is subsaguently measured af fair value with
fair value movements recognised in the other comprehensive income (OC), except far the recognition of impairmeant gaing or losses, Interest
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revanue and forgign axchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss praviously recognised in OC1 is reciassified from eouity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains or Iosses, interest income
from these financial assets is included in investment income using the etfective intarast method,

Howeaver, in respect of particular imsestmeants in aquity instrumaents that would otherwise be measurad at fair value through orofit or 1oss, an
imavocabla election at initial recogniticn may be made to present subsequent changes in Tair valee through other comprahensive incoma.

« Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FYEL)
Ascets that do not mest the criteria for amortised cost or FYOCH are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Interest incoma from these
financial assets is included in investment income.

i, Deraopgnition of fmancial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the right to recefve gash flows from the assets has expired. or has baen transarred, and the Company
has transferrad substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets are also derecognised upon writa off, Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an fem of financial assel is determined as the difference betwesn the sales procesds and s carrying
amount and s recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

i, Impairmant of fingnoial 855614

The Company assesses at each reparting date whather a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) held at amortised cost and financial
assets that are measurad at fair value through otiier comprehensive incoma are impaired based on evidence or information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Loss allowances is recognisad for all financidl assets which are considerad-as doubtful of recovery. Losses arsing
from impairment are recognised in statement of profit or loss,

¢. Firancial fiabilities
Insurance payabies, sundry craditors and other financial liabifities are initially recognised at the value of the respective contractual obligations.

I Subseqguent measuramant

After initial recognition. financial liabilities are subsequently measurad at amortised cost. Any discount or premium on redemption / settlemant
is recognised in the statemant of profit or loss as finance cost over the lite of the liability using the eitective Interest method and adjusted to the
[Egiility fipure disclosed in the statement of financial position,

il Dersgognition
Financial liabilities are deracognised when the liability is extinguished, thatis, when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancellad or expired.

d. (ffsetiing financial instruments

Financial assets and financial fiabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statemant of financial position if there is a currantly
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie on a net basis, to realise the assets and settla the
[fahilities simuitaneously,

3.6 Reinsurance assets

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business to recognise reinsurers through formal reinsurance arrangements.
Reinsurance assets include balance due from reinsurer for unexpired premium reserve and for outstanding claim reserve. Amount recoverable
from reinsurers are @stimated in 2 manner consistent with the ratio of unaxpired premium reserve to pross premiums that have been ceded and
with the ratio of outstanding ciaim reserve recoverable from reinsurers in accordance with the refated reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assels is measured In gross in the statement of financial position uniess a right to offsat exits. Whare the right to offset axits, thess
ara measured at net basis.

Reirsurance assets are reviewsd for impairment at each reporting date, or mare frequently, when an indication of impairnyent arises during the
reparting period. Impairment occurs, when there is objective evidence as a result of an event that cccurred after initial recognition of reinsurance
asset that the Company may not receive all outstanding amounts due undar the terms of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable
Impact on the amount that the Company will recelve fram the reinsurers.

The impairment loss, if any, is recogrised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reinsurance assets are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expira or when the contract is transferred to another party.
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3.7 Current tax assefs and current tax liabilidies

Currant tax assets of the company include the amount of advance income tax paid to the Inland Revenue Departmant and tax deductad at source.
Similarly, current ta lizbilties includa the tax provision made for the vear,

Currant tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expectad to be recoverad from or paid to Inland Revenue Departmant in respect of the
currant year, using the tax rates and tax ws anacted orsubstantively enacted an the reporting date and any adjustmaent to tax payabla in respect
of prior years.

Currant tax assets and current tax lizbilitins 2re shown in net in statement of financial position of the company as thers exist condition to set off
both assets and lizbilities.

3.8 Diher assels

Deferrad fees and commission expenses

Faes and commission expenses incurred during the financial year arising from writing or ranawing of insurance contraots are deferrad and
amaortised aver the period in which the related revenues are earned. All othar costs are recognised as expenses whan incurred

3.9 Share capital

Financial instruments issuad by the Company are classified as equity only to the axtant that they do not miget the definition of a financial liability,
3.10 Reserve and funds

a. Share premivm

it represents amount collected in excess of the face value of shares o auction of unsubscribed right shares. This amount may be utilised for
issuing fully paid bonus shares to the ordinary shareholdars.

b. Revalvalion reserves
Represents unrealised gain on revaluation adjustment to carrying amount of assets and cannot be used for distribution.

¢. Special reserve

Represents appropriztion of 50% of profit for the year as per Insurance Act, 2079 to categories based on the weight of their contribution to
revanue. The fund maintainad for one category cannot be utilized to bear the liabilities retating to other catagory of Insurance Business. During
the year, the amount appropriated to the fund is based on the profit for the vear as per the financial staterent prepared undar regulator's
directive, Also represants all the reserves creatad before financial year 2064-65.

d. Capital reserve
It reprasents funds used for contingencies or to offsat capital losses. It is darived from the accumulated capital surplus of a company, created
out of capital profit

8. Capital adjustment reserve

The Cempany has acquired erstwhile Everest Insurance Limited in the reporting period which and [ts joint operation was started from 15t Srawan,
2079 (17th Juky, 2022). For the consideration of acquisition, the Company has issued 10,664 276 number of equity shares at swap ratio of
104:85 (85 shares of Himalayan General Insurance Company Limitad for every 100 shares of Everest Insurance Company Limitad). Accounting
for acquisition of Everast Insurance Limited has bean done as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) 3 - Business Combination along
with considering the explanatory notes prescribed by the Institute of Chartared Accountants of Napal by recognizing goodwill of Rs. 2 860,535
and As, 184,002,024 of swap adjusted paid up capital by creating capital adjustment reserve.

I. Calastrophe reserves
Reprecents appropriation of 10% of profit for the year remaining after appropriation to insurance fund, segregated for significant Insurance
claims that might have adverse impact on financizl stability. This reserve is not availabla for dgistribution to the ordinary shareholders.

4. Carporale social responsibflity reserve
Represents reserve established under regulatory requirement by apportioning 1% of profit for the year before considering deferred tax impact
for the year to be expended towards CSE initiatives.

h. Fair value reserves
Represents the cumulative gains (net of lasses) arising on the revaluation of equity Instruments and units of mutual fund measured at FVOCL
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i. Acfearial reserves
Represants the cumulative gains / (Iosses) arising on actuany valuation of gratuity, a defined benefit plan resulting from experience adjustment (the
eifects of differences between the previous actuanial assumptions and what has cccurred; and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.)

i. Deferred fax reserve
Reprasants amount appropriated from retained earnings for an amount egual to deferred fax assets recognised and amount set aside for
corporate social rasponsibility as par the regulator's directive

& Reguwlalory reserves

Represents axcess amount of retained earnings and profit reported under financial statement prepared under NFRS compared to retzined
earmings and profit reported ender GAAP, This amount has been appropriztad to retained earnings after regulatory allocations stated by Insurar's
Financial Statement Dirsctives, 2080 during this reporting pariod

3.11 Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities include outstanding claim reserve (OCR) Including Hability recognised fer incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims
and provision for unearnad risk premiums (UPR). Insurance contract liabilities are derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is
discharged or-is cancellad,

8. Ungarned rigk reserve (UAR)

Inearned risk reserve includes a provision for unearned premium and any additional provision for premiem deficiency. Unearmed risk premiums
reprasent premiums received for risks that have not yet expired and Is generally released over the tarm of the insurance contract and is
recognised as earned pramiums

As required by MFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adequacy test (LAT) with raspect of URR on general insurance
contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability for URR s recognised at higher of the lability assessed by actuary in LAT or lkability
required under ragulatory reguiremants at 50% of nat premivm received.

b, Dufstanding elaim reserve (OCR)

Dutstanding claim reserve is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whather reported
or not, tegether with related claim handling cost and reduction for the expected value of salvage and othes racoverios. Delays are exparienced in
notification and settlement of certain types of claims; therefore, the ultimate actual cost of the clalims cannot be ascertained with certainty as at
the date of statement of financial position

Ag reguired by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts, the Company performed liability adaquacy test (LAT) with respect of OCR on general insurance
contracts with the assistance of an external actuary. Liability far OCR is recognised at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or [Eability
required under regulatory requirements:

e. Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) ciaims are actuaridlly computed as required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts. Liability of IENR is recognised
at higher of the liability assessed by actuary in LAT or liability requirad under regulatory requirements at 15% of net outstanding claims.

d. Liabilily Aoequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unaxpired risk and a liability adequacy test is performad to detarmine whether there is any
overall excess of expecied claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearmed premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows: after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on asseis refating to the relevant nen-life insurance
technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums s Inadequate. the deficiancy is recognized in
the statemant of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability,

3.12 Empioyee benglits

8. Shorl-term ebligations

Expanses in respect af short-term bensfits are recognised on the basis of amount paid or payable during which services are rendered by the
employaes. Liabilities for salary and allowances that are expected to be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the financial year in
which the employees render the related services are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settied.
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b. Posi-employment abligalions

i Defined contribution plan

These are plans in which the Company pays pre-defined amounts to publich administered funds as per Incal regulations and does not have any
lagal ar informal obligation to pay additional sums. These comprise of contributions to the social security fund with the governmant on account
of provident fund. The Company's payments to the defined contribution plans are recognisad as emploves benafit expenses whon thay ara due.

i, Defined beneli pian

The Company’s defined benafit plans comprise of gratuity, The liability or asset recognised in the statemant of finangial position in respect of
defined benafit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annusty by actuaries vsing the projectad unit credit method.

Sarvice costs and net interest axpense or income is refiected in the statemant of profit or loss. Remaeasurement gains and losses arising from
expariance adjustments and changes in actuarial assamptions are recognised in the period inwhich they occur, directly in ather comprehensive
income. They are Included in OC1 reserve as actuarial resarve in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of financial position.
Gratuity is funded and deposited with Citizens Investment Trust, towards mesting the gratuity obligation.

&, Long-ferm employes Benelils

Tha liahilities for earnad leaves are not expacted to be settied wholly within 12 months after the and of the pericd in which the employess render
the related service. Leave Encashment has besn computed using actuanial assumptions and thase are measurad at the present value of expected
futura payments to be made in respact of services provided by employess up to the end of the year using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the and of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions. This benafit
i5 unfurded

d. Tarmination benefifs

Termination banefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirament date, or when an employes
accepts voluntary retiremant in axchange of these benefits. The Company recognises termination bensfits at the earlier of the following dates:
- when the Company can no fonger withdraw the offer of those banefits; and

- when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and involves the payment of termination banefits,

The termination benefits are measured: based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case of voluntary retiremeant
SCNEmE.

3.13 Revenue recognition

8. Gross premivms

Gross premiums comprise the total premium received or receivabla for the whole period of cover provided by insurance contract entered during
the financial year. Gross pramium is generally recognised upon inception of the insurance contract policy. Upon inception of the contract,
premiums are recorded as and-are-earned primarily on a pro-rate basis-over the term of the coverage of related insurance contract.

Unexpirad risk reserve are those proportions of premiums written in a financial year that relate to periods of risks after the reporting date.
Unexpired premiums are calculated on 365 days basis for all insurance contracts having an insurance coverage period of one year. Howewver,
in the case of marine cargo policies, having an insurance coverage period of less than ona year, unearned premiums are calculatad on 365
days basis of the Insurance contract and where the insurance coverage is fora period of more than one vear or in the absence of daa required,
unearmed premivms are calculated at 50% of the gross premiums.

The propartion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as provision for unexpired risk reserve which s included under liabilities.

b. Premiums ceded o reinsurers
Gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognised as an expense on the earlier of the date when the premiums are payable or
when the policy becomes effective. Reinsurance pramiums are based on the rates agreed with reinsurers.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of pramiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.
Unearned relnsurance premiums are deferred over the term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over
the tarm of the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.
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Reinsuranca premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presentad as negative items within pramiums and nat
clzims, respactivaly, because this is consistent with how the business is managed.

¢. Fees and commission inrcome

Fees and commission income aarned during the financial year arising on promium ceded to reinsurers are recognised when the related service is
parformed In accordance with the insurance contract. The portion of fees and commissicn incame for which the insurance comtact is not expired
is deferrad and amortised over the period in with the mlated ravanues ang eamead,

d. Imvestment income

i Interast income
Interest incoma is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interast mathod.

i, Dividend incame
Dividerd income from investments in equity instruments and from investment in units of mutoal funds is recognised when the right to receive
dividend is established.

8. Net realized gains and losses

Mat realised gains and losses recorded in the statemant of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets and properties. Gains and
Iossas onthe sale of investmaents are calculated as the difference betwesn net sales procesds and the origingl or amortised costand are recorded
on occurrence of the sale transaction.

3.14 Benelits and claims

8. Gross benelits and ciaims

Claims include all elaims accurring during the financial year, whather reported or not togather with claims handling costs that are directly refated
to the processing and seftlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, amd any adjustmants (o claims outstanding
from pravious years. Claims outstandingare assessed by review of individual claim files and estimating changes in the uttimate cost of settling
claims.

The provision In respect of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is actuarially determined based on the past experience and trends. Tha
provisions for claims are fairly stated based on the information currently available, the oitimate lakility will vary as a resuit of subsequant
information and events which may result in adjustments to the amount reported. Such amounts are recorded and reflectad in such subsequant
periods.

b. Claims recovered from reiRsurers
Claims recoverad from reinsurers are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised according to the terms of the relevant
insurance contract

3.15 Producl elassificalion

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company has accepted significant insurance risk from the policyholders by agreeing to
compensate {ke policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversaly affects the policyholders. As a general guideline,
the Company determines whather It has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not
pceur, Insurance contracts can aiso transter financial risk. The Company has following porticlios under which it operates jts business:”

4. Fire portfolio

Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance. otherwise than Incidental to seme ather class
of insurance business, against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion. storm and other occurrences customarily included among the
rigks insured against in the fire insurance business.

b. Mofer porifolio
Mator insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance against loss of, or damadge to, or arising out
of or in connection with the use of motor vehleles, inclushe of third-party risks but exclusive of transit risks.
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n

&. Marine porifolip
Maring insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance agains! I0ss of consignment of goods during
transit.

d. Enginearing porifafio
Enpineering insurance business means the insurance that orovidas economic safoguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project,
instaiation project, and machines and sauipment in project oparation.

&. Micro porifolio
Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has great potential 1o provide value to low-income farmars and their
communities, both by protecting farmers whan shocks cccur and Dy encouraging greater investmant in crops.

. Avigfion porifolio
Aviation Insurance provides coverage for kull josses as well as liability for passenger injuries, anvironmantal and third-party damage caused by
aircraft accidents.

. Catife and crop portfolie
Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damage to cattle and crops.

h. Miscelfangous porfioiio
All tha Insurznce business which doas not fall in above categories fall under miscellaneous insurance business. Group personal accidents,
medical insurances, professional indemnity insurance gto. fall undar this category of business.

3.16 Borrowing cos!

Barrowing cosis directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assats, which are assets that necessarily take
& substantial period of tima to get ready for their intended use or sale, are-added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their interded use or sale.

Interest income earnad on the temparary investmant of specific borrowings pending their expenditure or qualifying assets is deducted from the
Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All othar borrawing costs are recognizad in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.17 Cash low siatement
Cash Fows are reponed using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash payments are disclosad as cash flows,

3.18 Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or containg, a lease. A contractis, or comtaing, a kease if it conveys the right
to control the wse of an identified asset for a pariod of time in exchange Tor consideration,

Company as lessee

Right-oi-Usa (ROU) assets ase recognised at inception of 2 contract or arrangement for significant lease components at cost less leass incentives,
if any. ROU assets are subsequently measured at cost [ess accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of ROU asseis
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cost incurred and lease paymeants made at ar before the |ease commengoemant
data. RO assets are generafly amortised over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of the underlving assets on a straight-ling
bazis. Lease term is determined based on consideration of facts and circumstances that creata an economic incentive to exercise an extension
option, or not to exgrcise a termination option. Lease payments associated with short-term leases and low valoe leases are charged to the
statement of profit and loss on a-straight-line basis over the termn of the relevant lease. The Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be mada on the date of recognition of the lease. Such lease liabilities do not Include vasiable lease payments
(that do not depend on an index or a rate), which are recognised as axpense in the periods in which they are incurred. [nterest on lease iabillty
ig recognised using the effective Interest method.

Lease labilities are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. The carrying amount
of |ease liabilities i3 also remeasured upon modification of lease arrangament or upon changa in the assessment of the lease tarm. The effect of
guch remeasuremants is adjusted to the value of the ROU assets.
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3.19 Income fax

a. Corramt tax
Currant tax in the statement of profit or loss is orovided 25 the amount of tax payabla in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates
and fax |&ws applicabla during the pariod, togather with any adjustment to tax pavable in respact of previouws years.

b. Deferred lax

Deferrad Incomia tax is provided in full, using the liabilfty method, en temporary difierences arising between the tax bases of assets and Eabilities
and thair carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferrad Income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting panod and are expacted to apply when the retated deferred incoma fax asset is realised or the dederred
income fax Gability is setfied.

Daferrad tax assats are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unusad tax losses only if it is probable that the future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses,

Daferrad tax refating to items recognized outside the statement of profit or loss is recognized ocutside statoment of profit or loss, Deferred tax
items are recognized In correlation to the undariying transaction either in other comprahensive income or directly in eguity.

Daterred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities. Current fax assets
and tax liabilities are offsat wherse the entity has a legally enforceable right to ofiset and intands either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the [ability simuitanaoushy.

Carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced o the extant that it is no longer probable that sutficiant
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defarred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferrod tax assets are reassessed
af each reporting date and are recognized $o the extant that it has become probabie that future taxable profit will-allow the defarred tax asset to
be recoverad,

3.20 Provisions, confinoent liabilities and contingent asseis

8. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal ar constructive obligation as a nesult of past events, and it is probable that an
outtiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably astirmated. The carrying amounts of provisiens are
reviewead at each date of statement of financial position and adjusted to reflect the current best estimata.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required 1o settie the present obligation at the
enid of the reporting pariod.

b. Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized only when there js a possible obligation arising from past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in tenms
of future cutfiow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obfigation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on-an ongoing basis and
only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for,

&. Gontingent Assels
Contingent assets whera it Is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not recognized but are disclnsed in the
financial statements.

3.1 Foreign currency transaclions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the axchange rates at the date of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactiens and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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3.22 Dividend distribution
Dividends paid are recognised in the pariod in which the interim dividends are approved by the board of directors, or in respact of the final
dividand when aporoved by shareholders,

3.23 Earnings per share

Basic earmings per share is caloulatad by dividing the profit attribotable to ownars of the company Dy the weightad average number of equity
shares outstanding during the financial year,

For difuted sarnings par share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares inissug is adjusied to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares,

3.24 Operaling Segment
Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the Internal reporting provided fo the chisf operating decision maker (CODM).
The CODM, wha is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
management team of the Company comprising of the chief executive officer and various department heads,
The Company has identified the following line of insurance business as separate segmant

Fire

Marine

Motor

Enginearing
Aviation
Miscallarsous

Agriculture and

Micro

Segmaents are organised based on business which have similar economic charactaristics as well as which exhibit similarities in nature of
products and sarvices ofiered, the type and class of customer and distribution methods.

Segments includes total profit distribution of the Company to all its line of busingsses. The premium INCOme, reinsurance pramium expenses,
gross claims and claims recoverad from reinsurers, autstanding claims, other direct expenses and income, faes and commission incoma, ather
operating and administrative expenses are allocated to each line of business as per the axisting GAAP,

"Unallocated corporate expenses” include revenue and expenses that relate 1o initiztives / costs attributabla to the enterpiise as a whole and are
ot attributable to segments.
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 {July 16, 2023)

4. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS Amourt in NRs,
Particulars Soltware Goodwill Others Total

Ems carrying amount
Balance as al Shrawan 1, 2078 (July 16, 2021) 8,077,320 . - 8,077,320
Additions during the year
Acqulsition : - - z
Intenal development 4,140 - - 4,108,375
Business combination 3 = . ;
Dispesals during M year : £ = £

Revaluation/zdjustmint - R . .
HIIEI'II:H as at Ashad 32, Eﬂ?! (Jlll'ﬂ 16, EI]EZ} 13,785,692 - - 13,785,642

~ Addilions during the year

Aogulsition 4 fi25,086 2.860,535 - 7,485,621
Intemal development 7 H18 362 z - 7818362

Business combinaticn - . .
Disposals during the year 5 - :

Rievalution/zdjustment - . - .
Balance 3s al Ashad 31. 2080 (July 16, 2023) 26,229,140 2.860.535 - 20.089.675

Accumulated amortization and impairment

 Balance as at Shrawan 1, 2078 (July 16, 2021) 2,375,737 - = 2,315.731
Additions during tha year 2,319,396 - - 2 319, 395
~ Disposals during the year - - - -
[mipairment losses during (he year - - -

" Balance as al Ashad 32. 2079 (July 16, 2022) 4,695,133 - - 4695133
Aequisition - 1,406,041 1,406,041
Additions during fhe year 1,996,314 - 1,996,314
Disposals during e year - - - -
Impairment losses during the year - - . .

Balance as al Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) 8,007,488 - - 8,097,488

Net earrying amount
Balance as al Ashad 32, 2074 (July 16, 2022) 9,090,559 - . 9.000,559
Balance as at Ashad 31, 2080 {July 16, 2023) 18,131,652 2,860,535 - 20992167
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements

For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 {July 16, 2023)

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Ilnvesiment properiios al cosl

Amount in NRs.

Pailgilrs

Land Hullding Tudal

{irorg carmying amount

Halnnce an of Srowan 1, 2070 [July 15, 3881]

Aklflons mirkig the yaar
Agtuisition
Suhsequent expenditure
Assels classified a5 nald for sales
Disposals during the yaar
Transtor! ddjustmaiss

Balnnce au of Ashod 32, 2079 (July 16, 2027}

T Miditdns during the year
Aualsiion
Subisannt expendilum
P.ssats.:[_ﬁirm a6 hald for sales
Dispesals duilng the yea
Tranzier! adjustmarts:

Balance 25 al Ashadl 31, 2080 (July 10, 2023

Aceunilated dugreciiflon and impalrent

~ Baiance us af Srawan 1, 2078 (July 18, 2021]

".!.ddmuﬂadurlnn fhig year
Digpezal during the year
Impairment digring e year
Transfer! adjustmanis -

Balnnce ma af Aakod 32, 2079 {July 16, 202%)

heditimng during the year
Digpoesal curing e year
Impairmsn during the year
Tranzfor! ddjusimonE

Balance we af Ashod 37, 000 (July 16, 2023)

Capiinl work-in-progress
Balnnce oo ol Srawan 1, 2070 |July 16, 2821

Alditiona during the year
Capdalisstion during e vees
Dispiosal during the year
impairrmen? during the year
Transiar! adjustmanis:

Halante ao al Ashid 9, 2074 (July 10, S022)

Additong during the year
Capstalization durng the year
Dispiosal disring the vear
Impairment diering the year
Tranzler adjustmenls

Bainnce e at Askod 31, 2000 {uby 10, 2023}

Met Corrping Amurt

Bulune s &l Ashad 32, 2079 (uly 16, 203F)

_ Balancn bs al Anhad 31, 2080 July 18. 2023

{3} Arnowits recogrised i statmmeil of profit ur loss fer imeestmenl propartios
Paricifars

Rarital Incomi

Dimct aparating sxpsnses from progesty fhat panesated rental incams £ x
Direct aperating xpenses from propedy il do't peeecated retal incame . .

Prodit from imvestment properties Sefone:cepieciation

Deprociaiion charge

Prodlt from investmend properdies

|y Fair vahig of nvestment propariss:

Farlciiars

Ciirran Yaar Previus Year

Land
Huilding

il
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023}

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES) Amount in MRs.
Particulars Currgnt Year Previous Year
Through Through Total Through Thraugh Total

___________________ o SOPL soc! _S0PL socl B
Goadwill #nd intangible assets (1.185.434) - {1.195.484) 1490.004 - 190,004
Proparty, plant and equipmeant (4,596 116) . (4,696,116) (Fd.3100 - (74,3100
Right of use accals i4,342:209) - {4,342 209) - - -
Financial assets at FVTPL - - - - - -
Financial assets at FUTOD! - {3.731 531) {3.731,531) 3 8251988 8251048
Frovigion for ieave 7.037 339 - 7,037,338 2544 504 - 2 544 504
Frovigeon for gratuity 17270214 . 17,270,214 16,0494 448 - 16,894 448
Provigkon for unreafised pramium 6,711,328 . 5,711,328 - - =
Impairment |oss on propesty, plant - - - - - -
and aguipment
|mpairment loss on financial assets T.B71.872 - T.B71.872 - - -
|mpalrment loss on oller assels - - - - - -
Fent gnualzation 254,853 - 254,852 253928 253,028
l.ease fiability 4,617,767 - 4617 767 - - -
licome tax losses = E = B - B
Unsamed pramiums {48,345 634) 148,345 634) (2,439,153} - (2.439,153)
Premium deficienay = E = 6,080,453 - G060 433
|BNR and IBMER B7 54557 = BT 545,547 42.446.871 - 42046871
Dutstanding claims - - - - - -
Margin for adverse devation araz812 - 8,782 812 4,434,010 4,434,010
Relnsurance asset on Uneamed 48,667,114 - 49,667,114 3415867 - 3,415,867
PrEmiLIms
Reinsurance assst on Premium 243,808 - 243.908 (4,817,910} - (4817910
deliciency
Reinsurance dssat on |BMA {64,931.771) - (64, 931,771) (41,110,243) = (41,110,243)
and IBNER Claim
Reinsurance assel an Juistanding clzims = - - - - -
Reinsurance aseef on Margm for (7.052 748) - (7.052 746} (4,067,132} - {4,06713%
advarsa deviation
Deferred fee and commission expanses (7.139,449) - {7.139,449) (5007 .434) = (5.007.434)
Deterred commisslen incoma A).902 819 - 40,982,819 26,956 604 - 28,956,604
Provision for probebla safary 632.0Mm - 682,091 - - -

Total 94,004,254  (3,731,531) 00,362,723  44,8989.547 6,251,988 53,241,535
Doferred fax aseets 231,607 663 111 457 M7
Deferred tax liabilifies {141,334,840) (58,218,182

Movemenis in deferred tox assels! (liabilities)

Pariculars I l:w_re_nl _m: - i _ Flgvlimi Year _

Through Through Total Through Through Tatal
- - S0PL S0C SOFL F0CI

Bafance as 81 Azhad 32, EII]?!EII_!JH!; 186, 2022} A0 BED 54T 8.251, 988 53,241,535 46 542 394 21,790,574 68,332,068
Deferrad tax asset/(liablities} taken over 11,121,243 9,081 453 20,182 696 - - = -
from Evareat Insurance Limitad
Chargad/(oradited) to stateman! of ‘37,863,465 - 37,903,465 11,552,847} = |1,552.847)
profit or loss )
Charged/{oredited) fo other . (21,044,873) (21,044 973) - (13.53B586) (13 538,566)
comprehensive income and equity

Balance a5 al Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) 94,094,255 {3.731.532) 90,362 723 44 9893 547 B,251.988 53.241 535

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited

Notes To The Financial Statements

For Tha Yaar Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023)

B. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES Amount i NRs.
Particulars Currant Year Previous Year
Investment in quated subsidiaries -
Investment in ungquoted subsidianas = =
Less: impairment lossas -
Total - -
Investmeant in quoted subsidiaries
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cosl  Fair Value Cost  Fair Value
...... shares of RS. ... gachaof ... Lid. = =
..... .ghares of Rs...... sachof ... Lid. - -
Tolal - -
Investment in Unguoted Subsidiaries
Parliculars Current Year Provious Year
Cost  Falr Valua Cost  Fair Value

.. Shares of Rs. ... eachaf ... Ltd.
______ ghares of Rs. ... sachaof ... Ltd

Information relating to subsidiaries: The Company does not have any subsidiary companies,

30" | @@ e
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
MNotes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023)

9. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES Amoumt in MAs
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Investment in quoted assaciales = .
Investment in unquoted associates - -
Less: Impalrment Losses - -
Tolal : :

Investment in quoled associates
Particuiars Currant Year Previous Yoar
Cost  Fairvalue  (or) Equily Cost Fairvalue  (or) Equily
melhal method

...... shares of RAs. ... eachof ... Ltd. - - - - - N
woncghares of Rs. ... eachof ... Ltd. = = = = = 3
Add: share of profit or loss for earlier years - - - - - -
Add; share of profit or loss lor current year = & e - - -
Tatal - . . . . g

Investmenl in quoled assoclales
Particnlars Currant Year Previous Year

Cosl Fair value  (of) Equily Cost Fair value {ar) Equily
malhod method

...... shares of Rs. ... gach of ... Lid. e - - - - -
Add: share of profit or loss for earlier years . - - - = =
Add: share of prafit or loss for current year - - - N & i

Total - - - : - -

formation relating o assoelates: The Company does not have any sssociates

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
MNotes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

10. INVESTMENTS Amount in NRs.
Parficulars _@m":‘llr

Imvestments measured al amortised cosl

Previoes Year

1) Investmant in prederance shares of bank and financial instuticns: =

i) Investment in debantures 184,101,630 26,898.000
iily Imvastmant in bonds {Nepal Govermnment/NAB/Suarastead by Nepal Govermment) - -
iv) Fixed Deposit of “A" Clzss Fnancial Institutions “3051,202.500 1,338.012.000
+) Fined Deposit of Inlmstucione Banks - -
vl} Fixad Deposits In "B Class Finaneial Institutions A1B0.000,000 138,500,000
wii) Fixed Deposits In G Class Financial institutions 150,500,000 18,500,000
wiil} Others . :

Lass: Impairment Losses 3 -
Imiestments messured al FUTOCH

iy Investmant in equity instrumants. (quolad) 622 126,672 126,447,084
i) Investment in equily instruments {unguaiad) 114,060,000 164,011,800
i} Investment in mutual funds 52,717 532 al.318.083
i livesiment in debentures 2 B
W) Gthers -

Investmenls messured al FYTPL
iy Investimanl in equily Insteumants (auatad) X :
i} Imvestment in equity instruments (unguotad) - -
fii} lmeestrnant in mutual funds = -
i} Imvastmant in debentures - -
W) Olhers - -

Total 4,654.708.234 1,843,736.872

2. Detalls of Impairmant Losses
Parlicalors Current Year  Previous Year
|meestmant in preference shares of bank and financial institutions - -
Imwgstmant in debentures

[measimant in bonds {Nepal Govermnmaent/NABGuarantead by Napal Government)
Fiad Deposlt with “A™ Class Finangial |nstitutions

Fixad Deposit with Infrastruciure Bank

Forad Deposits with "8" Class Financial Insfitutions

Fixed Deposits with “C" Class Financial Institutions - -
(hars: - -

T :

8 e wtlr

b. Investments having expecled malurilles less than 12 months:
Parleulars Gurrant Yaar Provigis Year
Imyestmant in aquity instruments (quoted) .

Imvestmeant in eguity instrumenis (unquoted) = -
Imeastmant in mutual funds -
Imeastrmant i preferance shares of bank and financiad institutions .
[mastmant in debentires -

LI B T |

Imepatmant in bonds (Nepal Govermnment'/NAB Guaranteed by Nepal Govermment) .
Fixad Deposit with "A™ Class Financial Institutions 2,792 202 500 1,302 500,000
Foied Deposit with Infrastructure Bank - -
Fivad Daposits with “8" Class Finansial Institutions 476,000,000 fid, 000,000
Fixad Deposits with “C" Class Financlal Institutions 148,500,000 13,000,000
Dthars . -
Total 3,416,702 500 1.468.500.000

¢. The Company has earmarked investments amounting 1o Rs. 3,283,202,500 (2078-79: Rs. 985.500,000 ) with banks.

d. The rate of interest on fixed deposits ranges from 6.5% o 11.1% (2078-79: 6.5% to 11.1%) lor deposits with commercial banks. 8% to
12% (2077-78: 7.5% to 11.5%) tor deposits with development banks and 8% to 12% (2078-79; 7.5% to 11.1%) for deposits with finance
companies.

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023}

8. Information relating to investment in equity instruments Amourit in NRs,
Partienlars Currant Year Provious Year

Cost Falr vilie Casl Fair valoe.
Agriculture Development Bank _ hoarR0d 3825078 28863318 2,500,642
.E.F_i f‘_gg.rpr_ﬂ_:_l-r_ﬁ_pﬁ__nj Limited 1,480,252 1,024 391 1414 #&5 1.110,030
Asian Life Insurance Co Lid 1,538,550 1,819,534 =
Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. = = 5.293-133 7,840,400
Butwatl Power Company Lid. 132,579 152,681 135 275 141,680
Chhimes Laghubitta Blkas Bank Ltd 8072196 4,535,000 . -
Citizen Investment Trust 0.6507.583 8,535 654 5377 6357020
Citizens Bamk Infarnational Limited EI,ETB.'BM 5378537 2.213.436 1,916, 4Eﬂ
Deproge Laghubitta Bittiva Sanstha Limited 4,006,429 3,147 886 3.536.206 9 485,700
GLOBALIME 1507270 12760716 5,570,000 4,338,168
Hlmam:.-arl Bank Lid. 10174020 T !HE -H:IS 1.035.714 815253
Himalayan Distlery Limited 4,488,710 4,799,480 3588770 3,467,970
Hydroelectricity Invastmant and Developmant Company Lid. 158,300 332858 158,300 18, Em
Hydrostectricity Investment asd Development Gomgany L. Prometer Share 10,010,000 10,280,000 R
Tnfinity Laghubitta Bittaya Sanstha Ltd 5,048,191 3,039,455 -
Kumari Bank Limited B3 6,301,845 6122, 5{:_?_ 4,915,767
Lawmi Bank I:erhsl:l - = D 804 683 1 573,075
Machchapuchra Banl Ltd. 5673812 4,734,283 5182022 4 GRE 488
Mahalaxmi Bikas Bank Limited 279,758 2,464,035 1,729,564 1502828
Manjushree Financa Limited _ AARA% 3,765,850 = =
MEGA Bank - . 2,465,807 2,254 360
Mero Micro Finande Bittiva Sanstha Lid, B B . #9645
Mirmice Microfinance Developement Sank Lid 3,918,094 2,686,401 = o
Nabil Barlk Lid. Framoter Share 2,021,709 1,678,358 = =
National Life [nsurance Co. Lid 15,212 B85 14,627 355 6,428,690 5.420,570
Nepal Bangiadesh Bank Limited - - 1,661,424 1,787 520
Nepal Bank Lid, 10,518,488 8,350,607 5775928 5483756
Nepal Deorsanchar Gampany Limited = = - — =
Nepal Invesimant Bank Ltd. 15,233,501 10,853,224 14,006,004 4 686,610
Nepal [nvestment Bank Ltd. Promoter B 447 240,546 501,442 264 478
Hepal Lite Insurance Company Ltd. 15,613,545 14,104,008 10,325,140 5458 281
Nepal SBI Bank Lt 211,561 238700 - =
Nepal Telecom 10,316,182 8,104 358 - -
Nerude Laghubitta Bikash Bank 5,534,482 3,213,648 : 10,360
RIC Asta Bank Ltd. 11,274,759 11,189,405 7840 527 6 480,272
Mirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Biitva Sanstha Limitad 7676239 5.484.2350 2,788,520 2,680,244
HNMB Bank It 11,348,015 £.996.280 9.775.000 8,596,567
NAN Infrastructurs and Development Limited 1672473 1,662,633 1,602,757 1,493,202
Prabha Bank Ltd ~ D33958 -7 156,564 1,827 844 1410408
Prime Commercizl Bank 3.147,169 2.4680,120 2260, 164 2110725
Sanima Bank Lt 5,604,840 4,025,554 4425010 3510828
Shivam Caments Lid. 11,766,869 8,596,542 3,541 953 3,043 EEHHI
Shiree Investmient Finance Co Lid - f
§iﬂ|:|liﬂr!l1a Bank Ltd 15,431,488 12414457 I‘I.EBE.IEE E.IHE.;EIE_
Standard Chartared Bank Lid. 4 507 414 5152572 4,035,975 3,405,010
Sunrise Bank Ltd 1.151,085 944,261 1,018,067 899 208
Surya Life Insurance Company Limilad 7,138,580 £,894,220 £.,375,542 3.692.754
Swabatambin Laghulitt Bitya Sanstha : a0 = 35,070
Synargy Power Davelopment Limited _217eme 1264005 1,786,466 1,358,080
Vijaya Laghubitta Bittaya Sanstha Lid 6,233,339 3,907 240 . -
Nenal Relnsurance Company Limited 323,633 600 395,684,300 . -
Total 603,007,116 622,126,572 154,315,330 126,497,089

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
MNotes To The Financial Statements
Fer The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

101 Infermalion refaling to Investment In mutual lunds Amount in MBs,
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

. Cost Fair value CostFair valoe

NME Hybrid Fund 1,809,829 1,958,525 1577 400 1,766,688
Nabil Equity Fund 1,399,193 1,386,540 1,126,490 1,126,480
Siddhartha Equity Fund 9.813.827 9,282 402 9677 480 0,561,350
Citizens Mutual Fund -1 1,125,815 1,087 142 1,000,000 30,000
'NIC Asia Growth Fund 1,056,690 1,090,740 1,000,000 1,115.000
NMB50 Mutual Fund (NMBS0) 5,072,723 5304000 5000000 6,450,000
Sunrisa First Mutual Fund {SFMF) i ﬂﬂl] oo 1. 1EIB 000 1,000,000 1.150.000
NIBL Sambriddhi Fund 2,002,250 1,624,733 2,000,000 1,734,000
‘Sanima Larga Cap Fund {SLCF) 3,075,936 2 7hiE,092 3,000,000 &, 796,000
Mega Mutual Fund-1 {MEGANMF) B,886,246 5 508,626 4.363.400 3.486.357
Nabil Balance Fund-3 (NBF3) 251,762 214,004 166,700 157,198
'NMB Saral Bachat Fund-E (NMBSBFE) 95,000 95,000 95,000 55,000
Siddhartha Investment Growth Schrme 2 i T::EIB 405 10,097,120 = -
NIC Asia Balance Fund 4234546 3940787 -

Sunrise Focused Equity Fund (SFEF) 2,500,000 2,420,000

Crhizens Super 30 500,000 500,000 -
REB Mutual Fund-2 500.000 500,000 - -
Global IME Balanced Fund-1 41,268 46,709 = -
Kumari Ohanbriddhi Yojana 1,000,000  1,004.000 -

Nabil Balance Fund-2 (NBF2) 16,852 17,600 -
Nmb Sulav investment Fund -2 2501685 2499 498 -
Sanima Growth Fund 31,576 36,014 - -
Tolal 59,314.553 52,717,532 30,006,470 30,318,083
11. LOANS

Parliculars Current Year  Previous Year

Loans measured at amorlised cosl
Loan te amployees
Others

Less: Impairmant losses

Tolal

a. BExpected recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year  Previous Yoar
Loans measured al amoriised cosl < -
Loan to employees

Others

Total_ = =
12. REINSURAMCE ASSETS

Particulars ~ Current Year  Previous Year
Reinsurance Assels an: B L
Uneamed premiums reserve 1.006 606 566 836,069,027
Premium deficiency reserve (813,027) 16,054,699
Dutstanding claims 1691625659 913,645,009
IBMA and IBNER CGlaim 470,183,084 274,080,854
Margin for adverse deviation

Less: lmpairment losses

23,509,153

13,557,108

Total

3.191.111,435 2,054,311.737

3 O ‘ z i i% Himalayan Everest | www. hei.com.ng
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13. INSURANCE RECEIVABLES

Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
Far The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (duly 16, 2023)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Currenl Year  Previous Year
Feceivable from relnsurers 412,982,255 162,395 671
Receivable from other insurance companies 910,567,292 222 756,926
Olhers = 5
Lass: Impairmant losses (169,032.870)  (163180,010)
Total 1,154 516,677 221,872 587

2, Expacted recovery period within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year _ Previous Year
Receivable from reinsurers 243,940,385 1,092,023
Receivable from other insurance companies 910,567 292 220,880,564
Others - -
Total 1,154,516,677 221,972,587

14. OTHER ASSETS

Pariculars Current Year  Previous Year
Capital advances - -
Prepaid expenses s ¥
Claim advance 13,670,424 5,162,704
Advance to suppliars 3125479 -
VAT receivable = =
Statf advances 2,838.651 -
Printing and stationery stock . -
Stamp stock 174,500 200,305
Deferred expenses . -
Deferrad reinsurance commission axpenses G7.691 =
Defarrad agant commission expanses 23730472 16,691 447
Lease receivable . -
Others
Advance to NME Capital Ltd, 53562236 5,720,316
Other advances = 861,000
Lass: Impairmant losses - -
Total - 48,959,553 28,635,772
a. Expected to be recaversd) settled within 12 months:
Parliculars Currenl Year  Previous Year
Capital advance - -
Propaid expenses - -
Claim advance 13,670,424 5,162,704
Advance to suppliars 3125479 =
VAT receivable - -
Staff advances 2838 651 -
Brinting and staticnery stock - -
Stamp stock 174,500 200,305
Deterred expanses - =
Deferred reinsurance commission expenses 67 691 -
Deferred agant commission expenses 23780472 16,601 447
Lease receivable . -
Others
Advance to NMB Capital Ltd. 5,352,336 6,720,316
Other advances - 861,000
Total 48,959,553 28,635,172
th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31. 2080 {(July 16, 2023)

15. OTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS Amount in NRs.
Parilculars Current Year  Previous Year
Security deposits - -
Accrued inferest 10,681,034 1,892 471
Other receivables - -
Other deposits A0A4TE TAD 3,839,125
Sundry debtors 100,401 618 121,866,293
Dther - -
Advance for expanses = 1,387,025
Balance of plan asset with CIT gratuity fund - 17 856, 566
Less: Impairment losses - <
Total 151,561,392 146,841,880
a. Expected maturifies within 12 months:
Parliculars Current Year  Previous Year
Security deposits . -
Accrued interest 10,681,034 1,892,471
Other receivablas - -
Other deposits . -
Sundry debtors 100,401,618 1,313,252
Other - -
Total 111,082,652 3,206,723
16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Particulars Current Year  Previous Year
Cash in hand 1,200,000 492 907
Chegues in hand = —
Bank balances N -
1) Balance with "A~ Class financial institutions 33,181,818 74,223,275
il} Balance with infrastructure banks = -
i) Balance with “B" Class financial institutions 161,772,243 2617386
i) Balance with “C” Class financial institutions 11,302,293 1,048,336
Lass: Impairment losses - -
Deposit with initial maturity up to 3 months 268,346,840
Others = x
Lass: Impairmeant losses . -
Talal 207,456,354 347,328,744

3 O ‘ z i i% Himalayan Everest | www. hei.com.ng
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Endad Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

17(A). SHARE CAPITAL Amaunt in NRs.
Partizulars Current Year  Previous Year
'ﬂrdinarjr shares
As at Ashadh 31, 2079 1,173509,100  1,100,336,700
Additions during the year
i) Bonis share issued E1,59I!,3'ﬂﬂ 73172400
liy Addition through mergar 1,066,427 600 -
i) Share issued . :
As at Ashadh 31, 2080 © 2.401,535,000  1,173,508,100

Converiible préfurnn{:a siiams i-uquiiir snmpunaﬂi unl'ﬂ
As at Ashadh 31, 2079 - -
Additions during the year
Az at Ashadh 31. 2080 . -
Irredeemable Preference Shares (equily component anly)
~ As at Ashadh 31, 2079 - o

Aclditions during the year - -
As al Ashadh 31, 2080 E _
Tolal 2,301,535,000 1,173,508,100
|, Drdinary Shares - -

Parliculars Curren! Year  Previous Year
Authorised Gapital: - -
50,000,000 nos. of erdinary shares of Bs. 100 each 5.000,000.000  2,000,0:00,000

lssued Capital:

23,015,350 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each 1,173,509,100  1,173,508,100

(2078-7% 11,735,091 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

23,015,350 nios. of ardinary shares of Rs. 100 each 2301535000 1,173,509,100
{2078-7%: 11,735,091 nos. of ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each)
Total 2.301,535,000  1,173.509.100

ii. Preference Share Capilal
Parliculars Current Year  Previous Year
Authorised capital
1o MOS0 convertible preference shares of Re. ., sach = -
1o NO5, irredeemable preferance shares of As. ..., gach - -

. 5, 0 convertible preferance shares of Rs. .. each - -
.o MO, irradeemable preterence shares of Rs..... gach
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
nos. of convertible preference shares of As. ., each - -
v M0E. irredesmable preferance shares of Rs. ... gach - -
Total = =

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For Tha Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023}

17{0} SPECIAL RESERVES Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Year  Previous Year
Balance asat Ashad 32, 2009 (July 16, 2022) FOF. 23178 646,982 160
Acquisition 469,101,333 -
Additions 233,679,146 60,741,007
Utilizations: - -
Balance as al Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) 1.410,503,655 707,723,176

17(E) CATASTROPHE RESERVES

Particulars Curreni Year  Previous Year
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) 26,048,133 19,008,262
Acquisitions 19,328,047
Additians 11,883,057 7,039,921
Uitons L
Balance as at Ashad 31. 2080 (July 16. 2023) © 57.061,187  26.049.183

30" | @@ e

Anesis) Report 2079-80



Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
Far The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

17 (F) RETAINED EARNINGS Amoumt in MHs
Farticulars Currenl Year Previous Year
Balance as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) 68,434,242 82,872 D81
Retzined earning transtered from marger 1,330,505 -
Met profit or loss 445,059 527 150,755,453

Items of OCI recognised directly In retained earnings

Remeasuremant of post-employment benafit obligations - -
Transfer {ta) / from reserves

Revzluation regerves 5

Special resarves {233 6749, 146) (60,741,007}
Capital reserves . _
Catastrophe reserves (11,683.957) (7.039.921)
Carporate social respansibility (CSR) reservas (4673,583) (1,311,402}

Insurance fund including msurance reserves - -
Fair value reserves . -

Actuarial regerves = 1,831 617
Deferrad tax resarves (37 ,983,465) {1,552.847)
Reguiatary reserves 60,282,229 {19,615,240)
Other Reserve - -
Excess defarred tax reserve reverted back to retained eamings 4 558 371

Depreciation on revaluation of property, plant and equinment - -
Disposal of revalued property, plant and equipment .
On disposal of equity instruments measured at FVTOCI (322,532) B4 410

Tax an disposal of equity instruments measured at FYTOGC! - (25,323

Issue of banus shares (61,598,300 (73.172.400)
Transaction costs on ssue of share = ¥
Dividend paid . (3,851,179}
Dividend distribution tax (3.242,016) 2
Otfers : -
Balance as al Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) 226,482,813 68,434,242
1716) OTHER EQUITY Amount in MHs.

Particulars Curren! Year Previous Year
Revaluation reserves T e
Capital adjustment reserves 191,053,635 .
Corporate secial respongibility (CSR) resarvag 4 673,583 -
Insurance fund including insurance reserves > .
Fair value reserves 8,706,300 (19,254 644)
Actuanal reserves z E
Deferrad tax reserves 90,362,723 -
Regulatory reserves = 56,268,032
Cash flow hedge reserves . -
Other reserves - 47,128,788
Total 294,706,841 84,142 177

a'% th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
MNotes To The Financial Statements
Far The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

18. PROVISIONS Aot i MHs
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Fravisions for employes beanefits

iy Provision for feave 1,696,353 B.481 620
i) Pravision for gratuity 1,721,180 -
iii) Termination benefits .

iv) Other employes benafil obligation - .
Provision for tax related lagal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases . -

Others = =

Total 3.4017.533 8,487,680

2. Mevement of provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assals Amounl in NAs

Description Opening Additions Utilised Aevarsed “Unwinding Glosing
_ _ halance during the year  during the year during the year ol discoumt Balance

Pravisions for emploves

benafits

i) Provision for leave 8,481,680 17,314,189 (24,099 516) - . 1,696,353

it} Provision for gratulty - 1,73 180 - - 1721180

iii) Termination benefits . . - . - -

Iv) Other employes benefit & - - £ - -

abligation

Provigion for tax refated - - B . - -

legal cases

Provision for non-tax legal cases . . - . - -

Others - - - - - -

b. Provision with expecled payouts within 12 months: Agraunt i NRs.

Parliculars Currenl Year Previous Year

Provisions for employes bensfits

i}y Provision for leave 5,649 521 2032536

i) Defined benefits plan (gratuity) - 12 506,552
iii} Termination benefits .
Iv) Other employes benefit obligation =

Provision for tax related lagal cases

Provigian for non-tax legal cases = -
Cthers - -
Total 5,649,521 14,530,088

th
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19, GROSS INSURAMCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES Amaunt in MRS
Particulars Gurrent Year Previous Year
Unearned premiums raserve 1,609,616,800 1046,208,608
Pramium deficiancy raserve - 20,231 643
Outstanding claims 1,962 459,720 1,050,069,482
IBNA and IBNER claims 586,187 444 256,999,992
Margin for adverse dewviation 29,309,375 14,780,033
Others = s
Total 4,187,573.339 2,430,289, 758
th
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20. INSURANCE PAYABLES Amaunt i MRS
Particulars Gurrenl Year Previous Yoar
_Payahle 1o reinsurers 285,857,925 180.799.919
Payable 1o other insurance companies 572,703,688 19,505,178
Partfolio withdmwal pramium - -
Outstanding withdrawal claims = E
(thars - -
Total 858,561,613 200,305,085
Payable within 12 months: Amount in MRs.
~ Parliculars Curreni Year Previows Year
Payable to reinsurers 285 857 925 180,799,914
Payablg to other Insurance companies 572,703,688 19,505,176
Portfolio withdrawal pramium - -
Cutstanding withdrawal claims < -
Others - -
Tatal 858,561,613 200,305,095
21. CURRENT TAX (ASSETS)/ LIABILITIES (MET) Amaount in NRs.
Particulars Cuerend Year Previons Year
Income tax llabilities 227989369 65279201
Income tax assets  (210,060.699) (124.828,785)
Tatal 17,927,670 (59,549 584)
22. BOAROWINGS Amaunt I NRs,
Particulars Currenl Year Provious Year
T SRR e
Dabanture .
Term Ioan - bank and financial institution .
Bank overdraft - -
Others -
Tolal
Payalile wilhin 12 monihs: Amount in MRS
Padiculars Currenl Year Previous Year
~ Bond -
Debenture -
Tarm loan - bank and financial institution = -
Bank overdraft .
Others - -
Total -
th
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23. OTHER LIABILITIES Amount In MRS
Particulars Gurrent Year Previous Year
~ TDS payable 7,676,802 8302235
VAT payable 31,104,185 17,493,750
Unidentified deposits - -
Advance premium 29,082,327 E
Insurance service fae payable 27,364,966 20,753,438
Lease liability 16,242 062 846,426
Deterred reinsurance commission income 136,642,729 88,855,346
Deferred incomea . .
Prior period tax lahilities :
Othars
I} Staff vehicle depasit 1,664,468 1,427 255
Total 248,773.619 138,678,450
Payable within 12 months; Amaunt in NRs
Particutars Current Year Previous Year
TDS payable 7,676,882 8,302,235
AT payabie 1104185 17,493,750
Unidentified depogits =
Advance premium 29,082 327 .
Insurance service fee payable 27,364 966 20,753,438
Lease lishility 5,886,957 Bdg,428
Defarred reinsurance commission income 136,642, 729 849 855 346
Deferred Income = =
Others
1) et vehice deposi =
Total 237,558,046 137,251,195
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24. DTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amaunt in MBS

Particulars Gurrent Year Previous Year
" Redeemable preférenr:ﬁ shares
Irrademabla cumulative preference sharas
Refundable share application money .
Payable ta insured 85,734,933 -
Payabie to agents 28,539,399 11,517 975
Payahle to surveyor 1,463,978 -
aundry creditors 27.448,884 61,688,347
Retention and deposits . 221,654
short-term employee benefils payabie
[} Salary payvabla . .
i} Banus payable 71,350,634 20,751,246
iii) Other employee benafit pavable 7872315 1,573,336
Audit fee payahle 891,000 4082 650
Actuarial Fees Payable 376,471 =
Dividend payable 5,352,336 5,720,316
Orthers
iy Retund premium payvable 343,634
Total 228,730,950 102,300,158
Payable within 12 monihs; Amaodrt in NHs
Particulars Currenl Year Previous Year
Redeemable preferance shares -
Irreciamable cumulative preference shares
Refundable share application monsy -
Payable to insurad 85,734,933 -
Payable to agents 28,539,399 11,517,875
Pavable to survayor 1,463,978 -
Sundry craditors 27,449 884 61,689 347
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable
i} Salary payable = -
ii) Bonus payable 71,350,634 20,751,246
iify Other employes benefit payable 7872315 1,573,336
Audit fee payable 591,000 482 650
Actuarial Fees Payable: a4 .
Dividend payable 5,352,338 5,720,316
Others
i} Refund premium payable - 343,634
Total 228,730,950 102,076,504
th

=
e '?. Hirnalayan Everest
WWW. e COm. . InsLrance Limited

Aiieaf Fupar] 2079-80



Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023)

25, BAOSS EARNED PREMILUME Amaunl in MRs,
Partlsulars Hrect Premiums un ralnsurance Gruss change in Gross eamed
prEminms sccoplad imenrned framiwng praminms
Currnal Yuar Provious Yuar Turunl Fowr Prviuas Year Currend Yiear Provivan Yior Currend Yiar Provipus Toar
fire 538,706,116 236331127 U3 675 62,106 584 {4a682528) 600812700 210742074
Mntor TRETE 305 278 045,68 174 945 5249 110,583,977 1'35.&55.154} {51 876.828) 866,351,740 337 997 829
Marine E-E.E?EI.DQ‘." 24245108 &7 360,73 59,200,884} 5,063 587 7,411,892 4700759
Epghnagsing 524 807,412 176305, 558 1,250 5014 247 500 53,199,768 {56,726.264) 477,888 167 161,426,532
Micro 2409 5213 = 240 26,032 877 5Ea 5037, 500
Iiztian 354 A05 187 473304 TER . - B9 187033 {40, TRT 472} 453 706 220 ABA.536.785
Caltle and coop D080, 564 191 667 736 - - 46547 98 {16857 364} 138900 546 114,768,472
Wiscelinngans. B35 180,869 634,536,158 25076 7248 275 {10772 5500 (13X 814272} BS0,324.325 503:3?'0 165
Tutal i 3,778,224, 070 1. 656,457,714 ) 207,722 888 118,834,165 17,766,372 (340, TES, 264} _ﬂ.:IH.TIZ.ﬂﬂﬂ 1,794, m E‘i5
2.1 MRECT PREMIUMSE
Pasticulare Wirw biyiness Ronswal Co-Inaurance Tatal dirpet
Nremi mrimlains fenilising prEimbs
Currenl 'ﬁur Prwious 'I'nlr F‘.'.‘.'.'.'!'u’" Praviaus Yaar Catrend Yaur .Fr_l_s_u.ujn_::q_l__‘{qp_:_ Currend Yiant Praviout Yasr
Fira 203 703 409 216,556,363 216,852,241 10.774.764 28,154 458 ' - £38,708,116 235a 18
hdntnr BRETTAT4Z 265,048,013 186,774 848 14,007 6B 212,745 - ThA. 761378 278005600
Iarine CREEEEE 24,146, 128 - - 3325 602 - 66610097 b B E T e
Enpineenng 433,164,154 170,250,007 ELB4T. 142 5,655 350 3832136 B29.937 122 T 805, B8
Migrg 1.500 5,223 fan - - - 2400 5,223
Riatian FH8.087 565 472 520,869 3994392 74 767 2523230 - 354605187 473,324,756
Cartle and crop Bi3.454,063 181,275 424 706, 50 i = = 1,560, 564 i1 662, 736
Miscallansows ATT. 07,255 S52.775,024 H82, 970,068 281 134 4,284 576 T [36, 110,098 64,436,159
Takal 2,932 402 0o 1,032 BOR 1T 708,443 132 123,011,533 42,370, 045 3,174,204 170 1,156,497 704
26, PREMILIAS CEDED
Particuinrs Premewms ceded fo reingarers Reinsurer’s share of change in Premium ceded
ungamed premipms
l;‘-umnl ‘l'nr Previdue Year Eurm‘l ‘r'imr Previnug 'r'm Gurren! Year Privelous 'I"IIII'
Fin B736TEA3 \89BETGE 126279329 (14536076 473546872 175360716
Mtor 370 412,515 17,380.972 (71,678,648} {10,581 085} 256,733 867 7,380,687
Bfarine e R T 80,045 581 14,858 554 5278003 53.709.193 174323, 784
Engmegsning A0S B30 G 168,366,974 (102006112} 155,206,425 347 524803 115 167,549
Mllcro 480 473152 438 109,383 064 12,208,074 109,304 544 SEA.400:512
Ayaalian B4 386.184 550,114.216 113,858,156 {83.917,725) AEE 215350 4B 196,481
Caltle and crap B1.287 338 105,530, 168 18,081,496 (13,517,888} 89,378,834 BT 61 T
Mincellanenus B O 4G S0 116,866 314} (113,754,988} BT DWSS? (113,788 449)
Total 1.079,078,555  1,673,070,502  AB1004.840  (270.070.795)  2,415,789,085 1,395,856, 707

26,1 PORTFOLIO-WISE DETAIL OF NET EAINED FREMILING

Fanksailnrs

GBS eaneil printams

Premiums pedeil

Ml merned promlams

Ciirrunt Yoar  Pravigun Voor Cuttend Yent  Proviuns Yenr  GutrmmdYear  Provious faar
Fira GOD812 700 212,742.374 73,548 972 75 360 716 127,165 728 17,381 558
Mintor 866,851 740 237,082,825 256,73 067 7,300,887 &10,1%7,873 430,602,542
tarina 7411802 20, T 758 53,703,193 174,323,784 {46,281, 201) {144 523 05)
Enginnasing 477996187 121426532 307 24,803 115,161,548 90,371 364 264,583
Micio LRy 26,037,900 109,309 544 405400572 (109.393.303) (469,362 612)
Heatian 453,706,220 383,536 785 468,215 350 460,198 491 {14, 4719130) (76,658,707
Gattla and crap 136,903,545 114,765 372 99.375.834 #1,812.207 37.524.711 E.953,075
Miscelbineos BE0 324,325 506,371,165 587,080,532 (115,758,448) 205,243,793 A2 158,614
Tatal 3,994, 102,230 1,184.572 615 245,780,036 1,306 856,787 a7H, 319,236 138,715,828
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27, COMMESSION INCOME

Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 21, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Amount In NRs,

Particuiars Reinsurance commission income  Defemed commission incoime Prolil commission Comimission income

Corrent Year Previoos Year Currenl Year Previous Year Currenl Year Previous Year  Currenl Year Previows Year
Fire 3,806,729 36,434,833 22143623  (4389.331) 13,806,287 13.324,152 109,756,639 45,369 654
Motor 42,203,611 4,399,654 17.389.18%  (2.607.751) - 28,390 59 592,796 1.850.293
Maring 9613256 23303754 2626498  (146,147) (1.282677) 337531 10,957,075 23585138
Enginggring 69,983,826 15,206,570 {13.332849) (8.,081,026) 13,864,858 3,420,966 70,515,835 10,546,510
Micro &2 17.452. 369 621 (G14) - - 703 17,451,755
Avtation 18,849,984 57,529.115 (7.414,915) = - BE24119 11435089 66,053,234
Cattle and Crop 16,438,130 17,906,132 4219773 (1,931,608) - - 20,657,903 15,974 524
Miscellaneous 81,172,593 1,010 19204910 (15553,4058) 7,285 057 s 107 642,960 (15552 395)
Total 312,068,611 172,323,437 44,836,844 (32.709.882) 33.653.525 25,665,158 300,558,980 165.278,713
28. OTHER DIRECT INCOME
Parficulars Direct income Others Tofal direct income

Currenl Year Pravious Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Are = - = - = -
Motor - -
Marine - - B
Enginearing - - -
Mizra = = =
Aviation = =2 =
Cattle and crop - -
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total - -

Hirnalayan Everest
Insurance Umited
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Enced Asnad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

29, INVESTMENT INCOME

Amount in MRz

Parliculars Current Year Previous Year
Interest income from hinanclal assets measured at amortised costs
iy Fixed deposit with “A” class financial institutions 245,854 227 118,548,657
i} Fixed deposit with Infrastructure Bank = -
i) Fixed deposit with "B” class financial institutions 51,451,258 3,981,246
v} Fixed deposit with “C” class financial institutions 8932 804 1,293,181
v) Debentures 16,117,525 2.479.210
vi) Bonds {MNepal Government / NRE [ Guavanteed by Mepal Government) - -
wil) Bank deposits other than fixad deposit 9629092 2,874,226
viii} Employes |oan - -
%] Other Intzrest Income 3750927 4,814 886
Finantial assets measurad a FYTOC
iy Interest income on debantures - -
i) Dividend incame 3,034,161 9,708 487
i) Gther interest incoma - -
Financial assels measured at FYTPL
iy Interest income on debentures - -
ii} Dividend incame - .
iii) Other Interast income - -
Rental incomae - .
Others = -
Total 338.770.094 148,700,893
30. MET GAINS/ (LOSSES) ON FAIR VALUE CHANGES
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Changes in fair value of inancial zssets measured at FUTPL
iy Equity instrumeants

i} Mzl fund

i) Others
Changes in falr value on Investment propertles
Changes in fair valug on hiadgad items in fair value hadges
Changes in fair value on hedging instruments in fair value hedges
Others
Total

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023)

31. MET REALISED GAINS/ (LDS3ES) Amaunt in NRs.
Particulars Currant Year Previous Year
Reallsed pains/(losses) on derecognition of financial assets measurad at FYTPL
i) Equity instrumernts (1,263,514} 1.020 612
iy Mutual fund . -
iliy Debentures = g
vy Othars - =

Reallsed galns/{losses) on derecognition of financial assets at amortised costs
i) Debentures - -

i) Bonds - E
iliy Others = 5
Total (1.263.914) 1,020,812

32.0THER INCOME
Particulars ~ Current Year Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on financial assets at amaortised cost
I} Employes |oan -

il) Bonds = z
fii) Others .
Foreign exchange income 2778.786 *
Interest income from finance lease = -
Amortization of defarred income -

Profit from dispesal of property, plant and equiprment {80.211) 1,184,955
Stamp income 3,375,720 2,008,031
Allowances written back = 5
Others
Liabilities written back - -
Others 2,985,392 617 465
Total 9,059,687 3,811,451

(T th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
Far Tha Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

33. GROSS CLAIMS PAID Armount In NRs,

Particulars Grogs claimg paid Claims ceded Nel claims pakd

_ Curreni Year  Previous Year  Currenl Year  Previous Year _ Currenl Year Previous Year
Fire 139,089.942 146,800,515 102244517 139,590,477 36,845425  7.210,038
Motor 481,130,629 12,586,393 150,914,022 9.617.151 330,216,607 2.969,242
Marine 40,186,253 131,618,817 24 386 824 42 TBE.T15 15,7899 425 88 532 102
Engineering 196,593,054 4,303,973 180,006,437 3.285.631 16,586,617 1.008,342
Micro 53,325,000 241,515,588 53,325,000 241,272 236 - 243,352
Myiation 1,169,582 848 121,484,992 1,168,424 441 70,169,518 1,158,407 51,315,474
Cattlg and crop 143,705,134 94,559,202 117,717,726 75.647 362 25,887 408 18,911,840
Miscellanenus 297,094,864 11,941,571 117,652,708 11,900,409 179,442,156 41,162
Tuoial 2.520,707.724 T64.811.051 1.874,671.678 594,279,499 G06.036.045 170.531,552
33.1 DETAILS OF GROSS CLAIM PAID
Particulars Claims paid Survey fees Tolal claims pald

Gurrant Year  Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Fira 129.970,165 142,872,308 8110777 3.828.207 139,089,942  146,800.515
Matar 471,709,868 6,338,037 9,420,714 5,748,356 481,130,629 12,586,393
Maring 37,064,249 130,603,793 3,122,004 1.015.024 40,186,253 131618817
Enginearing 182,704 601 3.193 566 13,888,453 1.110.407 196,593,054 4.303.973
Micra 53,325,000 241,515,588 - 53,325,000 241515588
fviation 1,168,582,848 121,484,992 - - 1,169,582 848 121,484,992
Cattle and crop 141,968,508 94,412,956 1,736 626 146,246 143.705,134 94,559,202
Miscallanenus 256,358 487 11,163,619 736,377 777,952 207,094, 864 11,941,671
Tutal 2,482 552 746 152,184 859 48,014,978 12 626,192 2,520,707, 724  Th4,811,051

34. CHANGE IN INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Particulars Gross change in confract Habllities  Change In relnsurance assets Mef change In confract Habllities
Gurrent Year  Previous Year Current Year  Pravious Year Current Year Previous Year
Fira 242 762 028 109,148 140 {255,003 573) 114 880,851 {13141,548) 224037991
Mator (217,764 799) {20,037 584) 00,724,924 {6,135 804} {118.039.875)  (26173.388)
Marine (1,337 370) 2,258,177 3,968,367 316,374 2.630.997 2.574.551
Enginzesing {103,679 267) (70,266,564) 114,428 456  (B7.736,401) 10,749,189 (138002970}
Micro I58,818,783) (110,344,932} 58,814,071 (111,952,577} {(4,712) (222,297.509)
Aviation I67,714,978) (432,545,567} 67,683 462 (432 B5b5.BY2) {(31,516) (865,201,439}
Cattle and crop |77,280 581) (54.576,205) 61,160,821 {43,293 168) (16,138.760)  (97.869.373)
Miscellaneous - 19114485 53,066,476 (25,300,996 55,245,397 (6,195.501) 108311873

Tatal

(264,738,255) (523,208,064)

124,566,532 (491,322.200)

(140,171,723} (1,014,620,264)
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35. COMMISSI0N EXPENSES

Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
Far The Year Ended Ashad 31. 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Amount in NEs,

Parliculars Commission expensez on  Commission oxpensos on premiun on Changes in delerred Tolal commission cxpenses
direct premiums reinsurance accepted commissian expenses
l:un:zn_! Year Fl‘E'iiEIII‘! Year  Cument Year Previous Year mnj Year  Previous Year  Curent ‘I'Eﬂ_i_ Previous Year
Fire 8836474 180118 - 22397 108686 10416 8945160 1,851,928
Wntr i,044 466 1,451,503 . 3,128,052 3,204,753 {1,464,509) 7243219 3.115,066
hrine TT8:358 94,610 56600 72147 87235 (29,497} BEG. 144 137,260
Enginaering B.729.938 480,041 116 412 42 075 (2,299,570} {231,528} B.546.780 200,588
Micro 120 136 - - 62 {B5) 182 50
Fiation £i,719,226 4236124 - - {2,653,827) . 4,066,093 3,236,124
Cantke and crop 13,045,399 18211304 - . 6,850,538 {2,761 063) 19,995,938 16,451 561
Miscellanagus 10,636,121 b TEEARY 3 - 468,887 {2,168,785) 11,505,008 3,558,702
Total 52,790,797 32,054,029 116,968  3.264,7M1 B.266,765  (6.637,081) 59,174,530 78,681,699
36. SEAVICE FEES
Pariculars Service lees Retnsurer's share of service fees Net servics fae
Currsnl Yoor  Previous Year  Gurronl Year  Previows Year  Curronl Year  Previous Yoear
Fire 4,388,032 2,364 248 2810685 1.B97 814 1,575,347 466 523
Mator 7 604,766 3,809 697 1,140,588 528 652 b.464177 3371045
Maring 565,775 246,069 333,333 176,204 232,442 BO.665
Enpingasing 4,334,992 1,771,534 4,040,463 1,681,195 294,579 40,339
I 23 52 -] i 18 a4
Aviation 2948910 4,733,248 2972083 4,781,924 (23:123) 1324
Cattle and crop 750,859 1,316,627 76,358 1,053 302 74,500 263525
Misceliangous | 67359 6APIBAY 4505862 5501563 2268031 920281
Tistal 27,364,950 20,753,318 16,479,028 15,570,467 10,883,921 5,182,852
37. OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES
Partitulars Dirgn! expesnes Dihers Total direct expenses
Curranl Year  Provioss Year  Correnl Year  Previous Year  Currenl Year  Previous Year
Fira 540,060 e * 548,060
Mutor 2,102,870 - - - 2,103870
lzrine 87,600 = = = 157,600 =
Enginzering 44,760 - - - 44,760 =
Mizro 229.873 - . % 220873
Agation 120 . . . 120
Caitie and crop 51,010 - - 561,010
Mizcellaneous 284 340 - 2 + 208 340 S
Tatal 3,570,633 - . . 3,970,633
Hirnalayan Everest th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Enced Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

38. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES Amount in NRs
Parliculars Current Year Previous Year
Salares 121.647.355 58,041,633
Allowance 04,814 493 32,803 692
Festival allowance 16,262,620 4,952 157
Defined bensfit plans

i} Gratuity - (15.111,785)

i) Othars -
Defined contribution plans

i} Pravident fund / soclal security fund 23.481.420 6,578,730

il Others 5 -
Leave encashments 10,219,992 2352737
Termination benefits - -
Tralning expensss 4.493.710 28 ny
Uniform expenses - -
Medical expanses - -
Insurance expenses 3,201 263 2,181,808
Staff walfare axpenses 4,859,657 -
Dthers (gift and novelties) - 185,284
Sub tolal 278,980,510 94,405,373
Bonus 71,350,634 20,751,246
Tolal 350,331,144 115,156,618
39. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
Parliculars Current Year Pravious Year
Amartization of goodwill and Intangible assets (Reter Note 4) 1,996,314 231939
Deprﬂriiatiun on property, plant and eguipment (Refer Note 5) A 9_?.?4? 8,064,356
Depreciation on investment properties (Reler Note £) z £
Total 19,194,061 10,383,752
40. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
Parliculars Current Year Previous Year

Impairment losses on property and equipment, investment progerties and goodwill & intangible assets

i} Property, plant and equipment
i) Investment properties
iii) Goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment losses on financial assats
i} Investment
i) Loans
iliy Qther linancial assats
iv) Cash and cash equivalant
vy Others
Impairment losses on other assets
i1 Relnsurance assets
i) Insurance receivablas
ili) Lease recaivables
iv) Others

Tatal
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Asnad 31, 2080 (July 18, 2023)

41. GTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Pardicidars Turraal Year rouinig Yoar
Fenl txpunses Waring MOENET
Elmr'lﬂy el witer 4030308 2258 B81
Reaair and mainienance

1% Bullding - -

) vahicie 1,433 874 341 4052

iy Office equipment 1,160,434 1706522

") itfers Hi 495 A78 446
Telaphons and commurazaran B, 440031 43ezals
Printing ard stationary 1239745 4,075,114
Offica consusmatiéa siponses 254,703 3,061,056
Travilling exponses
") Domestic RREERLT TIreeal

i} Fareign 4062760 B2 5an
Transpartabar and fusl 12,454 170 298
Agetttraliing £9.220 5?‘I}.5'!EI
Qiher anent axpanses =
Irysierance premim 1,740,502 H‘IE.HEI
San'urlb.' fint BUEMATTING EXPERGAS 7,726,866 5,785,253
Legal and conaulimg expenses 17,415,850 ﬁlﬂ:ﬁ‘:@t
Newspapers, books and periodicais 72,358 S5TES
Advertizaimnt and pramotion sxpenses 7,930,697 3090855
Buginezs promolion 335,508 .
Gunst roberzanmean 5,367 600 3627789
Gitt and donatons = =
Boand meeting e and axpenses

Iy Wesfing aliovances .40 000

Uy Otmer alicwances 584 511
DOther cammittees Sub-commitice pypansss

I Mezting allawances A15.000 [
il Bither allvwances 20,088 =
Aamual geraral magting expenges 1222576 B&1.14y
Aatunrial Besvie fea 301377 .
Other actuarial erpenses TE -
Airlit ratated momoges -
1 Stasiory audit _ e ELCTU

il T audit -

i} Lol Dot mudil apan - 4060

) D T - 100,600

o} bnrrl aucdit 171826 A G0

e —— SRR
{kank charges 1223166 47017
Foi and charges 9.867.00 2,287,306
Paciage Charges. — Ll
I;urduﬂ mmfrmua lugtes = .
Fines ant panaflies .
Others

CSR activitias 148 702 S6E,070

Miorper expenses 11,523 485 1,164 905

il avpaiezs 27057

Software developpment gxpenses - -
_Shﬁa redated expeages = 451,040

Foreagn gxghange koss = 4172550

vy lhea sinck dxpensis = =

" Wiicro cxpenses oibar direct expenses - 21432

VAT mxprnsas on propoticenl VAT clsm g 3454 870
Tutal 1,141,518 A, 094, 596

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For Thia Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

42. FINAMCE COST

Amount in MRs.

Parliculars

Currenl Year

Previons Year

Unwinding of discount on provisions

Unwinding of discount on financial llabilities at amortised costs
Interast Expansis - Bonds

Interest Expenses - debantures

Interest axpenses - on term loans

Interest Expenses - lease

Interest expenses - on overdratt loans

Others

=

737,577

Taotal

1.718.066

137,671

43. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
A INCOME TAX EXPENSE

“Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax
i) Income tax expenses for the year 187.272.548 65,253,878
1) Income tay relating Lo prior periods 47 807,096 326,502
Defarred tax for the year
I} Driginating and reversal of temporary differances {37,983 465) (1,552 847)
iy Ghanges in tax rate T o
iii} Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses -
I} Wrile-down or reversal - -
v} Others - -
Income lax expense 197,096,179 64,027,533
B. RECOMCILIATION OF TAXABLE PROFIT & ACCOUNTING PROFIT
Particulars Current Year Pravioss Year
Accounting profit befare tax B42.1565 706 214,782 986
Applicable tax rate 30.00% 30.00%
Tax at the applicable rate on accounting profit 192,646,712 64,434,888
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible / (included) for fax purposs
Iy Provision for unrealized chegue written back -
iy Provision for investment written back _
liiy CSR expenses 44,611 -
fv} Fines and penaltles 321,803 135312
v} Tax effact of realised gain/loss on dispesal of eguity instrumenis {ﬂﬁ,?ﬁﬂ}
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction
i) Bonus an Income from dividend 18,331 96,573
ily Dividand (183,331} (965,750)
jii} Capital gain tax on diposal of investment after acquisition -
Less: Adjustments to current tax for prior periods
i) Taxes pertaining to prior pariod 47,807,086 326,502
1 -
Add ! {less): othars
i) Dpening deterred tax adj on net contract labilities of EIG (18,402 409) -
i) Cpening deferred tax ad) on deferred commigsion incoms & expensas of EIC (23,475,219} E
fii} Opening unexpired risk reserva for HGI (1,584 855)
income 1ax expense 187,096,179 64.027.533
Ettective tax rate 30.69%: 29.81%

th
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44, EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company provides defined contribution plan, defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benafit plan to its employees. Under
contribution plan the Company pays pre-determined amouns to publicly administered Tunds as per the local regulation and does not have any
legal ar informal obligations to pay additional amounts. These comprise of contribotion to social security fund on account of provident fund and
gratuity. The Company's long-term benefit plan comprise of earned leave.

From the financial year commencing from Srawan 1, 2079, the company started contribution of Its overall amployees with the social security
fund. The contribution so made consists af 10% of provident fund, 8.33% of gratuity and 1.67% of medical insuranee; The lability on account of
gratuity as per the previous gratuity policy up to Ashad 32, 2078 (July 16, 2022) has been computed and paid to the fund with Gitizen Imvestment
Trust, The liabillty so computed has been funded with Citizen Investment Trust,

The earned leave plan provides a lurmp sum payment to vested emplayees, at retirement or termination of employment, of an amount based on
the respective employes's salary and number of unused accumulated leaves balances of annual leave and sick leave, Eamed leave is funded with
Citizen Investment Trust.

The value of the long-term empioyas banefit pkan on account of earmed feave is determinad by extarnal independent actuary as at the reporting
dated, using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions aboul the discount rates. salary incremant
rate, employees altrition rata and balance service period of amployees. Due 10 long term nature of the plans, such astimales are subject to
significant uncertainties,

a. Posl employment benefit - Defined contritution plan
Far the yearended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) the company has recagnised Rs. 6,107 909 (2078-7%9: Rs. 6.578,730) as an expenses
under the defined contribution plans in the statement of orafit or loss.

b. Post employment benefit - Defined benelit plan and long-term benefil plan
For long-term benefit plan, the cost of providing banefits is determined using the projected unit credit methad, based an the actuarial
valiations,

c.Total expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss Amount in MRs
Particulars Earned leave
Curranl Yaar Previous Year
Current service cost 978,842 933,381
Past service cost = -
hlet interest cost -
a, Interest expense on defined benafit obligation (DE0) 713,689 450,810
b, Interest {income) on plan assets - -
¢. Tolal net inlerest cosl 3,689 450,610
Net Actuarial losses/(gains) recognized during the perod 4465279 902 546
Defined benefit cost included in statement of profit or loss ' 6.107.810 2.352.737
d.Remeasuremenl eflects recoanised in stalement ol other comprehensive income (0C1) Amount in WRs
Pardicifars Earnad leave
B CurreniYear  Previous Year

a, Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes n DBO 1 - -
b. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss — demographie assumptions - -
&, Acluarial {gain)/ loss due 1o experience on DBD = -
d. Retum on plan assets {(greater)/ less than discount rate - =
Total actuarial (gain)f loss ineluded in OCI - -

£.Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income Amount in MRz
Parlicutars Earned leave

Current Year Previous Year

Cost recognised In statemeant of profit or loss: 6.107.910 2,352,737

Remeasurements affects recognised in OCI - .

Total cosl recagnised In comprehensive income 6,107,910 2,362,737

th
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 371, 2080 {July 16, 2023}

44. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTD)

1.Change in definad benelil alligalion Amaunt n WRS
_Particulars Eamedloave
Currenl Year Previous Year
elined henstit obligation s at the beginning of the vear 4,481 630 9,124 818
Service cogl 928047 099,381
Intarest cost 713,699 450,810
Acquisition 11,208,279 :
Banefits paid by the employer (#,338,070) (2,505 875)
Benallt payments from plan assets - .
Actuarial (gaim)/ bess - financial assumptions 4,465,279 (2 546
Actuarial (gam)/ loss - demographic financial assumptions - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience - -
Defined benefit shiigation as at the end of the year 23,457 799 4,481 580
-Change In lalr valoe ol plan assels Agun| in MRz
“Pariiculars Earned Inave
Correnl Year Previous Year
Falr value of plan assats at end of prior year - -
Expecied return on plan assets - -
Employer-contributions 21,761,446 B
Participant confributions . .
Benefir payments from olan assets =
Transfer in/ transfer put .
Actuarinl gain/ (loss) on plan assels - -
Fair waloe ol Plan Agsets ALEnd ol Year 21,761, 445 B
fr et defined benefit assed(Habiity) Amyourit in MRS
Particulars Earned |eave
Correnl Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation 23,457,799 8,481,680
Fair valus of plan asssats (21.761.446) =
{Surpios }/deticil recogmised in statemeant of financial position 1,656,353 8,461,680
I Expaotzd company contributiong for (ke nexl year Arvgunt i WA
Particulars Earnad leave
Corrent Year Previows Year
 Expscted company contributions for the next year = -
j-Feoonciliwtion of mmounts in statament of financial position Aol in WHs
“Pariiculars Earned leave
[Eorrenl Yemr  Previous Year
Mot defined benefit iability/{asset) at prior vear end 3 481,680 8124813
Detined banefit cost included in Statoment of Profit or Loss B 107 814 2.852,737
Total ramaasuramants includad in O - -
Aouisition divestient 11,206.279 -
Emphoyer contributions (71,761 446} -
Benefits Payouts (2.338,070) (2,995 875)
Met defined henefli (lability/|assal) 1,696,353 8,481,580
k. Aecencilizbien of lalemend of olher comprehensive acpme Al In ks
Particuiars Eamned lagve
Gustrent Year Provivus Yoal

Cumulative OC1 - (Income/Loss, megirming of nesiod
Tatal enteasuraments intluded m 0G)
Cumulatier OC1 - (Ineam=)/Lags
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Himalayan Everest Insurance Limited
Motes To The Financial Statements
For The Year Endad Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

44. EMPLOYEE RETIREMEMNT BENEFITS (CONTD)
L.Current / Non-current liabiliy

Pariiculars Earned leave
. B __ Guwrent Year  Previous Year
Current Liability 5,649 521 2,032 536
MNon - Gurrent Liability 17,808,277 449144
Total 23,457,798 B,481.680
m.Expecied lulure benafit paymants
Particulars Earned leave
Currenl Year Pravious Year
Within 1 year - -
Betwean 1-2 years . .
Batween 2-5 years - -
From 6 to 10 - -
Total - -
n.Plan assets
Particulars Earned leave
Current Yesr Previous Year
(% Invested) (% Invested)
“Government securities 0% 0%
Corporate bonds (including public sector bonds) 0% 0%
Mutual funds 0% 0%
Deposits 0% 0%
Cash and bank balances 0% 0%
Retirement fund 100% 100%
Othars 0% 0%
Total 100%% 100%,

o. Sensitivity analysis

Particulars Eatned leave
Cumrent Year Provious Year
Effect in defined benefit chligation due to 1% increase in discount rate - -

Etfect In defined benafit obligation due to 1% decrease in discount rate - -
Effect in defined benafit obligation due to 1% increase in salary escalation rate

Effect in detined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in salary escalation rate c: a
Eftect in defined benatit obligation due to 1% increase in attrition rate -

Effzct In defined benefit obligation due ta 1% decrease in attrition rate - -

p.Assumplions

Parliculars Earned leave
Discount rate 9.00%
Escalation rate (rate of increase in compensation fevals) 5.00%
Attrition rate (emplayes lurnover) 10.00%
Mortality rate during employment Nepali Assured Lives Moriality (2008)
[ th
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I /5. Fair value measurement

451 Financial instruments by category and hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates madz in determining the fair values of the financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured af fair value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair valugs are disclosed in the financial statemants.

To provide an indication about the reliabifity of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments
into three levels as prescribed by the applicable NFRS.

Amaount in KRS,
Partioulars Lavel Currenl Year Previous Year
== - AL FVOCI  Amorlised  FUTPL FVOCI  Amartised
Cost Cost
Investmeanis
Investment in equiy Instruments 1 = 622126572 = - 280508830 =
Investment in mutual tunds 1 52,717,632 - - 30,318,083 -
Investment in debentures 3 - 184,101,630 2 . 26,598,000
Fixed deposits 3 - 3.681.702.500 ~ - 1.496.012,000
Aduance Tor Investment in 3 - - - - -
eaquity instriments
Other financial assets. 3 - 150,987,152 - - 146,941,880
Cash and cash equlvalents 1 - 5 207 456,353 5 - 347,528,744
Total linancial assels « B74.B44.104 4,224,247 637 - 320,826,972 2,017,180, 624
Othear financial liabifities 3 - - 229,452,996 - - 102,300,158
Total financial liabilities - . 229,452,996 ; : 102.300,158

An explanation of gach level is provided below:

Laval 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instrumants measurad using quated prices. This Includes listed squity instruments and units of
mistual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity Instruments and units of mutual fund which are traded on the stock exchanges
is valued using the closing price as at the reporting date.

Leval 2: Tha falr value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active markat Is determined using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all slanificant Inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observabla, the Instrument is Included in level 2.

Lawal 3: It one or more of the slgnificant inputs is not based on obsarvable markat data, the Instrument Is Included in lavel 3.
There is no transfer of financial instrumants batwean ditterent levels as mentioned above during the year.

45.2 Valuation technigue used to determing fair value

In respect of investment in aquity instruments that are listed in the Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. the quoted price of the instrumant has as at the
date of statament of financial position has been used. In raspect investment In unquoted equity instruments, the cost of such instrumant has
bean deemed to be fair value.

The falr value of remaining financial instruments Is determined using discounted cash fow analysis.

45.3 Valuation process
The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes. Discussions on valuation processes and results are held at least once in a year

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
= A discount rate is armived at considering the internal and extarmal factors.
= Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the Impact of the discounting is material,

g )
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45,4 Fair value of linsncial assets and liabilities measured al amortised cost

Amount in NHs.

Parliculars Currend Year Previous Year
Carrying Amounl Fair \alue Carrying Amount Fair Valon

Investments

Inyestmeant in preference shares of banks
and financial institutions

Investment in debantures 184,101,630 184,101,630 24,898,000 24,898,000
Inyestmant in bonds - - - -
Fixed Deposil 3,681,702,500 3,681,702,500 1,601,000,000 1,601,000,000
Others - - . .
Loans

Loans to employess and others - - - -
Othars - - - -
Other Financial Assats 150,987,152 150,587 1562 82,353,337 82,383,337
Total Financial Assels al Amortised Cost 016,791,282 4,016,791,282  1,075,927,337  1,975,927,337
Earru_wi_ng_s
Bonds - - - -

Debontures - - - -
Term loans - Bank and financlal institutions - - - -
Bank overdrafis - - - -
Others - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 228 452 996 228,152 906 46,883 444 46,883 444
Total Financial Liabilities al Amartised Cost 220,452,995 229,452,906 46,863,444 46,883,444

The carrying amoonts of other financial assets, insurance receivables. cash and cash equivalents, insurance pavables and other financial
[fabilities are the same as their fair values, due o their short-tenm nature,

I i6. Risk management framework

46.1 Governance framework

The primary objective of the Company's risk and financial management framework is fo ensure that it will be-above to continue as a going
concarn so that can continue to provide returns to the shareholdars through sustainable achisvement of financial performance objective. Key
managemant recognizes the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place.

The board of directors and senior management manages the risks through various committees and deiegated authorities. As part of the
Important activity within thie Company, the risks are reviewed on a regular basis and strategies are timely adopted to manage thesa risks. The
risks are identified with clear understanding of the market envirannent. reguiatory environment and economic changes.

46.2 Insurance riske

The principal risk the Company is subjected to under the insurance contract is that actual elalms and bensfits payments or the timing thereof may
differ from expectations. This is influsnced by the frequency of the claims, saverity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development
of long-term claims. The abjective of the Company is therefore to ensure that sufficient resarves are avallable fo cover thess liabiiities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across portfolio of insurance contracts. The risk is also mitigated by careful sefection and
implementation of underwriting guidelines as well as use of reinsurance arrangements.
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The Company considers insurance risk to be 3 combination of the following components;
+ Product design nsk

« Product pricing

¢ |Jnderwnting risk

= Claim risk

= ‘Reinsurance risk

« Hesarving

a. Produet desian righ

The Gompany issues ganeral insurance contracts such as fire, marine, motor, maring, engineering, micra, aviation, cattle and crop and
miscallansous. The sigrificant risks arising under the genaral insurance porttolio are from chenges in the climate leading to natural disastars,
behavioral trends of peoples dus the change in their lifestyles and steady escalation of cosis in respect of motor indusiry.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across 4 large porttelio of insurance contracts and geoqraphical areas. Variabifity of risk
iz improved by careful selection and implementation of undarwriting strategies, which are designed to ensura that risks are diversifisd in the
tarm of type of risk,

Tha Company’s insurance risk basaed on the ling of business concentration is as follows:

Line ol business For the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 For the year ended Ashad 32, 2079
(July 16, 2023) [July 16, 2022)
Gross written premizm Concentration Gross written premism Concentration
Parcentage Percantage
Fire 938,706.116 16% 236,424,802 11%
Motar 933,706,904 28% 389,569,657 21%
Iaring 66 672 876 2% 24 606,862 2%
Enginaering 531,195 936 16% 177,153,396 8%
hicro 2,400 0% 5,273 A%
Aviatian 354,605,187 1% 473,324,756 22%
Catife and crop 90,360 564 3% 131,662 736 T
Miscellaneous 861,096,975 26% B42.184 437 ZE%
Total 4.376,346.958 2.075,331,B69

b, Prieing risk

The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs and the income arising from investing
the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises oollecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing
assumptions and the base rate, sefting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriatenass of pricing.

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonahlaness of the underlying assumptions used for pricing. The base rate represents the
amount required (o meet the value of anticipated benefits, expenses, and marains for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's
own historical experience and that of the industry where refevant. These may be supplemented by other imternal and external data and could
include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modeiling all identified risks, using appropriate methodolagies depending an the complexity of the risks and available data,
Adequata buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

c. Underwriting risk

Underwriting involves measuring risk exposure and determining the premium that needs to be charged to undertake the Insurance risk.
Underwriting risks generally arise elther from an inaccurate assessment of the risks entalled in writing and insurance policy or from factors
whaolly out of the underwriter's control.

The majority of the underwriting risk to which the Company s exposed is of a short-term nature. and generally does not exceed 12 months.
The company's underwriting strategy aims to ensure that the underwritten risks are well divarsified in terms of the type, amaount of risk, and
geography In order to ensure that the Company minimisas the volatility of its Insurance result.

th
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The above risk exposure is mitigated by improving the knowledge and skills of the underwriting stafl. Further, a statistical database is maintained
to énable proper decisions to be taken dunng undarariting of insurance risks undertaken. Also, financial authority limits are in place for
undersyriting, clearly orescribing the limits to underwnite based on the sum Insured and risk undertaken. Pricing is done by modelling all
idantified risks, using aporopriate methodolegies dapending on the complexity of tha risks and available data, Adeguate buafters are kept in the
premiums to cushion against the risk that actual expenence may tum out to be worse than axpactad.

o, Reingurance risk
Reinsurance risk refars to the inability of the Company o obtain inserance from reinsurers at the right time and at the appropriate cost,

The above risk exposurs is mitigated by choosing gtobally highly trusted reinsurance companies for reinsurance placemants. The company has
reinsurance traaty with the following reinsuerance companies:

Mame of reinsurars Rating Issuing agency
Eanaral_lnsuranm f_.‘.»urpuraiir;n m_lnaa,- Imﬁa E++ iﬁgest
Oman Re B+ AN Bast
Zap Re (FTA Reinsurance Company) Nairobi, Kenya B ++ AM Bast
East Africa Reinsurance Corporation Lid., Mairobi, Kenya 3] AM Bast
AdNIC reinsuranca A AN Best
Gica Re B+ AN Bast
The New India Assurance Company Limited B ++ AM Bast
Asian Reinsurance Company Limited B+ AM Bast
&, Claim rigk

Claim risk refars to the risk that the actual claims or the timing thereof may differ from expectation-and sufficient reserves may not be available
to cover these liabilities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by implameanting strict claim reviaw policies fo assess all new and ongoing claims. Reoular detailed
review of claims hardling procedure and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place to reduce the rsk exposure of
the Company The Company further enforces a pelicy of actively masaging and promptly pursuing clalms in order to reduce its exposure to
unpredictable future developments that may negatively impact the business.

The Company seeks to redice its claim risk through the use of experience actuaries who astimates actuarial indication of the required resarves
to be made based on claims axperience, business volume, anticipated change In the claim environment and ciaims cost,

I Sermuilivities

The Company's ciaim liabilities are sensitive to key assumptions as mentioned in the table below. The following analysis is performed for
possible movements in key assumptions with all other assumptions held constant, showing the Impact on gross and net liabilities, profit
before tax and profit after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims liabilities, but to
demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assemptions had to be chanped on an individual basis.

For the year ended on Ashad 31, 2080 (2079-80) Amount in NRs,
Partionlars Changes in Increasa/ Increass/ Ingrease/ Inoreass/
Assumplions (Decrease) on {Decrease) on (Dacrease) - {Decrease) -

Gross Liabilities Het Liabillties Profit Before Tax Profil After Tax

Average claim cost +10% 257,795 654 3,934,517 {291.415,939) {203,991 158}
Average number of claims +10% 26,473,826 (14.017.373) 14017173 9,812,021
Average claim cost -10% (257,795,654) (3.934 517) 291,415,839 203,991 156
Average number of claims -10% {26.473,826) 14017173 (14,017,173} (9.812,021)
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For tha year ended on Ashad 32, 2079 (2078-79) Amournt in NRs.
Particulars Changes in Increass/ Increase/ Increase/ Incroase/
Assumplions (Decrease) an {Decrease) on (Decreass) - (Decrease) -

Gross Liabilities Met Liabilities Prafit Bafore Tax Profit Afler Tax

Average claim cost +10% 86,078,309 1.347 626 {188,908 683) (132,236,078)
Average number of claims +10% 81,040,190 1.642 136 {1.642,136) 11,149,4395)
Average claim cost -10% (86,078,309 {1.347 628} 188,908 683 132,236,078
Average number of claims -10% (81,040,190 {1,642.136) 1,642,136 1,149 495

ii. Claim gevelopment (able
The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and 1BNR for each successive accidant
vear at aach raporting date, together with cumulative payments to date.

Gross outstanding claim provision

Amount in NRs.
Year of Incidenl > PY 4 PY 4 PY 3 PY2 FY1 Current Year Total
Al end of incident year 3036202212 3036202212
One year fatar 933,584,951 933 584,991
Two year later 363,700,816 363,780,816
Thrae vear later 141,413,839 141,413 839
Four yaar later 8,185,586 8,185,586
Mora than Four vears . -
Current estimale of - B,185586 141,413,039 363,780,816 933,584,091 3,046,202,212 4,483,167 444
cumulative claims
Atend of incident year 2002154127  2.002,154,127
One year later 365,169,219 365,169,219
Twin year later 134,155,594 134,155,598
Three year later 11,043,194 11,043,194
Four vear later 8,185,586 8,185,586
Mora than Four vears - -
Cumulative payments 1o dale . §.185,586 11.043,194 134,155,588 365,169,219 2,002.164.127 2.520.707.724
Gross insurance - < 130,370,645 220625218 568,415,771 1,04,048.085 1,962,459,720

contract outstanding
claim provision
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Mat outstanding claim provision

Amaount In NRs.

Year ol Incident >PY 4 FY 4 FY 3 Y2 PY1 Current Year Total
Year of Incident »>PY 4 PY 4 Py 3 PY2 PY 1 Current Year Tostal
At end of incident year 589939251 589,939,251
One year fater 206,886 673 206,886,678
Twi year later 41,345 500 41,345,500
Three year later 34,227 517 34227 517
Four year later 4,471,159 4.471,158
Mare than four vears - -
Current estimate of 4,471,159 34227517 41.345.500 206,886,678 589,939,251 876,870,105
camulative claims

Al end of incident year 412 953,454 412,953 454
One year later 163,588 560 163,988,560
Tuio year later 20,024,089 20,024,089
Three year later 4. 598781 4,595,781
Four year latar 4471158 4471159
More than four vears - -
Comulative payments 1o date - 4,471,158 4,598,781 20,024,008 163,988,560 412,953,454 606,036,044
Gross insurance - 29,628,736 21321011 42,898,117 176,985,787  270,834.061

conlrac! oulstanding
claim provision

I Resarving

Irsurance contract liabilities are created 1o cover this fsk based on the actuarial valuation repart.

The table below sets out the concantration of risk asscoiated with above mentioned products. Risk as at year end has been measured as
insurance contract liabilities and disciosed as below:

Ameunt in NRs.
Particulars Current Year Frovious Year
© Gross insurance  Reinsurance Mel  Grossinsurance  Reinsurance Net
liahilities assels liabilifies {iabilities assels liabilities
Fire 771,905,856 626,697,610 145,208 246 195,701,794 166,390,021 3831773
Motor 829,301,212 289,158 489 540,142,723 362045 967 140,173,024 £21,866,943
Marina 172 422 269 123,167,993 49,254 276 46,500,295 34,263,926 12,236,369
Enalineering 611,052,886 532,853,204 18,199,632 178.419,399 168,717,847 9,707,652
Micra 517,114,778 B17,111,483 3,295 305.564 499 306,655,036 9,463
Avlation 570,875,748 570,272.959 602,789 734,647 478 734,004,078 553,400
Cattle and Crop 85.854.022 73,910,350 11,843,672 175,447 774 140,221 645 35,226,134
Miscellaneous 629,046,568 457,839,297 171,107,271 431,962 547 374,800,160 57,072,387
Total 4,187 ,573.339 3191111435 906,461,904 2,430,289.758  2,064,311,737 375,978,021
th
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I 7. Financial risk management

471 Crodit risk

Cradit risk Is counter-party default risk and includes the rsk of failure of financial institutions with which the Company have placed daposits /
investmaent to meat its contractual obligations, and the failure of reinsurars to meat claims whan they fall dua. It also includes the risk of detault
by policyhalders on pramium receivables,

The Company’s placament in debt instruments is primariky in fixed daposits with commarcial banks, developmant banks and ofher financial
institutions that ara held at amortised cost of Bs. 3,681,702,500 (2078-79: Rs. 1,496,815,734) and in debantures issued by listed companies
Rs. 184,101,630 (2078-79; Rs, 27.986,737) which are managed and monitored by the investment committes of the Company. The Company
camies other financial assets, such as balances with banks, advance to employees and othar receivables. Bank deposits in fixed and othershart-
tarm deposit accounts are held with commercial banks, development banks and other financial institutions having a strong financial position and
considering the experience of the Company ovar time, the counter party risk atiached to such assets is considerad insignificant,

Advance to employeas and other recaivables are monitored an reguiar basis and is recoverad on timely basis. Allowance for impairment is made
for loss incurned assets i any.

Cradit risk to axternal reinsurers appears whan insurance exposuras are transferred by the Company to external reinsurance companies to
mitigate insurance risks, Potential losses can arise due to non-recoverability of reinsurance receivablas that are under reinsurance treatias in
force. The Company hias selected its reinsurers with a high credit rating and reviews thair rating periodically. The information an the reinsurars is
provided n 46.2 (d) above. The Company’s exposuras to reinsurance risk are placed with highhy rated reinsurers and considering the experience
of the Company over time, the counter party risk attached to insurance receivables is minimal except for receivable of Bs. 161,303,648 (2078-
7% Rs. 161.303.648) due from Aviation Assets Management Lid, which has since been liguidated and has not been recovered. The company
also has recaivable of As, 7,154,982 {2078-79: Rs. 1,876,367 recoverzble from local insurance company and Rs. 574,240 recoverable from
foreign reinsurance company andar facuftative arrangemant which has not been recovered, Allowance for impairment for these amounts has
bean made in the financial statemanis.

The Company does not have a policy of providing cradit facilities against issued policy document as per regulatory restrictions, However, in
respect of agriculture insurance, 20% of the pramium amaunt is recoverad at the tima of issue of the policy and balance B0% is guaranteed by
the Governmant of Nepal as subsidy to the farmars which it paid to the Company through the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal Similarly, in
respect of insurance far COVID-19 and certain property insurance, 50% of the premium-amount i5 recovered at the time of issue of the policy
and baltance 50% i guaranteed by the Gowernment of Nepal, which is paid to the Company through the Mepal Insurance Authority of Nepal.
Accordingly, the counter party risk attached to the amount due from policyholders is minimal.

The Company uses the incurrad loss model for impairment of financial assets. The detail of allowance for financial assats recognised is as

follows:
Amount in NRs.
Parliculars Gurrend Year Previous yaar
Balance ol lose allowance 25 al Ashad 31, 2079 163,180,010 163,180,010
Add: Transferred from business acquisition  saEEE0 000 -

Add: Loss allowance recognised during the year - B
Less: Loss allowance written back during the year - B
Balance ol loss allowance 25 sl Ashad 31, 2080 169,032,870 163,180,010

Loss aliowance has been recognised for receivable from reinsurance Company and local Insurance company.

47.2 Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial Instruments as they fall due.

The Company maintains investment in accordance with the investment policy issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority of Mepal, The Company
has also Invested In highly marketabla securities that can be fiquidated in the evant of unforeseen contingencies. Further, the Investment
committee reviews the liguidity level of investments and takes appropriate actions to improve the liquidity position.
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Insurance receivahies includes amount receivables from local insurance businesses under local facultative arrangement and from reinsurers
Lnder reinsurance arrangement for paid losses. These are recognised and measured at fair value of the considerations to be received

Insurance receivables alse includes sundry debtors which are recognised when due and are initially maasurad at fair valua on the considaration
receivable. This receivable represants agricuiture insurance policy, insurance for COVID-19 and certain proparty insurance which are subsidized
by the governmant of Nepal to the extent of 50% to B0% of the premium invaiced amount. Collectability of premiums is ravigwsd on an ongoing
basis.

The following fable represents the maturity profiles of financial labilities:

Amount in R,
Currenl Year Provious Year
Particulars Notes Uplo 1 year VTtobyears More than Upto 1 year 1106 years More than
5 years 5 years
Financial liabilities
Euﬁnwmg 22 = 5 = - - o
Othar finanicial liabilities 24 - 228452088 = 102,300,158 - -
Total financial liabilitios - 220,452,088 - 102,300,758 .
47.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of possible adverse movemants in the value of financial instrument due to change in market factars, such as interast ratas,
foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, and will affect tha GCompany's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk
i5 the aggregation of:

« |ntarest rate risk
+ Foreign currency risk

= Prica risk

i. Interast rale risk

Interest rata risk is the risk that the valee of future cash flows of the financial instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes in interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in markat interest rates relates primarily to the Company's fixed deposits and short-term
deposits with banks and financial institutions and investment in debentures issued by listed companies. The company monitors its interest rate
risk on a periodic basis by analyzing the movement in interest rates and manages its cash flows.

ji. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instrumeants will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The company does not maintain forgign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolio and as such is not exposed 1o foreign exchange
risk refated to investment.

jii. Equily price risk
Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in tha price of the securities or portfollo of securities.

The Company classifies its investment portfolio into dabt sacurities, equity instruments and units of mutual fund. The debts securities are
predominantly held in fised deposits with commercial banks and other financial Institutions and debentures issued by listed companies. Fixed
deposits and debentures are not traded in the market and the price risk on these securities is negligibie. In respect of investment in-equity
instrument and enits of mutual funds, which are listed and traded in the market through Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd., the management follows
the guidelines as mentioned in the investment paolicy and monitors the price of these securities on a regular basis.

The Company holds Investment in quoted equity instruments of Rs. 622,128,572 (2078-79: Rs. 126,497,082} and in units of mutual fund of Rs.
52,717 532 (2078-79: As. 30,318 083). Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognised threugh OCL
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The table below summarizes the increase/decraasa in the prices of these securities by 100 basis points assuming the change in equity index with
all other varialies held constant, and that all the equity instruments mose in line with the index

Parliculars Curranl Year Previous year
Interest rate — Increase by 1% 67 484 41 1,568,152
Intarast rate — Decraase by 1% (6,748 ,441) 1,568,152}

I 3:. Operational risk

This is tha risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company's processes, personnel, technology
and infrastructure and from external factors other than credit, market and fiquidity risks, such as those arising from fegal and reguiaiory
requirerments and ganerally accepted standard of corporate govamance, Operational failures could result in produsing misteading financial
information, less of return, financial penalties from regulators or damage to the reputation of the Company.

The Company has controls of effective sagrepation of duties, access controls, authorisations, fraining and assessmants procedures. Corporate
govermance standards are strictly implemented by the board of directors. Risks from change in regulatory environment, technology are
monitored in its strategic planning and processes.

I 19. Climate Risk

The Company acknowledges the incraasing significance of climate change and its potantial impacts on the insurance industry. Climata risk
encompasses a spactrum of challenges, including physical risks arising from extrame weather events, as wall as transition risks associated with
the giobal shift towards 2 low-carbon economy.

2. Physical Rizks:

The Company recognizes the potential for increased trequency and severity of extrerne weathar events, such as floods, storms, and other climatic
disruptions. These events may pose a threat fo the insurad assets and impact on the cverall claims exparience. The Company has implemeanted
active risk assessment and managemeant practices to identify, assess. and mitigate the physical risks associated with climata change

b. Transition Risks:
Ir response to the plobal transition towards alow-carbon economy, the Company i5 cognizant of the evalving regulatory landscape and markat
dynamics. Changes in reguiations, policies, and market preferences refated to climate change could affect the valuation of cerain assets and

iabilitles. impact the Company's financial performance. The Company remains committed to staying informed about emerging developments
and adapting business strategies accordingly,

. Risk Mifigation Strategies:

As part of tha Company's commitment to sustainable business practices, the Company is actively integeating climate risk considerations into its
underwriting, investment, and risk management processes.

d. Disclosure ol Financial Impact:
At present. the Company does not anticipate a material financial impact directly resulting from climate risk. However, the Company recognizes
the dynamic nature of climata-related challenges and continues to assess and disclose any material changes that may arise in the future.

I 0. Capital management
The Company manages its capital with the following management objectives and approaches:
+ To maintain the minimum pald up capital as regquired by its reguiator, Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal.
= To maintain the requirad level of stability for providing a degres of security to the policyholders.

+ To allocate capital efficiently thal supports the developmant of the Company's business so that It can cantinue to provide returns to the
sharehaoldars.

= To maintain financial strepath to suppart rew business arowth and (o satisly the requirements of the policyholders, regulators and stakeholdars.
a. Regulatory minimum paid up capital
Operation of the Company are alsa subject to requiatory requirements of the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal. The Nepal Insurance Authority

has prescribed minimum paid up capital of Rs. 2.5 billion to be mainkalned by non-Nife insurance companies by Ashad end 2081, The company’s
current paid up capital after the merger with Everest Insurance Campany Limited is Rs. 2,301,535,000.
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Further, Nepal Insurance Authority has preseribad solvency margin and investment policy to minimise risk of insolvensy on the part of the
insurance companias to meet unforesean liabilites that may arise.

The Company maintaing sobvency and invesiment as per the regulations prescribed. It maintaing a solvency ratio of as per the' regulatory
requiramant.

a. Dividend
Amount in NRs.
Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
(1} Dividends racognized
" Final cash dividend for the year ended Ashad 31 ._E-lﬁ.i_ of Bs, 0.14 per fully paid share 3242016 E.Eﬁljﬁé_
Bonus share for the year ended Ashad 31, 2079 of Bs, 2.75 per fully paid share 61,598,300 73,172,400

(i) Dividends nol recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, for the vear ended the directors have recommended 146,607,780 3242016
the payment of a final cash dividend of Rs 837 per fully paid equity shara

(2078-79; As 0.14 per tully paid shara),

In addition to the above dividends, for the year ended the directors have recommendad. 188,622 400 61,598, 300
thia payment of a bonus share of Rs 8.63 par fully paid aguity share
(2078-79: Rs 2.75 per fully paid share).

This propasad dividend & bonus shara is subfect o the approval of sharehoiders in the ensuing annual general measting

I 51. Earnings per share (EPS)

Amaount in NAs.

Particulars Cuwrrent Year  Previous Year
Profit for the year 445 059 527 150,755 453
Add: Interest saving on convartible bands

Profit for the vear used for calculating diluted earnings per share 445 059 527 150,755 453
Weightad averaga number of equity shares outstanding during the year for basic samings per share 23,015,350 11,735,091
Adjustments for calculation of dilufed samings per share:

i) Dilutive shares -

i) Dptions -

iy Convartible bonds -

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for diluted earnings per share 23,015,350 11,735,091
Maminal value of equity shares 100.00 100.00
Basic earnings per share 16.34 12.85
Dilutad earnings per share 19.34 12.85
Restated Bamiﬁﬁis per sharg f.55

I ;2. Scoment reporting

Segment information s presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the Company has identified portfolio as
business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is also based on partfollo. Performance 1s measured based on segment profit
as management belleves that it is most refevant in-evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within thesa industries.
Segment assets are disclosed balow based on total of all assel for each business segment.

The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the management of the Company is of the view that the financial information by
peographical segments of the Company's aperation i not nacessary to be presented.
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Business segmeants of the company are:
i, Firg

ii. Motor

iii. Marire

iv. Engineearing

V. Micro

Wi, Byviation

wii. Cattie and Crop

wiil. Miscellaneous

2. Segmental Information for the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Aot m Fs.
Purticulues Fiee Motue Markae | Engineesing | Micre Mvintlon | Cutie and Crup | Wisredlaneaua Ies Total
1 1 I segmen|
ediiminnlion
lisgame
| Gross somed premiums | BUDATET0 | 06651740 TAN B9 | 477956061 | 6641 | 453 PI6220 | 13690354 | GG0ARdE - | 33002390
Primiurms. céde (470746,972) |(256.790.8687) | (S3.700190) | (3724803 | (100.399.554) | (4BB215360) | (99370HB4) | (567000532 - | (2 415,780,025}
IHRE-S2 MENT revenue | r 2 - | = - . * - =
Mol earmid preimlems | 127.985.728 | GI0,190.0T0 | (46.281.201) | 08371364 {{109,053.502) | (14419030} | FTEEATV | 2632790 < | 4708235
Gommssion incame | i097566 | S9SSTU6 | 10857075 | 70595835 | 8| NAIB06D | 20657903 | 107,542,960 -| aans58860
Irvestmient incame 19700785 | BI4TIERE | 29MEAY | Badal | g 05 61 LI | 17283036 - | 100865748
Nt ana {lssast on - : = =] = % : r : =
fair witluss chianges
M renliced pang {inszes) (7450} 1152 [a5) {8,140 {40, 748) | i} {26 {858 (64,570 2 (476018
Other income 878605 a7 2p4.m7 183 6 5: 168 1,858 217808 583617 - 5.068,071
Total sugmemninl oo | aanazoons | vsgmTod | (32,006.226) | 165,200,870 (09082 ey | (2,269,122 | E0.706.720 | 408,659,937 < (1,470,405, 156 |
yrass claims paid | 10089949 | 481030620 | 018625 | 19BSS0051 | SO0U5000 | 1009SORBA0 | 143705184 | 297004864 - | 2520000, 704
Claims eded (102244517 l(tﬁn.su.ﬂza (243685 620) |(180.006.437) | 457.025.000) iﬂ_m.m.m; YT TITTEE) | (017652 108) = |1 AER BT
s change i conlmet Baniliies | PZTELOME (217 TH4795) | (1307R0 (108679 5T I. [BATETEE) | BRTIASTE | (TT298581) | 13104495 - | (T, 255)
Ghange in contract fanilties (256 03.573) o9, 724,524 968,367 | 114,428,450 :' B8 814 071 BFEIZARZ | 11608 | (25309.996) = | 124566602
‘GR0ed 10 EnSuEs
Wt elnins jald ' 23,703,800 | 2176782 | 18,430,422 77,33 046 | e 119608 0,046,648 | 113,296,655 | || msEsamE |
_EMMM B.945,180 ::‘245.219 ﬁﬁﬁ.“l;-_“;.gﬁ.?ﬂﬂl 182 !.I:liﬁﬂ-i& 19,895,948 _1‘r,5IﬁDﬂﬂ 59,1?4.53:&!_
Birvice faes §.576.547 6,484,177 REEE R 234520 | i 23,124 74,500 264,001 = | 10esE
Dher lirsot Bxpenses 549,080 2103670 147,600 44.76D | 209,673 120 S61.010 284340 3800633
Erngiloyes banatils aupanses 50,267,489 B, 134 510 A28 260 | 49565132 | EIR| 33003064 T30 B0 AR1.24D - | di5a50.000
Depraciainn and am ozt 2.754,073 4,832,062 342496 2,716,591 iz 1,698,183 401,857 4,420,391 - 17,274 655
RIS
Otfuir apenins 23204014 | 4DEI0AGD | 285350 | 22odnsfem | LS i B =X - N 3 - | PR35
Fiaos cost | amse | sl | o | s | 1 e meat | amen | 155
Takal segmental expensis [ 10,307 B J:Ez.:n.zz: 20,234,507 | 108,085,701 | 225690 | SEAIA4EY | 41,647489 | 390,164,400 < [1,018, 040,678
Tutal sepvomis resai 521,561 | 361,663,411 | (G2.770,683) | 69,684,120 | (109,610,402} | (9T667.5TG) | 10.0SH.Z39 | 08,504,035 | o | 454,486,677
Sugment assels | &29,070,87 ]m.m.m 123,500,737 | 537,070,667 | 517111506 | ST2926.785 |  B0.544.751 m.m.mi . | 3,214 909 508
Sngmnal liahilfies | 772,388 ]ma.zia,m 176,600,060 | B51,600,232 | 617,104,704 | 676,319,865 | 54,213,834 Eﬁ.m.luﬁi « | %,324,216,068
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b. Segmental Information for the year ended Ashad 31, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Amons in Rs.
Pariiculars Firg Balur Masing | Englnuering Mlere fulailon |Caitle ard Grep | Misoellanocus inlast | Talal
| lluHI-l'Iﬂ!
sllimlnation |
By
' ross sarned premms 213747274 | GO7390829 | 28700759 | 121470537 | 26007900 | 383536785 | 194765372 | S50B.370.165 AEETTL T
Breriuing ceded (175300716) | (T389887) (1174323784) |(115.161540) | (485.900502) | (460,1%6491) | (B1812207) | 113788449 - (1305 856 787)
Inbes-Sigmen| revenie . . - | . . . |
Hint nareil prumbies 37,30 560 | 300602947 [184,073.055) | 604,903 | (450,362 617) | (7E6U707) | 22983075 | 6220560 | gan, 775 828
Gammissan income AGIESES | ZUIZISM | AAVEH | 1054510 20| 174E268|  5ETASEd | 50490878 | sERTA
Inyustrmen! inenmne B.2344% | 1P 7R4ER | v24E2R9 | 1700455 . 813,092 1,420,043 7,700,151 -\ 35POE34E
Mt ainse lasses) on ; ‘ : ‘ : .
i vakin cliinges
Mel rializad gaing! (lasses) . . . . . .
Ol inceers 280459 1364 562 57856 | B1.561 180 9,696 238 512 N7515 | RSBl
Tedad swgmeatal ineons 80,266,087 | 370,063,526 |130,006.983)  18.543,810 | (450,362.036) | (58,384.340) |  40,641.451 | G6D.77G,108 | 54,337 628
= |
s claims pe MEEDDSTS | 12586383 | 1I0E191T | 4300873 | 21515588 | 1214mepep | 4550000 | 11841671 N L
Chaiisg cared (139580477) | (BEITA51) | MZFBETIE) | (BIGSEIN) | (241272336) | (POOIGASIE) | (TSBATIEZ) | (11500409 +| {5R4.270.458)
fross chanps in contracd liabillis | (109,148.140) | 20037584 | (2258177) | 7D2G6G560 | 110344432 | 43PS4EET |  SASEIDS | (53DGEATH) 573,798 064
Chiangs in contract labiliis 114530951 | (5.135.804) MEATH | [BTTREADY | (11BSRETT) | (I3ZEESETZ) | (43.203.168) | 55245387 (451, 222:200)
cead b eitrsurais
Hist clales il 12951740 | GBT1022 | B6BS0.209 | 35S0 | (1,364,203) | 51205168 | 30104877 | 2.220,008 | em2s07 A0
Cuirmissin o 1,851,920 3,115,086 137260 | 200508 50 3236124 | 16AS1E61 3,598,702 | meem
Survicy fees 486609 3371045 59,885 a0,319 M 1,324 263305 020,26 | st
Ermiployss bersfits sxpunses 1ZEA0AZ | 14951085 | 1.300EH 8501418 ITh | 25316.634 BOS5082 | 338343 - 103840957
Diepruciation and arparliztipn 1,132 953 1348232 117,284 856,740 5 2282 518 BB 02 3,055,379 | smsanm
wpsas
by losses . . . . . . . i q
Oibar s 8182255 | 10,395,741 94417 | BADGTIO 21623 |  17603,703 4710075 | 23560838 | RmTam
Firaci) ot 80808 05,767 8331 B0,856 2 162,153 38,787 T1T.026 | ESZ819
Todad sugimuntal expanses o0z 450 | 50140808 | 09,428,136 | 20085101 | (1.342276) | 09.607.925 | 57761981 | 67,456,005 | 422108, 400
Tl seginmatal ity §1,303,638 | 320713538 (228.435,118) | (2.401,381) | (450,006,700) | (158.992.204) | (17.120.587) | $13.320,013 .| 121208208
Seymianl assmty IST.P1B, 380 | 142,182,463 | 34343378 | VSNOVZ 06 | I05555121 | 734,000,078 | 150,504,030 | 378042 005 | 2071 003,181
Segmant linkifties TBA02.419 | 24T | ADG20.342 | 1B7.510.157 | 35585138 | TRA647.470 | 185195467 | dBB.DS3 266 .| 2,520,145, 104
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. Reconcilialion of segmaental profit with statement of profit or loss

Amaount in NRs.
Partieulars Currenl Year Previous Year
Segmental profil 454,486,677 121,228,228
Less: Depreciation and amortization (1,919,408) (1.038,375)
Less: Mon-cash expenses other thian depreciation and amortization - -
Less: Un-allocabie corporate expenditures (51,247 184) {19 622 678)
Add: Un-allocable other income 241,008,326 114,189,869
Liss: Finance cost (171,907) {73,758)
Prafit betore tax 642,155,706 214,782,986

. Reconciliation of assets
Amount in NRs,
__Partizulnss Queniyear  Provious Yo
Segment aasels 3,214,908,588 2.071,003,181
Intangibie assels 20,992,187 5,080,559
Fraperty, plant and equipment 316,695,727 175,103,649
Investment properties -
Deferrad tax assets 90,362,723 83,241,535
Investments 4/654,708,234 1,843,568,152
Loans - -
Current tax assets (Mat} - 59,549,584
Other assels 1,535.695,813 728,187,538
Total assels 9.836,364.282 4,939,744,199
. Reconciliation of liabilities

Amount in NRs.
Particulars Curreni Year Previous Year
Segment liahilities 4.324.216.066 2.520,145,104
Provisions 3417533 8,481 680
Deferrad tax fiabilities
Current tax liahilities (Met)
Insurance payables 858,561,613 200,305,086
Dther financial Nabilities 228,730,950 102,300,158
Other liabilities 113,130,830 48,823,104
Tolal liabililies 5,545,984.724 2,880,055,141

I ::. Related party disclosure

The Company does not have any holding, subsidiary and asscciale compan|es.
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2. Key managemani personnal
Key managemant personnel are those having authomty and responsibility far planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company.
Key management personnel include the board of directors and chief executive officer of the Company as follows:

MWame of koy management personnel Designation

Mr. Mahendra: Krishna Shrastia Chairman (From Chaitra 29, 2079)

Mr. Viiit Krishna Shrestha Directar (From Chaitra 24, 2079)

Me &vilasha Panth Sharma Director (from Jestha 10, 2080)

Mr. Hem Raj Thapa Directar (From Chaitra 29, 2079)

Me: Ajaya Ratna Sthapit Pubtic Director (From Chaitra 29, 2079)

Mr. Bijay Kumar Pant Independent Diractor (Frany Balsakh 6, 2080
M Vijay Bahadur Shah Chief Executive Officar

. Key management personnal compensation
Amount in MRs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Shart-term employment banefit = b.826, 647
Past-employmant benafil ~ 3840612
Board mesting allowanca 2,118,000 1,578,500
Total 2,118,000 12,345,750

¢. Paymeni to chiel executive officer

Amount in NRs,

~ Fariiculars _Eqn_‘g_q!_‘_re_ar ~ Previgus Year
Annual salary and allowances 10.410.000 4 6032101
Parformance based allowances 1,573,336 .
[} Employes bonus - 734,707
ii}y Benefits as per prevailing provisions - 15,383
fii) Incantives - 1.573.336

Insurance related banefits
i) Life Insurance - -

ii} Accident insurancea - -
iii) Health insurance (including family members) 25,785 38,736
Total 12,009,121 E.B65,383

I 5. Leases

The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are in respect of leases for bullding premises, These arrangements genarally range between ong
year and ten years. Tha lease arrangenvents tave extension / termination options exarcisable by either party which may make the assessment of
lease term uncertain. While determining the lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive o exarcise an extension
option, or not to exercise a termination option are considared.

Lease expenses on account of shor-term leases recognized on straight line basis amounts to Rs. 32,823 813 (2078-79: 20,030,971), and Rs.
849,508 (2078-79: 846 428) has been booked for leasa equalization.

Right of use assets have been recognized in accordance with NFRS = 16 Leases with respect to non-cancellable period of leases. The movement
In lease lability is as follows:

a'% th
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Parliculars Currenl Year

Opening lease Rabilittes -

Mew leases recognisad 18,061,891
Interest expense on lease labilties 1,718,086
Payment of lease liabilities 4,388,400
Closing lease liahilities 15,382 557

The undiscounted maturities of lease liabilities over the remaining lease tarm are as follows:

Farticulars Currant Year
Not later than one year 5,686,957
Latar than ong year and not later than five years 10,742,394
Latar than five years 2,232,540

I 55. Capital commitment

The amount of capital commitments and as on the date of statement of financial position Is Nil (2078-79: Rs. 62,182 685).

I s6. Contingent liability

The Gompany has contingent liability against the following:

Particulars Currenl Year Previous Year
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls

a) Income tax 157,389,290 102,036.544
b} Indirect faxes * 19,337 868
Total 157,389,290 121,374,407

I 7. Events occurring after balance sheet

There were no events occurring aftar the reparting period that needs to be adjusted or disclosed in the financial statements.

I :c. Asseis pledged as security

We have not pledged any of our assets as security.

I 0. Corporate social responsibility
As per the regulatory requirement, 1% of profit after tax before considenng deferred tax charge for the year has been apportionad. The total CSR

expenses incurred during the year amount 1o Rs. 1,516,746,

I 0. Liabiiity adequacy test

The Company has engaged TransValue Consuliants of Mumbal, India, an external Independant actuary, to actuarially determing the amount
of outstanding claims reservas (OCR), Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims, unexpired risk resarve (LIRR) as part of liability adequacy
test (LAT). This test is done by the Company annually and the required reserves are recognised as per the amount determined under lEability
aequacy testand Tegulatbly reguirements of the Nepal Insurance Authority of Nepal, |BNR |5 calculated using Basic Chain Ladder Method:
Liabliity is recognized at highar of the two estimated liabilities.
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Our Networks

1| Hakndvitia Branch PES2031702 28 Sanobharyang TPL ABA97IATEO 55 | Gurkha Branch 0701004501
2 Birtamod Branch 9801970900 20 Lagankdiel Branch 9851049543 56 | Baglung Branch 9701004501
d | Bintamod TPL BH5EE523ZH 30| awalakhel Branch ‘385_12‘1 0867 i | Kawasol Branch B 004501
4 | lllam Brangh GE52031702 31 Bnaktapur Brangh {1| AEa 1051756 58 | Damaull Brangh B0 004501
5 | Pathar| Branch G842687 465 32 "Elria}:ldpm Branch 12] 9841344164 6% | Dumre TRL 1701004501
6 lealv.'-hm'_th Branch HE52089926 33 Banega Brangh ‘S_Bdlaét_iﬁ_l}ﬁ 0 f__ﬁarndk Beanch OB52BIRTTT
7| Mahail Branch BESZ031 707 3 l‘-.lﬂrdwﬁuﬂdh Branch ARas0G7155 i1 | Syangia Branch 9701004501
8 Dharan Branch 9852051682 35  Parsa Branch 9851140414 62 | Butwal Province Office 0857024867
g | Galqh&l Aranch HES203170R 36 Hetauda Branch BE51140414 fid | Butwal Brangh 9802670426
10 | Duhabl Branch QRS202GB4Z 37 | Kathmandu Branch a4 1401069 fid | Nepalgun) Branch 0844828820
11 | Biratnagar Branch HES2026250 38 Bajratarahi Branch 9851210567 i | Kohalpue Branch OEEH061181
12 Biramagar Province Offica 9852031702 an Ciabahil Branch SBA1675165 i Bardiva Branch 9857845858
1 Lahan Branch HE147 49160 i | Dhading Branch Q8018 1066 fiv | Ghorah Branch Og47aZ0072
14 | Bajbiraj Branch HECEA0N02E 11 | Nuwiko! Branah AE0E2EH 1 i | Tulsipur Brangh O302ET026
15  Janakpur Branch 9855020411 42 | Chwulara Branch 9951051756 69 | Bhairahawa Branch 9857031013
16 | Janakpur Branch HB20200580 13 | Melamehi Branch Q802326 T 70 | Parasi Branch Ogs70sI13
17 | Mahendranagar Branch 9858784464 44 | Thankol Brangh 9801870340 71 | Chandrauta Branch 8857031013
18 | Panchithar Branch DA0RITGE3A 15 | Mewroad Branch AAS1104247 72 | Manigram TPL 0801911058
1'EI_ I__ﬁ.lh_ajrld!_ﬁ-i‘_ar_l-ch - ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ-ﬁi Iiﬁl ::Héll!']_]_ii_ri_ﬁraﬂf:_;h _‘3_8_5_1_1'5_}55_14_*1_ i _:_B-l'ldlrd’?lﬂ\'l'd TT’L _ EETEEE':EEE
20| Barahathwa Branch DEAd38622T A7 | Jorpat Branch 9851227789 T4 | Surkhet Pravinge OMfice Ag5A074TN
4 Chandranigagur Branch 0A55020411 18 Miharajgun| .f.lﬁi_l'l_ﬁh _QE$1U4954$ ia Dalieljih Branch HB&EDM?‘“
22 | Gimara Branch BESS020411 18 | Baneshwor Branch DRA1E50098 76 | Chinchiu Branch HB&EDM?‘“
23 | Kalarya Branch DRES0F0411 50 IﬂmLIIluIIEranL'h AB440%498 7 77 | Kalikot Branch 0858074701
24 | Birgun) Branch 9802901036 51 | Thamel Branch 9851036384 78 | Dhangathi Province Office 9601969205
25 | Birgunj Pravince Ottica ORGS0Z0411 52 Hattisar Branch 251042542 79 | Mahendranagar Branch 9801960206
26 Gongabu Branch 9802326908 53 | Pokhara Provinge Office 9701004501 BO | Lamki Branch 9801968206
27 | Gongabu Branch 9851110370 58 | Leknnath Branch 2701004501 B1 | Attarlya Branch aB40672452

4

Sranch=p

8

Bronchag

12

Bramches 28

Sronches

HE! agent Network above 500.
Surveyor natwark ahove 200.
HEI covers most of the part of the Nepal.
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